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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HF —TMOF == —T——-F —T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Results E47
Year ended BEZ=ZHA=+—H
31 March HFEE
Loss attributable RN BNER AEM
to owners of the E518
Company (445,229) (52,291) (78,395) (293,521) (266,228)
Assets and EERER
liabilities
At 31 March R=A=+—8”
Total assets EERE 496,346 985,596 1,222,622 1,492,708 1,033,933
Total liabilities BEBR (256,603)  (302,995)  (450,221)  (546,375)  (144,792)
Total equity WS aEE 239,743 682,601 772,401 946,333 889,141
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED XA 2% & B R A A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Financial Review
Consolidated results

The turnover and loss of Culture Landmark Investment
Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2015 were approximately HK$141.4 million and
approximately HK$450.6 million respectively as compared
to the turnover and loss of approximately HK$224.2
million and approximately HK$60.5 million respectively of
last year. The deterioration was primarily attributable to (i)
the drop in the turnover in the principal activities of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$82.8 million; (ii)
the impairment of goodwill and intangible assets for the
provision of intellectual property enforcement services
business, exhibition-related business and property sub-
leasing business amounted to approximately HK$147.9
million, approximately HK$19.9 million and approximately
HK$16.6 million respectively; (iii) the loss on disposal of
Hua Rong Sheng Shi Holding Limited (“Hua Rong”) of
approximately HK$16.0 million; and (iv) the change in fair
value of available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$178.0 million of which approximately HK$148.0
million was charged to the profit or loss.

The board (the "“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
considers that impairment on goodwill and intangible
assets and the change in fair value of available-for-sales
investments are non-cash items and has no effect on
the cash flow of the Group's operations and the loss on
disposal of Hua Rong was an one-off disposal loss and a
non-recurring item.

Business Review

During the year under review, the Group's reportable
business segments principally consist of (i) licence
fee collection and provision of intellectual property
enforcement services business; (ii) exhibition-related
business; (iii) property sub-leasing business; (iv) property
development and investment; (v) entertainment business;
and (vi) food and beverages business.

Licence fee collection and provision of intellectual
property enforcement services business

The Group is engaged in the collection of licence fees of
karaoke music products from karaoke operators and the
provision of intellectual property enforcement services
in respect of karaoke music products and videos in the
Peoples’ Republic of China (“PRC").
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

Licence fee collection and provision of intellectual
property enforcement services business (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, this business
segment recorded a turnover of approximately HK$39.7
million and a loss of approximately HK$182.5 million.
The loss was mainly attributable to (i) the drop in
turnover due to the disposal of Hua Rong completed
in August 2014 and less license fee collected from
karaoke operators during the year under review; (ii)
the impairment on the goodwill and intangible assets
amounted to approximately HK$79.4 million and
approximately HK$68.5 million respectively; and (iii) the
loss on disposal of Hua Rong of approximately HK$16.0
million.

Hua Rong is principally engaged in the provision of
copyright licence fees settlement and collection services
in respect of karaoke music products and videos in
PRC in return of certain percentage of the licence fee
collected from karaoke venues as its service charge. The
disposal of Hua Rong was completed on 8 August 2014.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 3
July 2014, the estimated loss on disposal of Hua Rong
(based on the unaudited financial statement of Hua Rong
as at 31 March 2014) was approximately HK$35.0 million.
The change in the amount of loss on disposal from
approximately HK$35.0 million to approximately HK$16.0
million was mainly due to (i) the operating loss of Hua
Rong of approximately HK$6.0 million for the period from
1 April 2014 to the date of completion on 8 August 2014;
and (ii) the fact that a pledged deposit of Hua Rong of
approximately HK$13.0 million was used to set-off a loan
due by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group to a third
party borrower and the treatment of above mentioned
pledged deposit was confirmed only after obtaining
relevant documentations.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

Licence fee collection and provision of intellectual
property enforcement services business (Continued)

After the disposal of Hua Rong, the turnover of this
segment was based on certain percentage of the license
fee collected from karaoke venues by Hua Rong.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the turnover of
this business segment was approximately HK$39.7
million, representing a drop of approximately HK$47.3
million and 54.4% comparing with the turnover of
approximately HK$87.0 million in 2014. The Directors
consider that karaoke venue operators were affected
by the reduction in expenditures in entertainment and
recreational activities in PRC. Accordingly, the intellectual
property enforcement services would experience no
growth. Taking into account the decrease in revenue
growth rate, the impairment on goodwill and intangible
assets amounted to approximately HK$79.4 million and
approximately HK$68.5 million respectively were made in

2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Business Review (Continued)
Exhibition-related business

China Resources Advertising & Exhibition Company
“CRA Group”) are
principally engaged in exhibition-related business. The

Limited and its subsidiaries (the

CRA Group acts as an organiser and contractor for
exhibitions and meeting events held in Hong Kong. It has
developed over 20-year relationship with the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council ("HKTDC"”) and has become
one of the major agents organising trade fairs for PRC
groups whilst most of which were co-organised with
the HKTDC. The clients of the CRA Group are primarily
PRC based including numerous sub-councils of the China
Council for the Promotion of International Trade in PRC.
Overall, the exhibition-related business contributed a
turnover of approximately HK$66.7 million to the Group,
including a turnover of approximately HK$53.3 million
generated from a function named “the Fashion Week”
co-organised with the HKTDC. For the year ended 31
March 2015, the exhibition-related business recorded a
net loss of approximately HK$25.7 million after taking
into account the impairment on intangible assets of
approximately HK$19.9 million. The impairment loss
on intangible assets of approximately HK$19.9 million
was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2015 as
the Directors consider the clients of the CRA Group are
primarily PRC based textile manufacturers which are
recently facing the industry downturn, and in addition,
the drop in the client base of the CRA Group due to the
exhibitions held in PRC attract a significant number of
the existing clients of the CRA Group.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Business Review (Continued)
Property sub-leasing business

In 2011, the Company entered into an agreement (the
“BoRen Agreement”) with HaoRan Cultural Development
Limited (the "HaoRan Vendor”) pursuant to which the
Company agreed to acquire from HaoRan Vendor the
entire issued capital of BoRen Cultural Development
Limited (“BoRen"”). BoRen holds indirect interests in
a group of companies which principally engage in sub-
leasing of properties and facilities in Nanjing. The
Company will receive compensation from HaoRan
Vendor and the guarantor under the BoRen Agreement
should the total profit for three financial years ending
31 December 2017 be less than RMB75 million. The
compensation is payable only if the Company advances
loans in the total principal amount in Hong Kong dollars
of not less than a sum equivalent to RMB50 million (the
“Advanced Loans”) to Elite-China Cultural Development
Limited or any of its subsidiaries (the “Elite Group"”) for
each of the three financial years ending 31 December
2017. On 30 September 2014, the Company entered into
the fourth supplemental agreement with HaoRan Vendor
and the guarantor to defer the guarantee period and the
provision of the Advanced Loans.

The Company has not so far made any Advanced Loans
to Elite Group under the BoRen Agreement as the
Company is contemplating various other investment
opportunities. The Board considers it more beneficial
to defer its obligation in order to spare its financial
resources to such other investment opportunities which
may offer better prospects and return.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the property sub-
leasing business recorded a turnover and a loss of
approximately HK$33.6 million and approximately
HK$122.3 million respectively after taking into account
the impairment loss on contingency consideration related
to the acquisition of subsidiaries and goodwill amounted
to approximately HK$98.7 million and approximately
HK$16.6 million respectively. The Directors mainly
consider the factor that the slowdown in revenue in
this segment over the pass few years was due to
the unfavorable market conditions and the situation
may continue to persist in the near future and there
is indication that HaoRan Vendor may have potential
financial difficulty as at 31 March 2015, as a result, the
impairment loss on contingency consideration related to
the acquisition of subsidiaries and goodwill amounted
to approximately HK$98.7 million and approximately
HK$16.6 million respectively was recognised to reflect a
more conservative expectation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Business Review (Continued)
Property development and investment

In 2013,
agreement (the

the Company entered into an acquisition
“Acquisition Agreement”) with Bliss
Zone Limited (“BZL") to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Longisland Tourism Investment & Development
Limited (R&REREZERAGMRAF) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Longisland Group”) for a total
consideration of HK$400 million (out of which, HK$150
million was payable by cash and the remaining balance
was payable by the issue of convertible bonds to BZL
or its nominee upon completion). The transaction was
approved by the Company's shareholders on 7 November
2013.

Pursuant to the terms of the Acquisition Agreement, the
completion of the Acquisition Agreement is conditional
upon fulfilment and/or waiver (as the case maybe) of the
conditions precedent (the “Conditions Precedent”) set
out in the Acquisition Agreement on or before 31 July
2014 (the “Long Stop Date”). If the Conditions Precedent
have not been fulfilled and/or waived (as the case maybe)
on or before the Long Stop Date or such other date as
the parties to the Acquisition Agreement may otherwise
agree in writing, the Acquisition Agreement shall lapse.
The Company and BZL have entered into a supplemental
agreement and a second supplemental agreement on
30 July 2014 and 28 October 2014 respectively, and
pursuant to which the Company and BZL agreed to
extend the original Long Stop Date up to and including 30
April 2015. On 30 April 2015, the Conditions Precedent
to the Acquisition Agreement were not fulfilled and/
or waived (as the case maybe) and no extension of
the time was agreed by the parties to the Acquisition
Agreement, the Acquisition Agreement had lapsed and
ceased to have any effect and neither party thereto had
any rights or obligations towards each other thereunder,
save for liabilities for any antecedent breaches thereof
and BZL was required to rebate the earnest money, the
partial payment and any settled residual payment to the
Company. The total payment amounting to HK$80 million
was fully refunded after the year ended 31 March 2015.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Business Review (Continued)
Property development and investment (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, except for the
tripartite framework agreement in relation to the
development of certain projects in Sheshan (the
“Tripartite Framework Agreement”) announced by
the Company on 23 December 2013, all the other
memorandum of understanding in relation to the real
property investment projects as stated in the Company’s
annual report 2014 were terminated as no formal sale
and purchase agreement could be agreed and entered
into. Details of the Tripartite Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23
December 2013.

Entertainment business and food and beverages
business

On 23 September 2014, the Group entered into a placing
agreement and a convertible loan note placing agreement
with a placing agent to dispose (i) 229,326,016 shares
of China Star Cultural Media Group Limited (“CSCM")
(formerly known as China Media and Films Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), at a price of HK$0.24 per
share and (ii) the convertible loan notes (the “CLNs")
in the aggregate principal amount of up to HK$6.2
million at the CLN placing price of HK$3,413,000. The
losses on disposal of the CSCM shares and CLNs were
approximately HK$2.9 million and approximately HK$1.1
million, respectively. During the year ended 31 March
2015, the share of profit of associate was approximately
HK$0.6 million.

As to the food and beverages business, owing to
the high operating costs and keen competition in the
industry, the Group ceased the operation of Golden
Island Bird’s Nest (Chiu Chau) Restaurant in Hong Kong
and the wine bar and restaurant in Zhuhai during the year
under review.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the entertainment
business recorded a turnover and a loss of approximately
HK$0.6 million and HK$5.0 million respectively and the
food and beverages business recorded a turnover and a
loss of approximately HK$0.7 million and HK$5.4 million
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

Entertainment business and food and beverages
business (Continued)

The Directors believe that the operation of the
entertainment business shall remain challenging in
the future while ceasing the outlets of the food and
beverages business is for the best interests of the
Group.

Outlook

Looking ahead, the Directors expect the business
environment to remain challenging, but are cautiously
optimistic towards the overall outlook of the Group.

The Group will focus its effort on licence fee and
provision of intellectual property enforcement services
business, exhibition-related business and property sub-
leasing business, and at the same time the Group is also
in a position to look for suitable investment opportunities
(if any) to enhance its earning potential.

On 8 June 2015, the Group has entered into an
acquisition agreement to acquire certain subscribed
capital contribution of Chongging Lianshun Heqi Venture
Investment Fund Partnership* (EEKIES RAIFEIRERE
LA %), which is expected to provide the Group a
favourable investment opportunity in the fast-growing
unconventional oil/gas industry.

On 15 June 2015, the Group has set up a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise, namely Concord & Witty ldea Leasing
Company (Shenzhen) Limited* (3% 12 81 37 gt &  E(RF
JNAEBRAT) (the "WFOE"), in the Qianhai Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone
of Shenzhen* CRIITRANEREBIRKIRBEESER) (the
“Zone"), which principal business is the provision of
financial leasing services. The WFOE was established
as an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
with registered capital of US$30 million. With the various
policy incentives being implemented within the Zone, the
WFQOE aims to provide more competitive and lower cost
financial leasing services to PRC customers. In light of
the above, the Directors consider that the establishment
of the financial leasing company in the Zone will enable
the Company to diversify its business into the financial
services sector and will also introduce the Group's
business to the new market participants in the Zone.

¥ For identification only
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The Directors of the Company present their report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
23 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’'s performance for the year
under review by business segment is set out in note 6
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 61 to 63.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015.
Capital will be reserved for the expansion of the Group's
business and to capture investment opportunities arising
in the future. There is no arrangement that a shareholder
of the Company has waived or agreed to waive any
dividend.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group and
the Company during the year under review are set out in
notes 18 to 20 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year under review are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 67
and note 38 to the financial statements, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as
at 31 March 2015 are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group had
entered into certain material transactions with parties
which were regarded as "“Related Parties” under the
applicable accounting principles. Details of those related
parties transactions are set out in note 42 to the financial
statements. Some of these transactions which are
considered to be connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) are further disclosed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” below.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) and there is
no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 4.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Company did not make any charitable donation for
both the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 4(p) to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) on 30 August 2012 under
which the Directors may grant options to eligible person,
including directors and employees of the Group, to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
Share Option Scheme:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is set up for the purpose
of attracting and retaining quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the
Group.

2.  Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Directors may at their discretion grant options
to (i) any director, employee or consultant of the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an
equity interest or a subsidiary of such company
(“Affiliate"”); or (ii) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii)
a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
or (iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose
service to the Group or business with the Group
contributes or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group as may be
determined by the Directors from time to time to
subscribe for shares of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

3.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme and percentage of the
number of issued shares as at 31 March 2015

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme was in aggregate 32,333,421 shares
as at 31 March 2015 (representing approximately
4.5% of the number of issued shares as at 31
March 2015).

Maximum entitlement of each participant under
the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of Shares (issued and to be
issued) in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme to any one grantee
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1 per cent.
of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with Rule 17.03(4) of the
Listing Rules.

The period within which the options must
be exercised under Share Option Scheme to
subscribe for shares

The holder of an option may subscribe for Shares
during such period as may be determined by the
Directors (which shall be less than ten years from
the date of grant of the relevant option and may
include the minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

6.

The minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

There is no minimum period for which an option
granted must be held before it can be exercised
unless otherwise imposed by the Directors.

The period within which the options granted
must be taken up

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days
inclusive of, and from the date of grant.

The basis of determining the exercise price

Options may be granted without any initial payment
for the options at an exercise price (subject to
adjustments as provided therein) equal to the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares of
the Company; (ii) the closing price per share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date of the grant of the
option, which must be a business day; and (iii) the
average closing price per share of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the option.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing from 30 August
2012.

Details of the Share Option Scheme, including grant and

lapse of options, are disclosed in note 39 to the financial

statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Cheng Yang (Chairman)
Tsoi Tung (Chief Executive Officer)
— appointed on 18 December 2014
Lei Lei
Huang Ranfei — appointed on 28 January 2015
Li Weipeng
Tong Jingguo
Yang Rusheng
So Tat Keung

In accordance with bye-law 87(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr.
Cheng Yang, Ms. Lei Lei and Mr. Yang Rusheng shall
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr.
Tsoi Tung and Mr. Huang Ranfei shall hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Yang (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 51, is an executive
Director, the chairman of the Board and the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng
joined the Company on 30 April 2010 and has more
than 10 years of experience in entertainment and media
business. Mr. Cheng is the founder and a director of
Cheng Films and Video Production Limited (a company
incorporated in Hong Kong), which produces and
distributes films and television drama series in Greater
China. He was an executive director of China Star
Cultural Media Group Limited (formerly known as China
Media and Films Holdings Limited), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, for the period from September 2011
to March 2014.

Mr. Tsoi Tung (“Mr. Tsoi"), aged 45, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company.
Mr. Tsoi was appointed as an executive Director on
18 December 2014 and the chief executive officer of
the Company on 28 January 2015. Mr. Tsoi has over
20 years of experience in corporate management and
investment. From 1996 to 2007, Mr. Tsoi held various
positions with Bloomage International Investments
Group Inc.* (ZERR M R % & & B A & ), including the
chief executive and vice general manager. Bloomage
International Investments Group Inc.* is mainly
engaged in the businesses of real estate development,
bioengineering and strategic investment. Since 2008,
Mr. Tsoi has been the chairman of Chongging Kingstone
Grand Hotel Co., Limited* (EE2AKEEERAA),
and he has involved in the acquisition of the landmark
property, JW Marriott Hotel, which is located in the
central area of Chongging Liberation Monument.
Chongging Kingstone Grand Hotel Co., Limited* was
renamed as Chongging Kingstone Land Limited* (EE
EABHMAR AT )upon reconstruction and upgrade of
JW Marriott Hotel to Marriott Executive Apartment in
2014. Since 2012, Mr. Tsoi has also been the chairman
of Bloomage Land Limited* (ZEEREH#AHRAF]), and he
is in charge of the comprehensive development of phase
2 of the hotel project, which is expected to comprise a
431 metres mega high-rise complex of full steel frame
structure including, inter alia, the Ritz-Carlton Hotel (B8
REBEAE/E), the Ritz-Carlton Mansion (EE BB ALE),
an international grade A platinum office building and a
high-end shopping mall. Mr. Tsoi graduated from Tianjin
Institute of Foreign Trade* (K;ZINZ &P ) in 1992.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Lei Lei ("Ms. Lei"”), aged 52, is an executive Director
and the deputy chief executive officer of the Company.
Ms. Lei joined the Company on 3 September 2012. She
has immense experience in business management. In
early dates she taught at Chongging University of Posts
and Telecommunications, and had served as president
of Hainan Bojin Cultural Investment Company Ltd., and
the chief executive officer of Sunp Canada Inc.. Ms.
Lei graduated from Chongging University of Posts and
Telecommunications in 1985 with a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering, and received a master of philosophy degree
in 1988 from Shaanxi Normal University.
Mr. Huang Ranfei (“Mr. Huang"”), aged 34, is an
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Huang joined
the Company on 28 January 2015 and has 10 years of
experience in investment banking and management.
From 2005 to 2008, Mr. Huang held various positions in
Lehman Brothers in New York and Hong Kong, including
associate and analyst. From 2008 to 2010, Mr. Huang
worked in the investment bank division of Nomura
International (Hong Kong) Limited as an associate. Then,
from 2010 to 2012, Mr. Huang served as vice president
with Morgan Stanley in Hong Kong, and, from 2012 to
2014, Mr. Huang was an executive director in Morgan
Stanley Huaxin Securities Company Limited. Mr. Huang
graduated from Fudan University in 2003 with a bachelor
degree in finance, and obtained a master degree in
computational finance from Carnegie Mellon University in
2004.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li Weipeng (“Mr. Li"), aged 57, is an executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company
on 20 October 2010. He was the deputy director and
director of foreign exchange management office of
the People's Bank in Yantai, deputy director in the
state administration of foreign exchange business of
Port Operations in Qingdao. During the period from
June 1994 to July 2007, Mr. Li served as president in
Yantai Branch, vice president in Chongging Branch and
president in Shanghai Pudong Branch of CITIC Bank (its
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and Shanghai
Stock Exchange); and served as director of Shanghai
Hong Yang Culture Media. He was an executive director
of Shangdong International Finance Institute; a director
of Chongging Finance Institute and a director of Pudong
Financial Promotion Association. Mr. Li graduated from
Tianjin University in December 1993 with a master
degree in business administration.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tong Jingguo (“Mr. Tong"), aged 43, is an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Tong joined the Company on 18 June 2010. He
holds a bachelor degree in engineering from Xi'an
Jiaotong University and a master degree in business
administration from Fudan University. During the period
from October 2002 to March 2004, he was the president
of Zhuhai Gaoling Information Technology Co., Ltd.
In 2004, Mr. Tong also founded Shenzhen Huo King
Management Consulting Co., Ltd..
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yang Rusheng (“Mr. Yang"”),
independent non-executive Director and a member of the

aged 47, is an

audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Yang joined
the Company on 20 October 2010. He has 23 years of
experience in finance, audit and tax. Mr. Yang worked
in the financial department of Shenzhen Construction
Industry (Group) Co. from July 1993 to October 1994.
Thereafter, he had worked in various CPA firms in PRC,
including, as a manager and senior manager in Shenzhen
Yongming CPA firm, a director in Shenzhen Guangsheng
CPA firm and Shenzhen Youxin CPA firm and a partner
of Wanlong Asia CPA Co., Ltd and a director of its
Shenzhen Branch. Since October 2009, he has been a
partner and vice-president of Rui Hua Certified Public
Accountants and a director of its Shenzhen Branch. His
clients include corporation, public listed companies,
state-owned enterprises and financial institutions.
Mr. Yang was a member of Shenzhen Certified Public
Accountants Ethic Committee and Shenzhen Finance
Bureau Certified Public Accountant Responsibility Judge
Committee. He was a vice-president of Institute of
Shenzhen Certified Public Accountants. He was a director
of the Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an executive director of Shenzhen Certified
Tax Agents Association and a director of The China
Certified Tax Agents Association. Mr. Yang graduated
from Jinan University in 1993 with a master degree in
economics. He is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant
and Chinese Certified Tax Agent in PRC. Mr. Yang was
an independent director of public listed companies,
namely Shenzhen Coship Electronics Co., Ltd., Shenzhen
SEG Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Tianjian (Group) Co., Ltd.
Mr. Yang was an independent director of a public
company, Ping An Bank Co. Ltd.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. So Tat Keung (“Mr. So"), aged 59, is an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company. He joined the Company on 28 October 2010.
He is a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong and a notary
public in Hong Kong. Prior to working as a solicitor, he
had worked in the construction industry in government
departments and private companies from 1978 to 1986.
Mr. So was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
1988. Currently he is a consultant in Paul C. W. Tse &
Co. Mr. So holds bachelor of science in civil engineering
from University of Hong Kong and bachelor of law from
University of London. He was admitted as a member of
The Institution of Civil Engineers in the United Kingdom
in 1982 and a member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers in 1985.

Save as disclosed above and other than the directorship
of the Company, the above Directors do not hold any
directorship in any public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the last three years and there is no
relationship between any member of the Board, and no
information relating to the Directors which is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rules 13.51(2) and 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and each of them has declared fulfilment
of all the guidelines for assessing independence
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Senior management

Mr. Kan Yisong (“Mr. Kan”), aged 42, is a vice president
of the Company responsible for the advertising and
exhibition business of the Group. Mr. Kan was also an
executive director of China Star Cultural Media Group
Limited (formerly known as China Media and Films
Holdings Limited) from 5 March 2012 to 25 May 2012.
He joined the Company in May 2011 and has extensive
experience in exhibition and advertising business. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Kan was a director and a
general manager of a subsidiary of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Kan has a bachelor
degree in engineering from the Xi‘an Jiaotong University
and a master degree in business administration from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Chan Wai (“Mr. Chan"), aged 46, is the company
secretary and an authorized representative of the
Company. Mr. Chan holds a master degree in
Professional Accounting awarded by the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in accounting and
financial management. Mr. Chan joined the Company in
August 2012.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors has service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its
holding company (if any) was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Directors’ interests in equity or debt securities

As at 31 March 2015, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
share and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ") as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:

(a) Long position in the shares

Name of Director

ESHE BEME

Nature of interest

EETEHES
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ESRENzER
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HMNFREFAERRRETE

EERERAREHRES 2 ER
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XV &) Befn - MR RESFFHEECHNA
RIFZE S L HERPIFE 2 RREFE 2B
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(a) RUGZHFE

Number of Approximate
shares held percentage of

Mr. Cheng Yang (Note 1)

BERBEEA
Y

R EEMZT)

Mr. Tsoi Tung (Note 2)

B FEEMZ2) ¥ e
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Interest of the spouse

Interest of the spouse

as at shareholding
31 March in the
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Directors’ interests in equity or debt securities

(Continued)

Long position in the shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Cheng Yang personally owned 89,300,000
shares of the Company and his wife, Ms. Bai Xue,
owned 49,000 shares of the Company.

2. Mr. Tsoi Tung's wife, Ms. Wang Ming (“Ms.
Wang"), owned 88,000,000 shares of the Company
through Idea Elite Investments Limited, a wholly
owned company of Ms. Wang.

(b) Share options of the Company

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, certain
directors were granted share options to subscribe
for the shares and details of the Directors’ interests
in share options are disclosed in note 39 to the
financial statements.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2015,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, other than the interests of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company disclosed
in the paragraph headed "Directors’ interests in equity
or debt securities” above, according to the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company under

FERR

R-E-—RAF=ZA=1+—HB BEX[EERN
BARERES B | — BB ZARA
EENTETHRABZ#E=RIN
ARBEREAF LB RIIEIHFEZEEE
i AT AERARF Z B Dk AE B R

Exg

ﬁﬂ:i

A =

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

RIBA R A

section 336 of the SFO, the following persons had HEE R
interests in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company:
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held shareholding
as at in the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest 31 March 2015 Company
R=—Z-%HF
=A=+-H RS
Z TR 5 FRE
RREME EatE #E ZBRNBEDL
Idea Elite Investments Limited Beneficial owner 88,000,000 12.25%
(“Idea Elite”)(Note 1) (H1:£ 1) ExBEBA
Ms. Wang Ming (“Ms. Wang") Interest of controlled corporation 88,000,000 12.25%
(Note 1)
FERT(TELL) (M) REthEEER
Commotra Company Limited Beneficial owner 66,666,666 9.28%
("“Commotra”) (Note 2)
BEERRAEE(H72) EnEAA
China Resources (Holdings) Company Interest of controlled corporation 66,666,666 9.28%
Limited (“China Resources”)(Note 2)
EE(EER)ERAR(IER](M22) XEHzERR
CRC Bluesky Limited (“CRCB")(Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 66,666,666 9.28%
(Bzt2) Rt EEER
China Resources Co., Limited Interest of controlled corporation 66,666,666 9.28%
("CRL") (Note 2)
EFHROBRAR(EERR]) REthEEER
(Hfit2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) FERFR#®)
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held shareholding
as at in the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest 31 March 2015 Company
HN-E—RfF
=A=+-H RN
ZERRG FRE
BRR &R EaiE g ZBRED
China Resources National Interest of controlled corporation 66,666,666 9.28%
Corporation (“CRNC") (Note 2)
PEEBREAR(IRRER])M22) SEHEERER
Lo Yuk Sui (“Mr. Lo") (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 55,095,600 7.67%
ZEram ([ #EE ) (Hi23) REthEEER
Secure Way Technology Interest of controlled corporation 55,095,600 7.67%
Limited (“Secure Way") TS EEE S
(Note 3) (H1i#3)
Net Community Limited (“Net Interest of controlled corporation 55,095,600 7.67%
Community”) (Note 4) (Kfit4) TS EEE S
Century Digital Holdings Interest of controlled corporation 55,095,600 7.67%
Limited (“Century Digital”) REHEE S
(Note 5) (f1i#5)
Grand Modern Investments Interest of controlled corporation 55,095,600 7.67%
Limited (“Grand Modern") SEHEEE S
(Note 6)(f1:#6)
Century City International Interest of controlled corporation 55,095,600 7.67%
Holdings Limited (“Century City
International”) (Note 7)
g TR R AR 2 R REthEEER
(MEAm T BIR 1) (Bat 7)
Century City BVI Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 55,095,600 7.67%

("Century City BVI") (Note 8)
(Biz#8)

RIEHEE RS
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (cContinued) FERFR#®)
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held shareholding
as at in the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest 31 March 2015 Company
HN-E—RfF
=A=+-H RN
ZERRG FRE
BRR &R EaiE g ZBRED
Paliburg Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 55,095,600 7.67%
("Paliburg Holdings") (Note 9) TR EEEE
(H1:%9)
Paliburg Development BVI Interest of controlled corporation 55,095,600 7.67%
Holdings Limited (“Paliburg REHEEEE
Development BVI") (Note 10)
(Htit10)
Regal Hotels International Interest of controlled corporation 46,095,600 6.42%
Holdings Limited (“Regal Hotels
International”) (Note 11)
EROEBRRERARAR([EREE XEHZE#ZR
B 1) (et 11)
Regal International (BVI) Holdings Interest of controlled corporation 46,095,600 6.42%

Limited (“Regal International (BVI)")

(Note 12) (f1:%12)

1. Idea Elite is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Wang, 1.
the spouse of Mr. Tsoi Tung who is an executive Director

RIEHEE RS

and the chief executive officer of the Company.

2. Commotra is a 100% subsidiary of China Resources, 2.
which is a 100% subsidiary of CRCB, which is in turn
owned as to 100% by CRL, which is in turn held as to

100% by CRNC.

3. Secure Way is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lo. 3.
4. Net Community is wholly and beneficially owned by 4.
Secure Way.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

5.

10.

11.

12.

Century Digital is wholly and beneficially owned by Net
Community.

Grand Modern is wholly and beneficially owned by Century
Digital.

Grand Modern owns 50.89% interest in Century City
International, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Century City BVI is wholly and beneficially owned by
Century City International.

Century City BVI owns 62.23% interest in Paliburg
Holdings.

Paliburg Development BVI is wholly owned and
beneficially owned by Paliburg Holdings.

Paliburg Development BVI owns 63.97% interest in Regal
Hotels International.

Regal International BVI is wholly and beneficially owned
by Regal Hotels International.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, according

to the register of interests required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO, there was no

person who had any interest or short position in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company which would

fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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7. Grand Modern % tt 42 45 i BU PR (B A2 AT
R EM/AF])50.89% #Ez ©

8.  Century City BVIRtHLZHMRAEE2ERE
WA °

9. Century City BVI#E A Paliburg Holdings
62.23% s ©

10. Paliburg Development BVI Paliburg
Holdings 2 & R Em A -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the aggregated sales
attributable to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 25% while the largest
customer accounted for approximately 11% of its total
revenue.

During the year under review, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 84% while the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 55% of its total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules:
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The following tenancy agreements between a wholly
owned subsidiary of China Resources, being a substantial
shareholder of the Company for the period between
1 April 2014 and 9 December 2014, as landlord and a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company as tenant were
entered into/subsisting during the year ended 31 March
2015:

(i) Tenancy agreement dated 15 November 2013

Landlord: China Resources Property

Management Limited (“CR
Property”), acting as the lawful
attorney and agent for and

on behalf of Eastern World
Development Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of China
Resources

Tenant: Golden Island Catering Group
Company Limited (“Golden
Island”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

Property: Rooms 2501-05, 25th Floor, China
Resources Building, No. 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong

Kong

Term: 16 November 2013 to 15 November
2016

Rent: HK$550,617 per month (exclusive

of management fees)

Management  HK$74,801 per month (subject to

fee and air adjustment from time to time)
conditioning
charges:

Deposit: HK$1,876,253 (equivalent to the

sum of three months’ rental and
management fees)

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(ii)

Tenancy agreement dated 11 April 2014

Landlord: CR Property
Tenant: Golden Island
Property: Rooms 2506-10, 25th Floor, China
Resources Building, No. 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong
Term: 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017
Rent: HK$550,617 per month (exclusive
of management fees)
Management  HK$74,801 per month (subject to
fee and air adjustment from time to time)
conditioning
charges:
Deposit: HK$1,876,253 (equivalent to the

sum of three months’ rental and
management fees)

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company

have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and

confirm that the transactions have been entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Company’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing the conclusions in respect of
the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’'s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not conduct
any non-exempt connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 March 2015, the Group employed a total
number of 142 employees. The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practices. The emoluments of
the Directors and senior management of the Company
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group periodically reviews its remuneration
package in order to attract, motivate and retain its
employees. Discretionary bonuses are rewarded to staff
and Directors based on the Group’s profit and their
performance.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (continued)

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme for the
primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
any Director, employee and other eligible participant who
made significant contribution to the Group. The Group
also provides external training courses to its staff to
improve their skills and services.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group finances its operations mainly with internally
generated resources. The Group maintains good business
relationship with banks and has sufficient banking
facilities available for future business development.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had borrowings of
approximately HK$60.3 million (2014: HK$69.2 million).
The gearing ratio of the Group was 23.4% compared
with 10.1% as at 31 March 2014. This is mainly due to
the significant reduction in the Company’'s shareholders’
equity resulting from the recognition of the impairment
of goodwill, intangible assets and available-for-sale
investments. Such ratio was calculated with reference to
the total borrowings (being the sum of bank borrowings
and other borrowings) over the Company's shareholders’
equity.

The Group was able to generate sufficient cash flow
from its operations to fulfill its repayment obligations and
meet the cash requirements for its day-to-day operations
for the year. The revenue of the Group, being mostly
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar, matches
the currency requirement of the Group's expenses while
other foreign currency transactions were immaterial. No
financial instrument was used for hedging. The Group
was not exposed to any exchange rate risk or any related
hedges.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Fund raising activities

During the year under review, the Group completed the
following fund raising exercise to strengthen its financial
position and raised the gross proceeds of approximately
HK$59.9 million, with the net proceeds of approximately
HK$58.0 million had been applied as follows:

BB @)
EHEH

REEFE  AEBETKATEEEE
NI HEBMERARRBRRMERIELE
#759,900,0007% 7T - M AT 15 X 18 % 58 &Y
58,000,000/ 8L EEERAMT

Unutilised
Date of Fund raising Proposed use Actual use amount as at
announcement activities Net proceeds of proceeds of proceeds 31 March 2015
R-ZE-1%
FREMEZ ZA=t-R2
AMiBE REEE RBRERR FiBREZRERE ERRR ABALE
10 December 2014  Placing of 119,752,000 Approximately For general working Approximately Approximately
new shares at the HK$58.0 million capital of the Group HK$20.0 million HK$38.0
placing price of and for development has been million
HK$0.50 per placing of the existing and utilised as
share future projects of the general working
Group capital of the
Group
e S REEEBREE #58,000,000 BEARE s —%%&  #20,000,000/7T 438,000,000
TZA+H 1 0.50 B TELE BT B REAKERE R EREREE—- X
119,752,000 B #7A% (3 HEERERZA REEES
Charges H

As at 31 March 2015, certain bank deposits of the
Group in the aggregate amount of HK$2,300,000 were
pledged to secure the banking facilities of the Group.
Also, Nanjing Yinkun Investment Corporation* (Fg FUIE i
REEEAMRAT), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company has pledged a deposit of RMB5,500,000 to a
bank as security for a bill payable of RMB10,000,000.

As at 31 March 2015, Mr. Yang Lei (a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company) and a company beneficially
owned by Mr. Yang Lei and his spouse respectively
provided guarantees for certain bank loans of the Group.
Certain assets of Mr. Yang Lei were also pledged to
secure bank loans of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
charges on assets as at 31 March 2015.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
Directors of the Company and senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in
notes 12 and 42(c) to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2015.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficient public float in accordance with
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2015 and as at the date of this annual report.

OTHER MATTERS

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in
note 48 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO
Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Tsoi Tung

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015

*  For identification only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board and the senior management of the Company
are committed to establishing good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The maintenance of high
standard of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Group's goals.
The Company believes that good corporate governance
provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigourous corporate governance practices, the
Group believes that its accountability and transparency
will be improved thereby instilling confidence to
shareholders and the public. Throughout the financial
year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has complied with
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules save for certain deviations, details of which will
be explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.
The Board will review its corporate governance practice
annually and make necessary changes if necessary.
Meetings were held throughout the year under review
and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance
notes were issued to Directors and senior management
of the Group to ensure they were aware of issues
regarding corporate governance practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the Group's business,
strategic decisions and performances and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. In practice, the
Board takes responsibility for decision making in all
major matters of the Company including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, the setting of objectives,
annual budgets and overall strategies, the entering into
material transactions, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. The day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior executives. Their
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions
made by the Board, the co-ordination and direction of
day-to-day operation and management of the Company
in accordance with the management strategies and plans
approved by the Board. The Board receives full support
from senior executives to discharge its responsibility.
Prior approval has to be obtained from the Board before
entering into any significant transactions. The statement
of the auditors of the Company in relation to their
reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 58 to 60 of this report.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Composition

As at 31 March 2015,
Directors, including five executive Directors, namely, Mr.

the Board comprises eight
Cheng Yang (chairman), Mr. Tsoi Tung (chief executive
officer), Ms. Lei Lei, Mr. Huang Ranfei, Mr. Li Weipeng
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Tong Jingguo, Mr. Yang Rusheng and Mr. So Tat

Keung.

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate accounting and financial management
expertise. The number of independent non-executive
Directors is more than one-third of the Board.
Biographical details of the Chairman and other Directors
are set out in the paragraph headed "Biographical details
of Directors and senior management” on pages 19 to 24

of this report.

The presence of three independent non-executive
Directors is considered by the Board to be a reasonable
balance between executive and non-executive Directors.
The Board is of the opinion that such balance can provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and of the Group. The independent non-
executive Directors provide to the Group with a wide
range of expertise and experience so that independent
judgement can be exercised effectively. They have also
participated in Board meetings and general meetings,
dealt with potential conflicts of interest, served on audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company and scrutinized the Group's
performance and reporting. Through their active
participation, the management process of the Company
can be critically reviewed and controlled.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their
field of expertise, and have exhibited high standards
of personal and professional ethics and integrity. All
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the Company's affairs. The Board believes that the
ratio between executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to
perform check and balance function over the Board in
the decision making process.

The Board is responsible for the appointment of new
Director and nomination for re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Under
the Bye-laws, the Board may from time to time appoint
a Director either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. Any new Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office until the next following annual general meeting
after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible for
re-election at such meeting.

INDEPENDENCE

The Company has three independent non-executive
Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
accounting and financial management expertise. The
Group has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence. The
Company considers these Directors to be independent
under the guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified
as such in all corporate communications containing the
names of the Directors. In addition, there is no material
relationship between Board members.
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DEVIATIONS FROM THE CG CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Company has complied with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save and except the
following exceptions: CG Code Provisions A.2.1 (division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer) and A.4.1 (term of appointment of non-
executive Directors).

a. Division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive officer

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company have been
performed by Mr. Cheng Yang, who is also an
executive Director. Mr. Cheng resigned as the chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from
28 January 2015.

During the reporting period, Mr. Cheng Yang, the
Company’s Chairman, decided not to concurrently
act as the chief executive officer so as to
enhance the corporate governance standards
of the Company. On the recommendation of
the nomination committee of the Company, the
Board appointed Mr. Tsoi Tung, the Company's
executive Director, to fill the vacancy of chief
executive officer with effect from 28 January 2015.
Thereafter, the Company has fully complied with
the Code Provision A.2.1 set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company have been
separated and performed by different individuals.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DEVIATIONS FROM THE CG CODE
(Continued)

b. Term of appointment of non-executive Directors

Under the CG Code provision A.4.1, all non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. Whilst the
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a
specific term, the term of office for non-executive
Directors is subject to retirement from office by
rotation and is eligible for re-election in accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation. As such, the Company considers that such
provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying
objectives of CG Code.

BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times
every year to determine the overall strategic direction,
objectives and to approve interim results, annual results
or other significant matters. Draft notice and agenda
for regular meetings are provided to all Directors for
comments and inclusion of any matters for deliberation
at the meetings. Apart from holding regular meetings,
senior management from time to time provides to the
Directors information on activities and development
of the business of the Group. The company secretary
assists the chairman in preparing agenda for the
meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations in connection with the meetings are observed
and complied with. The agenda and Board papers are
then sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to the
meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed
minutes, keeps records of matters discussed and
decision resolved at the meetings.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’

MEETINGS (Continued)

EEgeERREARE#)

Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the REERN BRRRARgkEFE BRZ%E
meetings of the Board, audit committee, remuneration e FTHNEESRREREESERZESTH
committee and nomination committee held during the EREFH T :
year are set out below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/
Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible
Name of Directors attended attended attended attended attended
) ) g/ ) HE/
BERLE BERERE BERERE BERLE BERERE
Bxg ENEES FHEES REZES [E
Y =f = g3 =f PN
Executive Director
HiITES
Mr. Cheng Yang 14/16 — — 3/3 0/
BBEE
Mr. Tsoi Tung (appointed on 3/3 — — — 0/0
18 December 2014)
BYAE(R_T—NF
TZATN\BEEE)
Ms. Lei Lei 16/16 — — — mn
FEXRL
Mr. Huang Ranfei (appointed on 2/2 — — — 0/0
28 January 2015)
BERFEERZE—1F
—AZ+N\BEZE)
Mr. Li Weipeng 16/16 — — — 11
TRERE
Independent Non-Executive
Director
BYKHITES
Mr. So Tat Keung 14/16 2/2 3/3 — il
EERsd
Mr. Yang Rusheng 14/16 2/2 3/3 3/3 0/1
BIESLE
Mr. Tong Jinggou 13/16 2/2 2/3 2/3 0/1
KEBExE
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS (Continued)

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors
discuss and formulate the overall strategies of the Group,
monitor financial performances, review the annual and
interim results, and make decisions on other significant
matters. The execution of daily operational matters is
delegated to the senior executives of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
Board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including the
record of all decisions resolved by the Board together
with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if
any). Draft Board minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comment and approval as soon as practicable after
the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any
reasonable time upon request by any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely
information at all times and they may make further
enquiries if it is necessary to do so.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, who is held
responsible for providing Directors with Board papers
and other related materials. The company secretary also
ensures that proper Board procedures are followed and
that all applicable laws and regulations are complied
with. If the Directors consider necessary and appropriate,
they may retain the service of independent professional
advisers at the Group's expense.

In case where a conflict of interest arises involving a
substantial shareholder or a Director, such matter will be
resolved in a physical meeting instead of passing written
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors with
no conflict of interest will be present at meetings to deal
with such conflict issues.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS (Continued)

The Board committees, including the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, have all adopted the applicable practices and
procedures used in Board meetings.

The annual general meeting and other special general
meetings of the Company are the primary forum
for communication with our shareholders and for
shareholders’ participation. All shareholders are
encouraged to attend the general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings on their behalves
if they are unable to attend.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company only
held the annual general meeting on 23 September 2014,
no other special general meetings were held during the
year.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR
DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business of the
Group. As such, the Group provides a comprehensive
and formal induction to each newly appointed Director
upon his/her appointment. Briefings and orientations are
provided so as to ensure that new Directors are familiar
with the role of the Board, their legal and other duties
as a Director as well as the business and governance
practices of the Group. Such programmes are tailor made
for each Director taking into account their background
and expertise.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR
DIRECTORS (Continued)

All Directors participated in a briefing session jointly
organized by the Group and qualified professionals
engaged by the Group with the purpose to develop and
refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills on 23 March
2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Directors
participated in the following training:

BEEZBIR<E S

PREFEN_ZTAF=A-+=HZ2HE
HAKEREMREZABEBREXALHR
EhzENEg EUBRMEREFZANE
R %BE °

REBEEZ2-_Z—RAF=A=+—HBItFERN "
FEEGLETIE

Type of training

Name of Director EEHA IR
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Cheng Yang BigtE A, B
Mr. Tsoi Tung Bt A B
Ms. Lei Lei BEXRL A B
Mr. Huang Ranfei B|ARIELAE A, B
Mr. Li Weipeng TERERE A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. So Tat Keung BREBR A A,
Mr. Yang Rusheng BanAE S A A, B
Mr. Tong Jingguo KBEEEE A B
A: attending seminars, briefing sessions, conferences A HEWSE Ehe - exk SGRiE

and/or forums
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating
to the economy and/or general business etc.

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and
thereafter on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the
number and nature of offices held by such Director in
public companies and organizations and other significant
commitments.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established with
specific written terms of reference which was revised
and adopted on 6 March 2015. As at 31 March 2015, the
remuneration committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tong Jingguo
(chairman), Mr. Yang Rusheng and Mr. So Tat Keung.

The remuneration committee is responsible for
formulating and making recommendations to the Board
regarding the overall remuneration policy, remuneration
of Directors and senior management of the Group, share
option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other
compensation-related issues. This committee consults
with the chairman on its proposals and recommendations
and has access to professional advice if deemed
necessary. The remuneration committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge and perform its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration
committee is posted on the Company’'s website. The
remuneration committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the remuneration
committee held three meetings, during which the
committee members reviewed the remuneration
packages and benefits of the Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established with specific
written terms of reference which was revised and
adopted on 30 August 2013. As at 31 March 2015, the
nomination committee consists of one executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Cheng Yang (chairman), Mr. Tong Jingguo and Mr.

Yang Rusheng.

The duties of the nomination committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board annually, making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’'s corporate strategy, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
selecting individuals nominated for directorship,
assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive officer.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination
committee is posted on the Company’'s website. The
nomination committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the nomination committee
held three meetings, during which the committee
members reviewed the composition of the Board and
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with
specific written terms of reference which was revised
and adopted on 6 March 2015. Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules requires that the audit committee must comprise
a minimum of three members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors and at least one
member must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The main duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the compliance officer or external auditor before
submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system and
associated procedures.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its
specific terms of reference which is posted on the
Company’s website. The audit committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge and perform its
duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

As at 31 March 2015, the audit committee consists
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tong Jingguo (chairman), Mr. Yang Rusheng and
Mr. So Tat Keung. No member of the audit committee
is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the
Company within one year on the date of his ceasing
to be a partner or had any financial interest in the
auditing firm. The audit committee has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the management team of the Company.
During the year under reivew, the audit committee held
two meetings to review the Group's annual report and
interim report.

The audit committee has also reviewed the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, report on the
Company’s internal control and risk management review
and processes as well as the re-appointment of the
external auditor. There is no material uncertainty relating
to events and conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
There is no disagreement between the Board and the
audit committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Company's annual report for the year ended 31
March 2015 has been reviewed by the audit committee.
The accounts for the year were audited by BDO Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The audit committee has
recommended to the Board that BDO Limited be
nominated for appointment as the auditor of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings. In line with practices consistent
with Board meetings and other committee meetings,
draft and final version of audit committee meeting
minutes are circulated to all members of the audit
committee for comments, approval and record as soon
as practicable after each meeting.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company considered diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversified perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits of the selected candidates and their contribution

to the Board.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the remuneration
in respect of audit services provided by the auditors,
BDO Limited, amounted to HK$2,090,000 (2014:
HK$2,415,000). For non-audit services, the fees
amounted to approximately HK$358,000 (2014:
HK$1,221,800).

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (“Code of Conduct”)
on terms no less than the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code. All Directors have
confirmed that, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, they have complied with the Code of Conduct
adopted by the Company throughout the year under

review.
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RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements, which give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group. The auditor is
responsible to form an independent opinion on the
audited financial statements and report the same to the
shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been
established and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions including but not
limited to developing and reviewing the Company's
policies and practices on corporate governance,
reviewing and monitoring training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the audit committee are responsible for
maintaining sound and effective internal control systems
to safeguard the assets of the Company, shareholders’
interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of
such systems from time to time. The Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system,
covering financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions during the year under
review.

In such review, the Board has considered factors
such as changes since the last review, incidence of
significant control failings and weaknesses identified
and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations

including the Listing Rules.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the
overall strategic development of the Group’s business.
All Directors have formal letters of appointment setting
out key terms and conditions of their appointment. Due
to the diversity and volume of the Group's business,
responsibility in relation to the daily operations and
execution of the strategic business plans are delegated
to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee,
have specific terms of reference setting out the
authorities and responsibilities of the respective
committee. All committees are required by their terms
of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before
taking any actions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board will review, on a yearly basis, all delegations
by the Board to different committees to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate and continue to be beneficial
to the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’
and Officers’ Liability to provide adequate cover, as
determined by the Board, in respect of the Board
members and senior management of the Company.
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ESERHICER

EFECTRANASEXTZEERBHRR
FHRE - 2REFTHALARETE  JIH
HZE2EBERRGEN - ARAKE XD
EZTCRES  ARRBUEEBAEZAE
BIERATTZETEBRTARE ZEERE -

mMEZER(NEZZE8E  FHEZES LR
HEREE)HEEAERERE  JHASZES
ZEONEE FIEZESHARERER
BzRERERE  HRANEBEARNES
ERE ARETHEBRT  EERIEMR
TERRRES S -

EERERRE
EERSFERNEFCHRTAZEG LM
BHN BRZSEEENDERE I
BHANREEAEF -

ESRSABEE IR

ARPIEEREFEIRERARAEES
KRERERERERBESLFABEET
@ AR AREE o



& ¥ ERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level
of transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders.
The commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can
be reflected in various aspects.

To maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders,
the annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

The deputy chief executive officer attended the annual
general meeting in 2014 (“2014 Annual General
Meeting”) so as to ensure that shareholders’ views were
communicated to the Board. A separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate
issue at the annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are
reviewed from time to time to ensure that the Company
conforms to the best corporate governance practices.
The circular in relation to the arrangement of annual
general meeting will be circulated to all shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the holding of the
annual general meeting, in which it sets out the details of
each resolution proposed and other relevant information.
At the 2014 Annual General Meeting, all resolutions
were put to vote by poll. Tricor Secretaries Limited, the
Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, was
engaged as scrutineer to ensure votes were properly
counted. The rights of shareholders and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolutions at general meeting
are contained in the Bye-laws. An explanation of the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll is provided to
the shareholders at the commencement of the meeting.
The chairman would respond to queries raised by the
shareholders regarding the voting procedures. The poll
results are published in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, shareholder(s) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitions
themselves may do so in accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Companies Act of Bermuda.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders
through its annual and interim reports. The Directors,
company secretary or other appropriate members of
senior management also respond promptly to inquiries
from shareholders and investors.

Shareholders may at any time serve their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of company secretary
at Rooms 2501-05, 25th Floor, China Resources Building,
No. 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and
timely disclosure of corporate information to shareholders
and investors. The Company updates shareholders
on its latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual and interim reports and
notices, announcements and circulars. The Company's
website (http://www.tricor.com.hk/WebService/000674/)
provides a communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

During the year under review, there had been no
significant change made to the Company’s constitutional
documents.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance
is significant in strengthening investor confidence and
attracting investment. The management will devote
considerable effort to strengthening and improving the
standards of the corporate governance of the Group. Any
views and suggestions from the shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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|IBDO

EEE © +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
(XL BRRERR AT

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Culture Landmark Investment Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 61 to 215, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2015
and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P05443

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-T-—RAF=A=+—HItFE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-a%¥ —T-mE
Notes HK$ HK$
et B BT
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Turnover BER 7 141,378,969 224,247,041
Other income and gains E U A R Mz 8 7,321,418 30,400,017
Costs of inventories FEKE (9,152,937) (1,183,575)
Depreciation on property, plant ~ ¥% - BiER&RHZITE
and equipment (13,298,088) (19,071,442)
Amortisation iR 9 (23,994,665) (28,495,327)
Impairment losses BEEE 9 (336,346,196) (16,121,300)
Operating lease payments KE A TR (45,917,744) (52,455,152)
Staff costs BIHA 11 (52,682,825) (78,167,700)
Other operating expenses Hieamz (135,588,290) (166,767,616)
Share of profits/(losses) of DIEEE N RRF, (E18)
associates 616,346 (6,508,682)
Finance costs BB KA 13 (4,313,268) (13,275,762)
Loss before income tax credit/  MFETEHE R,/ (F) A0
(expense) i 9 (471,977,280) (127,399,498)
Income tax credit/(expense) FTissiEe,/ (Fx) 14 21,417,725 (1,5626,529)
Loss for the year from AEEFEREXKZEFR
continuing operations (450,559,555) (128,926,027)
Discontinued operation BRIEETR
Loss for the year from AEEERIEEBZER
discontinued operation 10 — (11,055,4471)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRAE 2 40(d) - 79,446,079
Profit for the year from REEERIEEB 2 HF
discontinued operation — 68,390,638
Loss for the year rFEEBR (450,559,555) (60,535,389)
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‘} CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A sz--nrsA=t-BLERE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-a%¥ —T-mE
Notes HK$ HK$
et B BT
Other comprehensive income  HfttZ2mEU
Items that will not be TEENsEEBEHEZER
reclassified to profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of properties Ef4¥E 2 iz 18 654,096 746,459
Tax expense related to changes AHEEMELSH
on revaluation of properties IAR 36 (107,925) (123,166)
Items that may be reclassified HZTRKEHFIEZE
subsequently to profit or loss B ZEH
Exchange differences arising on #EGINEFREELE
translating foreign operations & HZ5 (6,203,495) (2,018,877)
Available-for-sale investments, AEHERE -
change in fair value NEEEEH 25 & 27 (177,984,369) 26,889,435
Available-for-sale investments,  AIEHERE - mEREHN
reclassify from equity to PEEBER
profit or loss 25 147,964,021 449,120
Release of foreign exchange PHEH B R 71 R
reserve upon disposal AN & 40(a),
of subsidiaries (d) (471,831) (59,156,406)
Release of foreign exchange R ERE R EEER
reserve upon impairment loss eI
on available-for-sale investments (4,775,996) —
Reclassification adjustment for ~ FEHES A HEEREREIR
realisation upon disposal of MmEL 2 EF D EHE
available-for-sale investments 2,681,793 —
Other comprehensive income ARNEEH M2 HEKE
for the year, net of tax (B HMKkHE) (38,243,706) (33,213,435)
Total comprehensive income AEE2XHEHWFHEE
for the year (488,803,261) (93,748,824)

62 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED NIt EREBERAR



%éé@&ﬁ%ﬂ

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HE-FT-AF=A=t+—ALFE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—B-HF —ZE—mF
Notes HK$ HK$
M B BT
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{5AEEEE : 17
Owners of the Company AREEEBA (445,229,478) (52,291,302)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (5,330,077) (8,244,087)
(450,559,555) (60,535,389)
Total comprehensive income EEANFERXHEKSHELE :
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARHER A (481,783,516) (83,347,170)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR R (7,019,745) (10,401,654)
(488,803,261) (93,748,824)
Loss per share from continuing BFELLEEK 2 ERERE
operations 17
Basic (HK cents) EARGEA) (70.06) (20.26)
Diluted (HK cents) s OB (70.06) (20.26)
Earnings per share from CRIEEBZESRER
discontinued operation 17
Basic (HK cents) EARCEW) - 11.53
Diluted (HK cents) BBl - 11.53
Loss per share from continuing FEEERCRIEEK 2
and discontinued operations  EREE 17
Basic (HK cents) EHARCGEW) (70.06) (8.73)
Diluted (HK cents) g OB) (70.06) (8.73)
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 E-REER
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mEMBRRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-_E—RAF=—A=+—H
As at 31 March 2015

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
—E—1F —FE-MEF
=A=+-—H —A=+—H
Notes HK$ HK$
Biat BT BT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #% - &= M RE 18 127,346,754 74,859,922
Investment properties TEYE 19 6,326,550 6,199,271
Goodwill BES 21 — 96,019,091
Intangible assets EILEE 22 1,022,728 129,654,080
Interests in associates iRl o ey 24 - 56,625,703
Available-for-sale investments  A[ SR E 25 21,268,209 204,732,204
Convertible loan notes MR ERER 27 - 3,569,000
Deferred tax assets EETHIAE E 36 1,640,340 —
Total non-currentassets  FA@&ELAE 157,604,581 571,659,271
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 28 31,450,492 33,449,819
Trade and other receivables JE WU R R E MR8 29 197,466,828 196,319,683
Deferred expenditure BEIER S 26 - 3,929,687
Amounts due from non- JE U FE T IS A AR IE
controlling shareholders 30 4,049 472,706
Amounts due from related JEU B A T
parties 30 261,828 1,622,672
Amount due from an associate FEUER: &N T FIE 30 — 4,322,138
Cash and bank balances fﬁi&fﬁﬁm 31 109,558,313 173,820,122
Total curentassets  AmBEESE 338741510 413,936,827
Total assets ~ #E®E 496,346,091 985596,098
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REEE
Trade, bills and other payables [EfTEZR - ZiE L E I8 32 92,253,338 80,518,963
Amounts due to non- JEAS FEE I A AR IE
controlling shareholders 30 53,594,160 97,794,653
Amounts due to related parties [EEEA LA 30 43,894,302 35,023,051
Bank borrowings RITEE 33 33,922,913 29,569,384
Other borrowings HiEE 34 — 39,640,500
Deferred income PFEIEWA 504,993 504,382
Current tax liabilities RITHIEBEE 2,278,096 3,113,333
Total current liabilities B AEATE 226,447,802 286,164,266
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED EREERDR



mEMBRRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R-T-—HF=FA=+—H

As at 31 March 2015

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
—E—1F —FE-MEF
=A=+-—H —A=+—H
Notes HK$ HK$
wizt BT B
Net current assets REBEEFE 112,293,708 127,772,561
Total assets less current EEHAERARBERS
liabilities 269,898,289 699,431,832
Non-current liabilities *kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITEE 33 26,385,890 —
Provision for long service RHIRE S B
payments 35 42,373 42,373
Deferred income PEIEUA 3,727,265 4,227,134
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFHIHAE 36 - 12,561,503
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EREE 30,155,528 16,831,010
Total liabilities BEAE 256,603,330 302,995,276
NET ASSETS EEFE 239,742,761 682,600,822
Capital and reserves KAREEAEMLZ
attributable to owners of R RS
the Company
Share capital & As 37 35,925,952 29,938,352
Reserves ] 221,977,593 655,506,241
257,903,545 685,444,593
Non-controlling interests FEERER (18,160,784) (2,843,771)
TOTAL EQUITY SR 239,742,761 682,600,822
On behalf of the Board REXESFES
Tsoi Tung Lei Lei
=35 i

Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-_E—RAF=—A=+—H
As at 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-AEF —E—E
Notes HK$ HK$
BiaE BT BT
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
_ Interests in subsidiaries | MEAR M@ 23 155,352,347 473,413,178
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from JE LB /8 2 |) k08
subsidiaries 23 476,675,533 770,085,955
Other receivables H b el k8 29 110,005,201 112,070,239
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBHeEEIER 31 50,075,906 8,631,546
Total currentassets  p#=E®E 636,756,640 890,787,740
Total assets ~  ®E#E 792108987 1364200918
Liabilities =N
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H b e 3RIR 32 2,330,808 1,584,801
Amounts due to subsidiaries  ENTHIB A FTFKIE 23 598,098,816 732,126,551
Other borrowings HEMEE 34 — 26,640,500
Total current liabilities MENB (G4 600,429,624 760,351,852
Net current assets ~ "BEEFE 0 36,327,016 130,435,888
Total assets less current EEHABERRBEE
liabilities 191,679,363 603,849,066
NET ASSETS EERE 191,679,363 603,849,066
Capital and reserves R 1S
Share capital (N 37 35,925,952 29,938,352
Reserves 1 38 155,753,411 573,910,714
TOTAL EQUITY R 191,679,363 603,849,066
On behalf of the Board REESFS
Tsoi Tung Lei Lei
Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer
TTIRAE SITTB AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-T-—RAF=A=+—HItFE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Equity
Employee Other attributable
share-based  properties Foreign  Investment to owners Non-
Share Share Other  Contributed compensation ~revaluation  exchange revaluation Accumulated ofthe  controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve surplus reserve reserve resrve reserve losses ~ Company ~interests equity
Wheixfz A% KRAREA
Ba  ROEE EMEE  BAB% EEEMRE  EMRE  NERE REEMER  EZEEE  RGRE FEREE  REME
fnote37)  (note 38)  Inote 3) fnote 38 fnote 38)  (note 38 (note 38 (note 36) note 36)
Wzy) (k) (WEm) o (hEse)  (BRwm) (BEw)  (kE%s) (REm) (hEs)
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A A AT A A A A AT A b:13 A A
At Apr 2014 29938352 202421703 (95365361 28784000 9376692 6347123 35,186,935  27,338555 (1,380,378806] 685444593  [2.843771) 682,600,822
Loss for the year TERRE - - - - - - - ~ (445,229478) (445,209478)  (5,330,077) (450,559,555)
(Gain on revaluaton of propertes fnote 18]~ [ - - - - - 65409 - - - 65409 - 65409
Exchange differences arising on translating )
foreign operations - - - - - - (4513820) - - (451382) (1,689,668  (6,203,495)
Avalable-for-sele investments, change in far
value fnote 25 & 27) - - - - - - - (177,984,369) - (177,984,369) - (177,984,369)
Avalable-for-sale ivestments, reclassiy
from equity to profit or loss (note 25) - - - - - - - 147,964,021 - 147,964,021 - 147,964,021
Tax expense related to changes on
revaluation of properties (note 36 - - - - - (10792 - - - (10792 - (107929
Release o foreign exchange reserve upon
disposal of subsidaries (note 40l ) - - - - - - angs) - - ns) - ms
Release of foregn exchange reserve upon FEHERRKARIERR
mpaitment loss on avalable-forsales
nvestment - - - - - - (4775,99) - - [4775,99%) - (4775,99%)
Reclasiatons acjusiment fo realiaion B ETRHEREESRMIL 28R
upon disposal of avalable-forale b
investments - - - - - - - 2681793 - 2681793 - 2681793
Total comprehensive income 1] - - - - - 546,171 (9,761,654 (27,338,595) (445,229,478) (481,783,516)  (7,019,745) (488,803,261)
Issuance of ordinary shares (note 37) & 5,987,600 53,888,400 - - - - - - - 59,876,000 - 59,876,000
Share issue expenses R - [1,854,178) - - - - - - - [1.854,176) - [1,854,176)
Aeauistion o adional nteest n & WEHEL
subsidary (note 41(a) - - [3,779,356) - - - - - - (379356 1963149 (1,816,207
Disposalof subsidiaries (note 40) - - - - - - - - - - (10,260417)  (10,260,417)
At31 Merh 2015 35925952 2076251327 (99,144717) 28784000 937669 689329 25425281 - [1825,608,284) 257,903,545  (18,160,784] 239,742,761
At April 2013 29938352 2024217103 (87.976,712) 28784000 5698000 5723830 94,204,651 — [1,333,785,504) 766803720 5,597,141 772,400,861
Loss for the year - - - - - - - — (229130 (52,291,302 (8,244,087) 160,535,389
(Gain on revaluation of propeties (note 18] - - - - - 746,459 - - - 746,459 - 746,459
Exchange differences arising on translating
foreign operations - - - - - - 138,690 - - 138690 (2157567 (2018877
Avalable-for-sale investments, change in far
value frote 25 & 27) - - - - - - — 688943 - 2688943 — 2688943
Avalable-for-sale investments, reclassiy
from equity to profit or loss (note 25 - = = = - - - 449120 - 49120 - 449120
Tx expense related to changes on
revaluation of praperties (note 36 - - - - - (123786) - - - (123766) - (1237660
Release o foreign exchange reserve upon
disposal of subsidiaries (ote 40(c) - - - - - —  (69,156,406] - —  (9,156,406) — (59,156,406]
Total comprehiensive income LENEEE . - - - — 63293 (907Gl 27338555 (52291302 (83,347,070 (10401,654) (93,748824)
Equitysettled sharehased transactons ~~ RERENKRRR 3
note 39) - - - - 937669 - - - - 937669 - 937669
Share options forfeited (note 39 - - - — (5,698,000 - - — 569000 - - -
Acquistion of additonal interest n a
subsidiary (ot 41(0) - - (7.388649) - - - - - — (1388649 259392 (4793,267)
Disposel of subsidris (note 401}, (), o) £ EREAT Azl ) (0) - - - - - - - - - — (14528907 (14528907)
Capita contrbutons by non-contoling equty HEAZZEAHERREA L
holders of subsidaries - - - - - - - - - — 13804257 13,894,257
At31 Merh 2014 29938352 202421703 (95365361 28784000 9376692 6347123 35,186,935 27338555 (1,380,378806] 685444593  [2843771) 682,600,822
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REBRERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZT—

AF=ZA=+T—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—E-RE —Pu4F
Notes HK$ HK$
Biit B BT
Cash flows from operating REEBEIHERE
activities
Net cash used in operations KEEBFACR SR 43 (54,197,927) (15,477,120)
Interest received BUF B 1,272,737 2,251,425
Tax paid A (213,009) (2,068,354)
Net cash used in operating EEEEFAZHESTE
activities (53,138,199) (15,294,049)
Cash flows from investing RETHZHESRE
activities
Disposal of subsidiaries, net HEWE QR (2R
of cash disposed HEZRS) 40 (31,378,912) 152,364,462
Deposits for acquisition of WENB AR ZEE
subsidiaries — (110,000,000)
Increase of bank pledged HRITH T FRIG 0
deposit 31 (9,243,655) —
Increase of restricted cash X R HIRITIR &1 00
at banks - (13,813,351)
(Increase)/decrease in JE U FE47E AR % B3R 3K
amount due from non- (&), F
controlling shareholders (85,495) 352,574
Decrease in amount due FEU B A 5K
from related parties A 1,360,844 1,330,861
Purchases of property, plant BEWE  BEREE
and equipment (66,787,464) (29,035,891)
Proceeds from disposal HEME - BEREZHZ
of property, plant and FriS kI8
equipment 97,998 163,693
Proceeds from disposal HERE AR (2 Mk
of associate net of cash FItEZRE) 2
disposed Fr8 308 55,904,267 —
Proceeds from disposal of ﬁETTﬁHyJ HEEZ
convertible loan notes FriS®E 3,413,000 —
Purchase of investment Eﬁﬁxé%%
properties - (6,199,271)
Investment of films in HEBERER
progress - (10,370,981)
Proceeds from disposal of EE’%’J{’E'#‘ B
films in progress SIEE S 22,444,074 3,873,499
Proceeds from disposal o B ] Hj%&;éz
of available-for-sale FriS 308
investments 999,680 4,133,140
Deferred expenditure paid EATIELER - (3,844,412)
Net cash used in investing REFEFAZ
activities HEeFEH (23,275,663) (11,045,677)
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED SRAERAR



RERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BHE-Z-RF=A=1T—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
—®B-4f —E-mEF
Notes HK$ HK$
Bzt BT BT
Cash flows from financing RMELTBHZHERE
activities
Increase in bank loans RITIEE AN 72,132,430 60,434,937
Repayment of bank loans EERTEE (41,393,011) (37,518,189)
Interest paid [SXRRES) (4,313,268) (10,210,360)
Proceed from issue of BITE @A 7 A58
ordinary shares 59,876,000 —
Expenses paid for TIRERN 2
subscription of shares (1,854,176) —
Acquisition of additional W B A A 2 BB ME =
interests in subsidiaries — (5,000,000)
Increase/(decrease) in JETRE:E A T FIB
amounts due to related g, CRA)
parties 8,871,251 (41,290)
Decrease in amounts JE - FEIEAR AR R
due to non-controlling SIER
shareholders (7,119,606) —
Increase in other borrowings HAtb & &N — 18,990,000
Repayment in other EEHMEES
borrowings (26,640,500) (28,922,827)
Net cash generated from/ MEFBHEL (A2
(used in) financing HEFHE
activities 59,559,120 (2,267,729)
Net decrease in cash and ReRELEEEERD
cash equivalents HHE (16,854,742) (28,607,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at RFEHIzHEREEEE
beginning of year HE 118,241,763 146,994,834
Effect of exchange rate ERFHEINSRIASEE
changes on cash and HEZ#&
cash equivalents (1,072,363) (145,616)
Cash and cash equivalents at RFRzRERBLEE
end of year HE 100,314,658 118,241,763
Analysis of the balances of RE&ERBELZEEEH 2&E
cash and cash equivalents Akl
Cash and cash equivalents FFARES RIRTTHES IR
included in cash and bank + MRS EEIEHR
balances 31 100,314,658 118,241,763
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 T REEY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ —E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

T EEELE:
i
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GENERAL
Culture Landmark Investment Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company

incorporated in Bermuda. Its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its registered office and
principal place of business are at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and
Rooms 2501-2505, 25th Floor, China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
respectively.

The Company is engaged in investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 23. The Company and its subsidiaries
are collectively referred to as the "Group”.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
disposed its existing hotel operation business.
Accordingly, the comparative consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and the related
notes have been represented as if the operation
discontinued during the year had been discontinued
at the beginning of the comparative period.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND AMENDED

RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING

OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE (“LISTING RULES")

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2014

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011)

The adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs has
no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND AMENDED
RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING
OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE (“LISTING RULES") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following revised standards, amendments
and interpretations which are relevant to
the Group have been issued, but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning on
1 April 2014 and have not yet been early
adopted.

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements 2010-2012

Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle'

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements 2012-2014
Cycle®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®

Amendments to HKAS 16  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture’
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning, or
transactions occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2018

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

—ET-hRAF=A=+—H
31 March 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND AMENDED

RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING

OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE (“LISTING RULES") (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle,
2011-2013 Cycle and 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-
urgent changes to a number of standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment to clarify how the gross carrying
amount and accumulated depreciation are
treated where an entity uses the revaluation
model. The carrying amount of the asset is
restated to revalued amount. The accumulated
depreciation may be eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset.
Alternatively, the gross carrying amount may
be adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset
and the accumulated depreciation is adjusted
to equal the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount after
taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-AF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed
to further encourage companies to apply
professional judgement in determining what
information to disclose in their financial
statements. For example, the amendments
make clear that materiality applies to the
whole of financial statements and that the
inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit
the usefulness of financial disclosures.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
companies should use professional judgement
in determining where and in what order
information is presented in the financial
disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
— Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the
use of a revenue-based depreciation method
for items of property, plant and equipment.
The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that amortisation
based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be
rebutted if either the intangible asset is
expressed as a measure of revenue or revenue
and the consumption of the economic benefits
of the intangible asset are highly correlated.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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EXCHANGE (“LISTING RULES") (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) CHEMGEEKRERZEHT RIEET
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) AND AMENDED

RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING
OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE (“LISTING RULES") (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial
assets. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows (the business model test) and that have
contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost.
Debt instruments that meet the contractual
cash flow characteristics test are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity's
business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial
assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss
impairment model for all financial assets not
measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND AMENDED
RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING
OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE (“LISTING RULES") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except
for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS
9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 —
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains
or losses to be recognised when an entity
sells or contributes assets to its associate or
joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in
full, conversely when the transaction involves
assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
venture or associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND AMENDED

RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING

OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE (“LISTING RULES") (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle
of the framework is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a b steps
approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: ldentify the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation
Recognise revenue when
each performance obligation is
satisfied

° Step b:

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on
particular revenue related topics that may
change the current approach taken under
HKFRS. The standard also significantly
enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of these
pronouncements and the Directors so far concluded
that they are not yet in a position to quantify the
effects of application of other new/revised HKFRSs
on the Group's financial statements.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND AMENDED
RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING
OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE (“LISTING RULES") (Continued)

(c)

Disclosures of possible impacts on financial
statements on initial adoption of the
amended Listing Rules

The amended Listing Rules in relation to
the presentation and disclosures in financial
statements, including the amendments with
reference to the new Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622 (the New Ordinance), will first apply
to the Company in its financial year ending
on 31 March 2016. The Directors consider
that there will be no impact on the Group's
financial position or performance. However
the amendments to Listing Rules would have
impacts on the presentation and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRS, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the "HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Listing Rules.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain
properties, convertible loan notes and available-
for-sale investments, which are measured at
revalued amount or fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same
as the functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of
the Group.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTM

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising
from business combinations whose acquisition
dates preceded 1 April 2010 (i.e. the date the
Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been
accounted for in accordance with the transition
requirements in the standard. Such balances
are not adjusted upon first application of the
standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments
to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.
Changes in the Group's interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (1) power
over the investee, (2) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (3) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be
a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTM

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither
a subsidiary nor a joint venture. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over
those policies. Associates are accounted for
using the equity method whereby they are
initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group's share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that
losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is
an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions
between the Group and its associates are
recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor’'s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the

associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above
the fair value of the Group’'s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate and the
entire carrying amount of the investment is
subject to impairment test, by comparing the
carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
which is higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Goodwill and gain on a bargain purchase

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being
the excess of the aggregate of a consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed.

identifiable
assets acquired, liabilities and contingent

Where the fair value of

liabilities assumed exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess, which is the
gain on a bargain purchase, is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings, other than hotel
property, are stated at revalued amount, being
the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. As the fair value of the land cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, the land portion is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease. Fair value is
determined by the Directors of the Company
based on independent valuations which
are performed periodically. The valuations
are on the basis of open market value. The
Directors of the Company review the carrying
value of the leasehold land and buildings and
adjustment is made where they consider that
there has been a material change. Increases in
value arising on revaluation are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under other properties revaluation
reserve. Decreases in value arising on
revaluation are first offset against increases
on earlier valuations in respect of the same
property and are thereafter recognised in
profit or loss. Any subsequent increases are
recognised in profit or loss up to the amount
previously charged and thereafter to the other
properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal of leasehold land and buildings,
the relevant portion of the other properties
revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is released from the other
properties revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The hotel property and other items of property,
plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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‘} NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ —E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The useful lives
are as follows:

Hotel buildings in PRC 5 years
Leasehold land and 40 years
buildings

Leasehold improvements  Over lease terms
of 2-16 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3-5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Yacht 10 years

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and
its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit
or loss on disposal.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Intangible assets

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives as follows:

Provision of copyright 8 years
licence fees settlement
and collection services
Provision of intellectual 11 years
property enforcement
services
Golf club memberships 12 years,
indefinite
Customer relationship and 10 years

customer contracts

Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that they may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset

is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, to the extent
that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are
tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired
(note 4(r)).
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment property
is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change
therein recognised in profit or loss.

Payments for leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases

Payments for leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases represent up-
front payments to acquire long-term interests
in lessee-occupied properties in PRC. These
payments are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on a straight-line
basis as an expense.

Deferred expenditure

Deferred expenditure represents non-
refundable payments to copyright holders for
their share of operating profits from the co-
operation business to collect licence fees
from karaoke operators in PRC. The deferred
expenditure is initially recognised at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, deferred
expenditure is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for deferred expenditure
is provided on a straight-line basis over the co-
operation period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense,
over the term of the lease.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial
assets at initial recognition, depending
on the purpose for which the asset
was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other
financial assets are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial
asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within
the time frame established generally
by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services
to customers (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual
monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—T-HFZA=1-H

31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale investments

These assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not included
in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in
profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unguoted
equity instruments, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment
losses.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

ANNUAL REPORT

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor's financial
difficulty; and

° it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of
financial asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When any
part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectable, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant
financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in
the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For available-for-sale investments

Where a decline in the fair value
constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss.

An impairment losses on available-for-
sale debt investments are subsequently
reversed in profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment,
any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment
that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss is not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities are initially recognised
at fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised within “finance costs” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Gains or losses recognised in the
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)
(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial
asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer
meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

(I) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the first-
in first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEGSTTBEE)
(Continued)
(m) Revenue recognition (m) WERER

Revenue from licence fee collection business
is recognised when services are performed.

Compensation for infringement of music
licence is recognised when the right to
receive the compensation is established and
it is probable that the Group will receive the
compensation.

Hotel room revenue is recognised when hotel
rooms are occupied.

Revenue from exhibition and related service is
recognised when the exhibition is completed
and related services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases/facility
sharing income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease/
agreement.

Revenue from entertainment services
including artist management is recognised
when services are rendered.

Revenue from musical works is recognised
when the Group's entitlement to such
payments has been established which is upon
the delivery of the master copy or materials to
the customers.

Revenue from restaurants is recognised when
food and beverages are sold and services are
provided.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

ANNUAL REPORT

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which is at the time of delivery and the title is
passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current
tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled
and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Income taxes (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred
tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of these investment properties
at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities
in currencies other than the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
they operate (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense
items of foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
at the average exchange rates for the vyear,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating, to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All
assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in the profit
or loss of group entities’ separate or individual
financial statements on the translation of
long-term monetary items forming part of
the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised
in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to the profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the
foreign exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected costs of profit-sharing and
bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for profit-sharing and bonus
plans are expected to be settled within
12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
on the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment
of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—T-HFZA=1-H

31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Post-employment benefits

Retirement benefits to employees
are provided through several defined
contribution plans.

The Group adopts a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong
for all employees of its subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries but subject to
a cap in accordance with the statutory
requirement and are recognised in
profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The Group has recorded provisions for
long service payments for employees
who had completed the required number
of years of service under Hong Kong's
Employment Ordinance for whom
the Group is obligated to pay long
service payment on termination of their
employment.

The employees of the Group's
subsidiaries that operate in PRC are
required to participate in a government-
managed retirement benefit schemes.
These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a fixed cost per employee
to the government-managed retirement
benefit schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become
payable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to
employees, the fair value of the options at the
date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of
each reporting period so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesting period is based on the number
Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair

of options that eventually vest.

value of the options granted. As long as
all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a
charge is made irrespective of whether the
market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure
to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options
are modified before they vest, the increase
in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification,
is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to
persons other than employees, the profit or
loss is charged with the fair value of goods
or services received unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised.
For cash settled share based payments, a
liability is recognised at the fair value of the
goods or services received.
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31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

° intangible assets;

° payments for leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases;

° investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except for those
classified as held for sale;

o deferred expenditure; and

o film rights and film in progress.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater
of the fair value less costs to sell and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that HKFRS.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, which will probably
result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

—ET-hRAF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

4, FEESTTHE®)

(r)

(s)

HitvEERE(E)

HREBEERERER  ZEEZ
REERENEEATKESEZ
RASET AR BN 2 BRE(E T
BHBLHETFELERZEER
RBEEENRERETE 2 REE -
B & 18 2 Bl BN fEI A TSR
FRIFEREERIES — BB KR
SRUREESEINER - R&BER
T BEBRZBOSIRERE
ZEBYBHREER 2 BB
B -

BERIREE

IAEEEEE 2 EHAAERE
HEEET METHEBEEER
AT RESI BRI A At 2 BB MR
h- RlgmREERBEXEE LA
AR -

ETARFEEALENRRL
e REAR G ZEER
BEAIREE  FRIFELLERN
s Z AT BEEARIE - RIVERIGR
MEE RIS RARREHREHR
EMEEFE CBERTIRREE
BRIAAE  BRIFEELENS
M Z AT REME AR

)

107



108

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Related parties

(i)

(ii)

A person or a close member of that

person’s family is related to the Group if

that person:

has control or joint control of the

has significant influence over the

(a)

Group;
(b)

Group; or
(c)

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions apply:

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if

any of the following conditions apply:
(Continued)

(e)

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(i);

A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or

domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or

domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that

person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTM

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted
from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are recognised as deferred income in
consolidated statement of financial position
and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Provision are made for costs which
are in excess of the expected future revenue
generated by these films. Costs of films are
transferred to film rights upon completion.

At the end of each reporting period, both
internal and external market information
is considered to assess whether there is
any indication that film rights and films in
progress are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimates are evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The key assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(a) Fair value of investment properties and
leasehold land and buildings

The fair value of the investment properties and
leasehold land and buildings are determined
by independent valuers on an open market
value for existing use basis. In making their
judgment, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of reporting
period, by reference to recent market
transactions and appropriate capitalisation
rates based on an estimation of the rental
income. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual
transactions entered into by the Group.

(b) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment and
will revise depreciation charges when useful
lives differ from previous estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

(e)

Impairment test of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Impairment loss on intangible assets

Determining whether an intangible asset is
impaired requires an estimation of the future
cash flow and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

Impairment loss on loans and receivables

The policy for impairment of loans and
receivables of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of the loans and receivables and
on management’'s judgment. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these loans
and receivables, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional
impairment may be required.
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114

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EXREFHEREEMTRE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EMERIR#)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(f)  Impairment loss on deferred expenditure (f) EZEMZZBEEIR
The carrying amounts of deferred expenditure EEF Y 2 BREETYEEER - A
are reviewed periodically in order to assess B eEe SRk EEANRE
whether the recoverable amounts have HE - WBEHHIEREEETZ
declined below the carrying amounts. These EEEZEARRAEVEE IR
assets are tested for impairment whenever O AeZzEEEETRER
events or changes in circumstances indicate o WEAERB T RIREAES
that their recorded carrying amounts may BB =R U E £ %8 - FAEEE A 4L [E
not be recoverable. When such a decline has S AEMNSEE - REBK
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced BAFBERIRA S Z2ER  BEER
to recoverable amount. The Group uses all S REREBREREL 215t -
readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions.

SEGMENT REPORTING 6. DEHRE

Management determines operating segments
based on the reports regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker, which is the
Board, in assessing performance and allocating
resources. The chief operating decision maker
considers the business primarily on the basis of
the types of services supplied by the Group. The
Group is currently organised into six operating
divisions — licence fee collection and provision of
intellectual property enforcement services business,
exhibition-related business, property sub-leasing
business, property development and investment,
entertainment business and food and beverages.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Principal activities are as follows:

Licence fee collection —
and provision of
intellectual property
enforcement
services business

Exhibition-related —
business

Property sub-leasing —
business

Property development —
and investment

Entertainment —
business

Food and beverages —

provision of copyright licence
fees settlement and collection
services and intellectual
property enforcement services
in respect of karaoke copyright
in the Peoples’ Republic of
China (“PRC") as managed and
administered by the China Audio-
Video Copyright Association, the
sole official recognised national
audio-video organisation in PRC

organising all kinds of exhibition
events and meeting events

sub-leasing of properties in PRC

development of real properties and
leasing of investment properties

provision of talent management
and entertainment and travelling
related services

sale of food and beverages and
restaurant operations

()  The Group was also involved in the hotel

operation business. On 22 July 2013, the

Group ceased the hotel operation business as

detailed in note 10.
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31 March 2015

N

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment information is presented below:

(a) Information about reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
and other information

DERE ()

DEERZIMT

(a) ARAATHEI BWE  BFNIE
B -EERABZERRAMESR

2015
I5-1f
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
bt EEa BRIER
License fee
collection and
provision of
intellectual
property Property
enforcement  Exhibition- Property ~ development Inter-
services related  sub-leasing and Entertainment ~ Foodand  segment Hotel
business ~ business  business  investment  business  beverages  elimination  Subtotal  operation Total
KHRER
HEREH
HAERLR BE Iz ER bk .
EHEE  EEER  AEER RRE R4Sk £ i Mt EEER &8
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
23 43 23 -/ -7 )73 2 -/ V73 23
Reportable segment revenue TREAENE
External sales 5’\\%&% 39740199 66,712,740 33,586,207 - 604,164 735,659 - 141,378,969 - 141,378,969
Inter-segment sales AREHE - - - - - - - - - -
39740199 66,712,740 33,586,207 - 604,164 735,659 - 141378969 - 141,378,969
Reportable segment loss before RERRESATEE
income tax credit bk ] (182,541,766) ~ (25,735,652)  (122,261,776) (665.213)  (4,996,663) (5,444,091) - (341,635,161) - (341,635,161)
Other segment information EhAEEN
Interest income FEHA 335,822 102,500 1271 189 1401 36 - 452,121 - 452,121
Interest expenses R - - 3805261 - - - - 3805261 - 3805261
Depreciation of property, plant and % BERAESE
equipment 1,686,785 612215 6,966,567 630,022 40,932 629,962 - 10566483 - 10566483
Amortisation of intangible assets ERAEIRY 12183599 3,178,240 - - - - - 1536183 - 15361839
Amortisation of deferred expenditure BT R 8,632,826 - - - - - - 86386 - 866
G on disposal of property, plant and ~~ £ESTE - BEREREZ
equipment g 4083 - - - - - Y B
Reversal of impaiment s on other ~ EfENGIEZAEFEAR
receivables - - 121,716 - - - - 121,116 - 121,116
Impaitment loss on goodhil BEIHEER 79427363 - 16591728 - - - - 96,019,091 - 96,019,091
Inpaiment loss on imengbleassets  ERAR7HEER 68494202 19864005 - - - - - R - e
Impaiment loss on deferred expenditwe ~ EEEX 2 AERE 2,268,500 - - - - - - 268500 - 2268500

116 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEEHmEE)

(a) Information about reportable segment (a) EBUHREIEWRSE  BHAHE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B -EERABEZENRAEMER
and other information (Continued) (&

015
“%-1f
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
i BRLER
License fee
collection and
provision of
intellectual
property Property
enforcement  Exhibition- ~ Property development
services related  sub-leasing and Entertainment  Food and Inter-segment Hotel
business business business  investment businss  beverages elimination  Sub-total  operation Total
HHERA
hEREY
HRERER &R 0% DRERR 7EE
RERE  HERR  SEER RE peEx £ b Mt EEER a8
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A A A A7 A7 A7 A7 7 A A
Impaiment loss on avaible-for-sale AHLEREL REER
nvestrents - - %BU159 - - - - 98759 - 9BMU15%
Impaiment loss on other receivables UGB AERE 252,083 - 1484254 - - - - 3638 - T
Share of profits of associates ABEL AR - - - - 616,346 - - 616,346 - 616,346
Loss on disposal of subsidaries HENBLAZER 16,030,080 - - - - - - 16,030,080 - 16,030,080
Loss on disposal of associates hEBELALER - - - - o809 - - 2812809 - 2812809
Gain on deemed disposal of interestin ~ EfFHERBENA R
assocites, net Y& 58 - - - - 16M - - 16 - 116
Loss on disposal of convertble loan notes  HETHREHEF 2B - - - - 106148 - - 106143 - 106147
Reportable segment assets TREAREE 56,944443 34620005 122685084 119361973 2719783 35,332,897 - 371,664,185 - 371,664,185
Expenditure for reportable TREAEETEAE RN
segment non-current assets 7,685,184 - BI2465 2668714 619,304 - - 68198454 - 08198454
Reportable segment libltes TREARER 19490176 13851708 153,231,955 - 5532 10,858 - 25570019 - 252570019
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. ZEHER
(a) Information about reportable segment (a) EFBEAUTHE>EWE  RANHE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B -EEREBZERRHEMER
and other information (Continued) (&
2014
nE
Discontinued
Continuing opgretons operation
REAERE BREER
License fee
collection and
provision of
intellectual
property Property
enforcement Exhibition- Property  development Inter-
senvices related  sub-leasing and  Entertainment Food and segment Hotel
busingss husingss busingss~~ investment business ~ beverages  elimination Sub-total operation Total
RN
i : )
Ty 7 BE Ed £ ) A8 ) -
RExR BExR AEXH Jitiv ez £ b | it BRzH 4%
i fit fit o Hs Hs Hs s Hs
A A AT AT AT & A A AL AL
Reportable segment revenue TREARNE
External sales S 87012992 66243406 64,895,784 - 3152388 294241 — 24704 12,489,056 236,736,097
Inter-segment sales ABHRE - - - - - 84347 [284,347) - - -

8701209 66243406 64,389,784

3,152,388 3226818 (294347) 204247000 12489086 236,736,097

Reportable segment (loss)/profit before B ERELHTHE

income tax expense FE(FE)/ER (20,706,534 (3,196,927)  (14,931,492) (971,614) 4673406 (11,040,964) — 461741260 68390638 22216512
Other segment information EfamEs
Intrest income: HERA 842,794 72672 123,29 - 8 Ll - 108 - 108
Interest expenses HERR 33,250 — 0070 - - - — 10210359 - 10210359
Depreciaton of property, plant and 0% ARRRELNE

equipment 2802128 682806 11,167,033 - 181,851 997,269 — 15811007 139124 16010231

Amortisaton of payments for leasefold BRILRNRE R

land held for own use under operating REtulizg

leases & - - - - - - - - 125%5 12055
Amortisation of ntangible assets EREEIRS 1238625 3178240 - - - - — 1556449 — 1556449
Amortisaton of deferred expenditure [l 5 12930831 - - - - - - 18 - B

(in on disposal of property, plant and Nz BRRREL
equipment ¢ 157,207 - - - - - - 157,207 - 157,207

mpairmen loss on property, plant and HES gg&ﬁﬁzzﬁ@

equipment - - 6,263,276 - - 2430268 - 8,693,564 - 8,693,564
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables EWERERFE AEER 546,125 — B2 - - - - B8M — B8
Share of losses of associates ArBELTEE - - - - 6a08682 - - BA068 - 60868
[Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBLA, (BE) /& - - (12,04829) - 9,200,697 - - (28475991 79446079 76,598,480
Waiver of amount due to a related party BeENEEARE - - 28340 - - - - 28%40 - 2840
Reportable segment assets BEc 332986814 61546882 179945781 121,076,043 83,346,859 36,380,867 — 815283246 — 815283246
Expenditure for reportable seqment non-current T EEABHRSEE BR

assets 3,504,561 59328 18897328 1138072 - - - 301337199 - 3013719
Reportatle segment iablties THEAERE 169783611 18482656 88,167,400 — A% 266947 - BUBW - BB

118 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED XA HIERERR AT
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities

Loss before income tax credit/(expense)

Bt % R MY A

)

—ET-hRAF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

DEBE#E)
(b) THREDERNHEE  EERE
& HE

BHEEEEBZRITEHER
(B%)FiR 1R

from continuing operations

Reportable segment loss before

income tax credit/(expense) from

continuing operations

Unallocated (loss)/gain on disposal
of available-for-sale investments

Unallocated interest income and
other income

Unallocated impairment loss on
property plant and equipment

Unallocated impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments

Unallocated finance costs

Unallocated staff costs

Unallocated rent, rates and
management fee

Unallocated depreciation of
property, plant and equipment

Unallocated head office and
corporate expenses

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—OF
HK$ HK$
Er BT
FHBECE R 2 BRI
e (FX) A
AHE S EERE (341,635,161) (46,174,126)
HEMNHBERE ZARHE
(B18), /W (1,630,320) 2,378,140
ROEF)BWA R EALUA
3,362,898 6,813,887
I E VNG el o T
REEE — (147,416)
AR ERE 2 RKDERE
&8 (49,216,428) (449,120)
R BLEh & B (508,007) (3,065,402)
KABLETRA (27,389,866) (33,119,507)
Koce  =ZMEEREE
(22,875,881) (15,566,822)
ME -~ BEREREZARDER
e (2,731,605)  (3,200,335)
ROBBMNBERABIFZ
(29,352,910) (34,868,797)

Loss before income tax credit/
(expense) from continuing
operations

SR EER RIS
He (AR

(471,977,280) (127,399,498)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b)

6. DEBE®)

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (b) HWHREDFEREFHBEE - EERE
or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BEZYHER(E)
Assets BE
2015 2014
—E-HE —T—OF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Reportable segment assets AmESEEE 371,664,185 815,283,246
Available-for-sale investments AHfHERE 21,268,209 101,333,932
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEMEIAR 56,898,668 27,494,061
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB REE 6,652,302 9,362,065
Loan receivables FEWE R 27,722,772 11,300,000
Unallocated head office and corporate AN EEMNHFRE N AR EE
assets 12,139,955 20,822,794
Total assets BEBE 496,346,091 985,596,098
Liabilities BE
2015 2014
—E-HF —TOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Reportable segment liabilities AIsRE S EaE 252,570,019 283,475,937
Other borrowings HmEE — 13,000,000
Unallocated head office AoBMHERERAGAE
and corporate liabilities 4,033,311 6,519,339
Total liabilities BfE@EE 256,603,330 302,995,276
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED KA IR E B R AT
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEHRE®)
(c) Geographical information (c) HEER
The Group's operations are mainly located in REBZEBEEMRES - FE
Hong Kong, PRC and Korea. RERE o
An analysis of the Group's geographical AEBME Bz oTHINOT

segments is set out as follows:

2015
“%-5%

Hong Kong PRC Korea Total

B4 HE &6 ag
Continuing Discontinued  Continuing Discontinued ~ Continuing Discontinued  Continuing Discontinued
operations  operation  operations  operation  operations  operation  operations  operation
RESERXY  BRIRE BAGERR CALEE SEEERE  CRLRE RESERR  SRLRR
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
Ar A A B A A B A

Tumover (note (i) sxAE ) 691,188 - 140,157,155 - 530,626 — 141,378,969 -
Non-current assets ERBEE(SBIAR
other than financial ~ BERBEERS)
instruments and
deferred tax assets 15,950,804 - 108,852,524 - 9,892,704 - 134,696,032 -
2014
“5-1F
Hong Kong PRC Korea Total
& HE &8 &8

Continuing  Discontinued ~ Continuing  Discontinued ~ Continuing  Discontinued ~ Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation  operations operation  operations operation  operations operation
REMEEE  BRIEER RBEEEER  DRLER RESEEE  BRUER RBEERR  BRLER
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
-7 Az -7 Az -7 Az V-7 AT

Tumover (note (i) EERIH) 6,639,426 — 217,607,615 12,489,056 - — 204,247,041 12,489,056
Non-current assets ERBAE(SBIAR

other then financial ~ EERBEERS)

instruments and

deferred tax assets 117,969,283 — 239,189,513 — 6,199,271 — 363,358,067 —
Note: st
(i) Tunover is attributed to countries on the basis (i) BEEBAREFPAEME D2

of the customers’ location. B o
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TURNOVER 7. EEX
Analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as REBZARFEWZHRSMTAOT ¢
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —TOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations: BERSEEL
Revenue from licence fee collection FFETE B s iRt an s
and provision of intellectual property ERERERS S W
enforcement services business 39,740,199 87,012,992
Revenue from exhibition-related services & EMHERE 2 K 66,712,740 66,243,406
Gross rental income from property sub-  WEDHEEBAEHES WA
leasing business FEkE) 33,586,207 64,895,784
Revenue from artist and talent AR NER R IREE
management and entertainment and Kbz =5 2 2 W e
travelling business 604,164 3,152,388
Sale of food and beverages BRHE 735,659 2,942,471
,,,,,, 141,378,969 224,247,041
Discontinued operation: BRILER
Revenue from hotel operation IS FE RS 2 W
— Room rental — B - 3,353,183
— Food and beverages — &K — 6,495,623
— Rental income from shops — R ZHEWA - 2,640,250
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, —__.12,483,056
141,378,969 236,736,097
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED bEREERA T
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8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. HfhARWKzE
2015 2014
—E-EfF —E—NF
HK$ HK$
B BT
Continuing operations: BEREXK
Bank interest income RITHAE WA 530,243 1,445,002
Loan interest income B 2 WA 742,494 806,423
Gain on disposal of property, plant and REWE - WEREE WS
equipment 74,083 157,207
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWNB AR 2 WS
(note 40(b)) (K1aE40(b)) - 9,200,697
Gain on deemed disposal of interest in BRIEHEHRE AR ZHERZ
associates, net (note 24) Was SRR 24) 1,162,241 —
Government grants BB
— relating to unconditional subsidies — B REAGIT 2R — 1,810,030
— for leasehold improvements (note (i)) — HEMEREWFE ) 504,687 416,927
Waiver of amount due to a related party BRI A T FIB W (1)
(note (ii)) — 2,836,401
Waiver of interest expense payables e S B F S (B (i)
(note (iii)) — 3,623,596
Realised gain on disposal of HENHEEREZEEFH K
available-for-sale investments - 2,378,140
Facility sharing income from an REHEE R R 2 RIELZIRA
associate (note 42(a)) (Bt 42(a) - 4,440,206
Fair value gain on investment properties WEYE L NFEBEZKE 127,279 —
Reversal of impairment loss on other HAv W RUE 2R EE B D
receivables 1,212,716 —
Others HAith 2,967,675 3,285,388

7,321,418 30,400,017

Discontinued operation: = -J1d %7'1%
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(d)) HEMBR Rz WE (A1 40(d)) — 79,446,079

- 79,446,079

7,321,418 109,846,096

Notes: Biat -

(i)  The amount represents government subsidy iy #%; AIE?ETJE—IE%¥ FHHIEE 2 HE
received in advance in relation to leasehold MRS TAR 2 BRI B o 5% AIEH#
improvement on a property sub-leasing project. The REREME BN BETER

amount will be recognised in profit or loss over the
lease term of the property being leased.

(i)  The amount represents rental expenses paid on (il ZAIBEHBAEZEATRINZHEH
behalf by a related party. For the year ended 31 Y o#HEZE—NF=-A=+—H1
March 2014, the related party was deregistered FE - ZBEEATDREEMR A
and the Group no longer has obligation to settle the ERMTHARBEZNEZEE
amount.

(i) The amount represents interest expenses payable (i) ZAEERTEBREBYESAED
to Yang Lei’s spouse in relation to a loan granted to ABEZRBRT —HNERRZE
a subsidiary before the Group’s acquisition of the AMEMNZHERST - IBEAETY
property sub-leasing business. Yang Lei is a director ¥N0HEBHNEBRRAZES - HEZ
of certain subsidiaries of the property sub-leasing T-NFE=A=+—HIEFEHEZ
business. For the year ended 31 March 2014, Yang REERALEETEEEEETEE
Lei's spouse confirmed that the Group no longer ZHRIE ©

has obligation to settle the amount.
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9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX CREDIT/ 9.
(EXPENSE) FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

FEREXB ZBRTEBIESR,
(R ERAER

SEREEB 2 RAEHEL/(FA%)
RIEIEEHIBR A TR

Loss before income tax credit/(expense) from
continuing operations is arrived at after charging:

2015 2014
—B-Hf _—TOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amortisation on: oy
— intangible assets — mEE 15,361,839 15,564,496
— deferred expenditure — RERX 8,632,826 12,930,831
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 23,994,665 28,435,327
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEIE
__[note 40fa), (c)) (Hist40(a), () 16,030,080 12,048,296
Loss on disposal of associates  HEBMEARZER 0 2912809 —
Loss on disposal of convertible loan HEMRBEREE ZEE
notes ... 051473 —
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEEERE 2 BE
__investments ... 163032 = —
Impairment losses on: RERAE :
— property, plant and equipment — W% - WEMEE — 8,840,980
— available-for-sale investments — A HERE 147,964,021 449,120
— trade and other receivables — ERE R R HEARIE 1,736,337 6,831,200
— goodwill — EE 96,019,091 —
— intangible assets — B EE 88,358,247 —
— deferred expenditure — EEMAX 2,268,500 —
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 336,346,196 _ 16,121,300
Auditor’'s remuneration ZEATB & 2,090,000 2,415,000
124 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED L IER AR A
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mmaEmE )¢
[

10. PRIOR YEAR DISCONTINUED
OPERATION

10. BEFEECRILLER

BEEBHR_ZTE—=—FNA—RB=_Z
—=F+A-+-_R(BEEHBE
BEBRELENT

The turnover and results of the hotel operation
business for the period from 1 April 2013 to 22 July
2013 (date of disposal) are as follows:

Period from

1 April 2013

to 22 July 2013
(date of disposal)

H-FE—=fF

mA—BE

—EB-=F

tA=+t=H

(HEBR) BB

HK$

BT

Turnover EEE 12,489,056

Costs of inventories FERA (3,890,305)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment #%¥ - BERREZITE (139,124)
Amortisation of payments for leasehold land BIBQERNSEzEAEELS

held for own use under operating leases AN R B 5E (1,205,395)

Staff costs B IR (8,332,135)

Other operating expenses H b E s (9,977,538)

Loss before income tax credit BREFSTIE R RIEE (11,055,441)

Income tax credit Frigtif e —

Loss for the year from discontinued operation B4R IF¥ 7 FEEE (11,055,441)
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11. STAFF COSTS

11. BIRA

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
HFESEEK BRIEER @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—®-If —T-WF Z¥-Rf _—T-NF Z¥B-HF —TNOF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT BT BT
Staff costs (including & IRA(BE
Directors) comprise: ~ £%)84E
Salaries % 45,091,820 59,140,490 - 6,572,515 45,091,820 65,713,005
Contribution to defined S EHFRATEI
contribution pension  Z
plans 3,856,922 7,328,074 - 1,301,843 3,856,922 8,629,917
Other short-term HiEHe 8=
monetary benefits 3,734,083 2,322,444 - 457,777 3,734,083 2,780,221
Equity-settled share-  RELEEURH X
based payment H2R%
expense (note 39) (H17£39) — 9,376,692 - — — 9,376,692
52,682,825 78,167,700 — 8332135 52,682,825 86,499,835
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED S ER AR A T
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 12. EERSREEEMNS
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments EEME
The aggregate amounts of the Directors’ FEEMSRBHOT ¢

emoluments are as follows:

Salaries Share-based  Retirement

and other payment scheme  Benefits in
Fees benefits expense contributions kind Total
FER gl B
ik EthiE R ARAX R L ENFE BE
2015 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
“E-1f V-3 B B B A A
Executive directors ~ H{TES
Cheng Yang 15 - 3,720,600 - 17,500 - 3,738,100
Tsoi Tung (i /1) - 596,129 - 4,500 - 600,629
Lei Lei BE - 1,950,000 - 17,500 184,500 2,152,000
Huang Ranfei (i) BN (il - 319,355 - 3,968 - 323,323
Li Weipeng TEE 1,440,000 - - - - 1,440,000
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
directors
Tong Jingguo RER 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Yang Rusheng BinE 120,000 - - - - 120,000
So Tat Keung Bigg 120,000 - - - - 120,000
1,800,000 6,586,084 - 43,468 184,500 8,614,052
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 AEFY
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 12. BEENEREEEME »)
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) BEEML(E)

Salaries  Share-based Retirement

and other payment scheme Benefits in
Fees benefits expense  contributions kind Total
ek i BN
e EthigA BEGEE R EWHlR BE
2014 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
—E-IE AT BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors ~ H{TEZ
Cheng Yang &5 — 3,720,600 1,736,424 15,000 — 5,472,024
Lei Lei E — 1,950,000 1,562,782 10,000 180,000 3,702,782
Li Weipeng TRE 1,440,000 - 868,212 — — 2308212
Zheng Yuchun (ii) g7 i) - 477,000 — 3,750 — 480,750
Independent BIFHTES
non-executive
directors
Tong Jingguo (S 120,000 - 86,821 — — 206,821
Yang Rusheng Bk 120,000 - 86,821 - - 206,821
So Tat Keung GER 120,000 — 86,821 — — 206,821
1,800,000 6,147,600 4,427,881 28,750 180,000 12,584,231
No Directors waived their emoluments in respect of MEEsEEH 22— —HAF=H
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: nil). ST -ALFEzZME(ZT—HFE
/) o
Discretionary bonuses were granted based on BB RZE LA IR EREBESE 2K\
the performance of individual Directors and mEL  TEEXRQATZHFMEE St
were approved by the Company’'s remuneration g o
committee.
Notes: Bt
(i) The Director was appointed on 18 December 2014. )y ZEFR-ZE—HNOF+-_A+N\BE
ZAE -
(i) The Director was appointed on 28 January 2015. iy #%EE-_T—HFEF—AB-_t/\BEZ
ff o
(iii)  The Director was resigned with effect from 1 July (i) ZEEE-_ZT—=F+HF—H#BEIT-
2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2014 three) were Directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in
the above.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2014: two)
highest paid individual in 2015 are as follows:

12.

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

EEREREEENE 2

LEREHMAL
AEBRAARRFMALF  =ZR(=
T-MF: ZR)RARAESE - HH
TEENEX -

—E-LDFHEBEMA(CTE-NHEF W
H)RRFMALZHMESWT

2015 2014
—E-FHFE —ZE—NE
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EZ&R#H4 - EERAL - i

allowances and benefits in kind AR EYF =
Retirement scheme contributions BRRETEIH R

3,220,000 4,077,000
17,500 30,000

3,237,500 4,107,000

The emoluments are within the following band:

MeaElATHEZA

2015 2014
—E-RHFE —ZE—UF
Number of  Number of
Employees  Employees

ESEA 1ERZH

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0008 T2 1,500,000

BT 1 _
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2,000,000

BT 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 &7t E 2,500,000

BIT — 1

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

129



X R Rk
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‘ —E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 12. EEREREEREME 2
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
Remuneration of senior management BREEE &M
Remuneration of senior management of the AREBSREEEHMN( B EXATE
Group, including amounts paid to the highest paid BENTEFUINZERTFMEE 22
employees other than Directors as disclosed above, B)EUTEHE A

are within the following bands:

2015 2014
—E-FHF —ET-NF
Number of  Number of
Employees  Employees

ESEH ES 2

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000 7L & 1,500,000

I 1 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77L& 2,000,000

BT 1 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #7T% 2,500,000

BT - 1

SHERRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. FINANCE COSTS

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

13. BERAK

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
HEREER SRIEER @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-0F —T-NF ZE-HF —_T-0OF ZB-HF _T-MOF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT ET BT BT BT
Interest on bank RITERZHE
loans 3,805,261 8,501,052 - — 3,805,261 8,501,052
Effective interest & ZEE 2 EIRF
expenses on BHX
promissory notes — 3,065,402 - — — 3,065,402
Interest on other ~ HiEE 78
borrowings 508,007 931,137 - — 508,007 931,137
Interest on amounts JEf FEHE AR A% R 5K
due to non- BZFE
controlling
shareholders - 778,171 - — — 778,171
4,313,268 13,275,762 - — 4,313,268 13,275,762
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 T-FEFE
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BY %5 R R MY &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-RF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

14.

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

The amount of income tax credit/(expense) in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income

represents:

14. FREBESR (BAX)

EREEERARAZHAEHRER,/
(FX)&8E -

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
REGEEK BAILER @zt
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1f C—Z-W¥ ZB-1Ff —E-mF ZE-EF C—ZT-M%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT &7 BT B BT
Current tax — Hong ~ B{THIE — &4
Kong profits tax MEH
— tax for the year — FEEHB - (229,259) - — - (229,259)
— (underlfover-provision — BEEEY
in respect of prior (BETR)/
years BEER (192,035) 115,931 - - (192,035) 115,931
e Wwe2035) (13328 - — . N92088) _ (113,328)
Current tax — PRC ~ RIRIE — hEIGE
Enterprise Income st
Tax
— tax for the year — KEEHE (29,098)  (3,045,966) - - (29,098)  (3,045,966)
— over-provisionin  — BEFEZ
respect of prior AR
years 411,47 — - — 411,41 —
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 362378 _ Q0453660 - .. 382378 _ 3,045,966
Deferred tax (note 36) EERA(HiE36) 21,221,387 1,632,765 - — 21,227,387 1,632,765
21,417,725  (1,526,529) - — 21,417,725  (1,526,529)

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided within

the Group as there is no estimated assessable

profits for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for certain

subsidiaries within the Group and is calculated at

16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the

year ended 31 March 2014.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

HRBE-_T-—AF=-A=+—HILHF
JE I AT ESR @ A - AR B
AHERABNEHEE -

B AFIEHID R A T T B
ARRBE-T-ME=A=+—AlL
4 7 A TR R B P e 5 16.5% 3
1R -
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4. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

(Continued)

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% (2014: 25%).

The income tax credit/(expense) for the year can
be reconciled to the loss per the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

BB B

B 3 3R 3% B &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—Z2-RF=A=+—H

AlZBIL25% (— & —
25% ) 2 TR MBI 2RISR

31 March 2015

14. FREHER (X)) #®)

o4

AEEREHRESR(FAX)EGEEA
Was R ER BRI T

2015 2014
—E-IF —T-mF
HK$ HK$
B BT
Loss before income tax BRATERIE S,/ (M%) RS
credit/(expense)
Continuing operations FEICEER (471,977,280) (127,399,498)
Discontinued operation SE Sl - 68,390,638
(471,977,280)  (59,008,860)
Tax credit calculated at Hong Kong profits tax R &BHEHHE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—F : 166%)51 &
estiinei) 77,876,251 9,736,462
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMAEEERLE 2B
operating in other jurisdictions ABETR 2 13,930,341 4,800,987
Tax effect of share of profits/(losses) of associates % 45355%’& alaF,/ (B8 z
7] 101,697 (1,073,933)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAMBHZ 2 R 2 (50,388,500) (689,825)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBIM G HBE 2 12,544,644 15,284,792
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences RIER A HIT H I =5 2 B 5
not recognised - (76,742) (1,616,846)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERGIBEE BB E (32,789,402)  (28,084,097)
Over-provision in respect of prior years WA FEBERE 219,436 115,931
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe,/ (AX) 21,417,725 (1,526,529
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 T-REFT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

15. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO

SHAREHOLDERS

Loss attributable to shareholders includes an
amount of HK$470,191,527 (2014: HK$94,927,897)
which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2015, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of reporting period

(2014: nil).

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

15.

16.

IR EAL IR

[EREMEBEETBEEEARR I BR
*<EIE £ 5470,191,6527 B (=&
—PU4E 1 94,927,897 7 7T) ©

Hﬁ l%\

BE_ZT-RAF=A=+—RHILFEY
EIRMNREZBRTEE - BREHRE
NEEZRNEMRE(ZF -4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

B 7 3R % B A )
P

17. LOSS PER SHARE 17. EREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per ARAREBREZBEABGEZSRE
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of RAEEEERIIBENTE8ETE -

the Company is based on the following data:

2015 2014
—B-HfF —ZE—NOF
HK$ HK$
B BT
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of basic and B ESREXAREE
diluted (loss)/earnings per share (BR) /BR2(BR),EF
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to RRREANEERFELZ
owners of the Company (B1R), /& H
— from continuing operations — FEREET (445,229,478) (121,345,266)
— from discontinued operation — BRIEXRS - 69,053,964
— from continuing and discontinued — BERERDRIEEE
operations (445,229,478)  (52,291,302)
Number of shares BRHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ A{Fet EEBRER(ER),
for the purpose of basic (loss)/earnings B2 FBRANE T
per share 635,512,866 598,767,047
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: HEBRELRRZVE
— Share options — R - _
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ M{Fst E&#E (B1R),
for the purpose of diluted (loss)/earnings A Z HBBINEFIIE
per share 635,512,866 598,767,047
There are no dilutive effects on the share options HRERE 2 RBREAREE - WUBE
granted, as they are anti-dilutive. bl == )

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 = HEER 135



BY %5 R R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ —E-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

N

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - MERRKR®E

Group rEE
Hotel Leasehold Furniture,
buildings land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
in PRC buildings improvements equipment vehicles Yacht Total
ReER A& EER
BEET R RENEEE RERRE RE i ]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT V73 AT BT B AT
Cost or valuation RAG{EE
At 1 April 2013 RZ5-=FRA-8 25,444,374 7,700,000 217,197,499 66,622,615 16,242,696 6,800,000 340,007,184
Surplus on revaluation Byt — 500,000 - — - - 500,000
Additions En - - 22,571,261 3,213,640 3,250,990 - 29,035,891
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR
(note 401b, (c),(d)) (Wit 4ot) - (c) ~ (0) (25,824,387) - (145,159,271) (58,356,950) (2,154,553) - (231,495,161)
Disposals tE = - (3,398,341) (1,443,801) - - (4,842,142)
Exchange differences ERES 380,013 - 842,354 790,150 51,041 - 2,063,558

At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZE-BEZA=+-8k

—3-mEmA-A — 8,200,000 92,053,502 10,825,654 17,390,174 6,800,000 135,269,330

Surplus on revaluation EffRS - 400,000 - - - — 400,000
Additions Em - - 60,528,522 5216,117 1,042,825 - 66,787,464
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEAR

note 40(a)) (Hist40) - - 9,743,918) (5,462,709) (8,364,725) - (23,571,352)
Disposals tE - - (1,738,606) 2,039,330) (210,624 - 3,988,560)
Exchange differences EiEE - - 105,479 5,826) 23,256) - 76,397
At 31 March 2015 RZF-15=f=1-H - 8,600,000 141,204,979 8,533,906 9,834,394 6,800,000 174,973,279
Accumulated depreciation and ZRNERAE

impairment
At 1 April 2013 RZF-=£MmA-A 25,444,374 - 78,117,784 58,275,197 6,884,200 2,493,333 171,214,888
Charge for the year TEESH - 246,459 8,194,945 6,934,930 3,154,232 680,000 19,210,566
Eliminated on revaluation R - (246,459) - - - - (246,459)
Impairment loss RERE - - 8,012,747 828,233 - - 8,840,980
Disposal of subsidiaries =

(note 40(b), (c), (d)) (W40 (c) (o) (25,824,387) - (51,497,654 (55,198,189) (1,980,361) - (134,500,591)
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - - (3,398,341) 1437,315) - - (4,835,656
Exchange differences EizE 380,013 - 145,675 153,017 46,975 — 725,680

At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZE-BEZA=+-8k

“E-NEmA-A — - 39,575,156 9,555,873 8,105,046 3,173,333 60,409,408
Charge for the year REERH - 254,09 7,448,904 2,007,060 2,908,028 £80000 13298088
Eliminated on revaluation R - (254,09) - - - - (254,096
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - - (1,738,606) (2,015,755) 210,284) - (3,964,645)
Disposal of subsidiaries LENEAR
(note 40(a)) (Hit40/8) - - (9,743,918) 4,038,063) (8,026,845) - (21,808,826)
Exchange differences EiEE - - 25,859) (3.127) (24,419) - (53,404)
At 31 March 2015 R-E-1€=A=1-B - - 35,515,678 5,505,988 2,751,526 3,863,333 47,626,525
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2015 RZF-1F=A=1-A - 8,600,000 105,689,301 3,027,918 7,082,868 2,946,667 127,346,754
At 31 March 2014 R-5-WE=A=1-H - 8,200,000 52,478,346 1,269,781 9,285,128 3,626,667 74,859,922
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The analysis of the net book value or valuation of

the above assets at 31 March 2015 is as follows:

18. ¥ - MEKXE#)

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—Z2-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

NEEER-_T-—RAF=A=+—HZ
REDFESMGEEI T

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Yacht Total
BELH BE EER
kgF HES RERHE AE id an
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$
Br A B B A1 B
At cost G - 105,689,301 3,027,918 7,082,868 2,946,667 118,746,754
At 2015 professional B-E-1%7%
valuation ESG 8,600,000 - - - - 8,600,000
8,600,000 105,689,301 3,027,918 7,082,868 2,946,667 121,346,754

The analysis of the net book value or valuation of

the above assets at 31 March 2014 is as follows:

ANEBER-_T—MNF=A=+—HZ
REDFESMEEINTET ¢

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings ~ improvements equipment vehicles Yacht Total
HELH HE 78
REF HEEL RERGE a2 i g
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT B e B BT
At cost R — 52,478 346 1,269,781 9,285,128 3,626,667 66,659,922
At 2014 professional B-E-mErE
valuation 5iE 8,200,000 - - - - 8,200,000
8,200,000 52,478,346 1,269,781 9,285,128 3,626,667 74,859,922
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 AEFEY
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31 March 2015

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. M1% - BMERZE#)

138

(Continued)

The Group's leasehold land and building is located
in Hong Kong and the carrying value is as follows:

AEBZHELHEEFURE B RE
HEWT :

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—AF
HK$ HKS$
Er BT
Properties located in Hong Kong NREBZYNE
Lease between 10 to 50 years NF10E 50 FHELY 8,600,000 8,200,000

An impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment used in the property sub-leasing
business of HK$6,263,276 was made during the
year ended 31 March 2014 because the Group
ceased one of its property sub-leasing project
due to urban redevelopment proposed by the
local government in PRC. The recoverable amount
to which the property, plant and equipment are
allocated has been determined by the value-in-use
calculation.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, an impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment used in the
food and beverages business of HK$2,430,288 was
made because the Group experienced loss in the
past 2 years and the management considered this
business would continue to loss in the future due to
keen competition. The recoverable amount to which
the property, plant and equipment are allocated has
been determined by the value-in-use calculation.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

AEECRBE_ZT—NF=RA=+—
BIEFERMEDHEEBRBZME
T B5 K 5 R at VR R B B 186,263,276 78
7T b TR A B A P B 0 R
BIRTEE MR IEEFR—BEMED
HERMAK - BOEYE - BELRE
ZANE 2R NEEREENELE

on

AEBEREHEE_T-—NWEF=ZA=+—
HIEFEREREBRRAZYE - BE

R AR IR R (B 152,430,288 7T -
TR ASEERBEMEHGEHE -
i & 1R [ 3R /5 UL 75 18 B R R 5 5 1 4
BRARRLIDEBE - BHRWE -
R K R 2 AR e & 58 iR E R EE
FTEAERE °
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19.

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - BENRKE &)
(Continued)
Leasehold land and buildings were revalued at 31 HETHREFEHEAEEN G RE
March 2015 and 2014 on the open market value MBRAR(TEARDRAMAMERER
basis by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting —E-RFER-_ZE-—NF=A=+—H
Limited (“APAC"). The valuation was mainly arrived B - HEFTELXZEAELEBRTERS
at by reference to comparable market transactions. 1S - BEBRBFFELL6171BT(ZE
A net revaluation surplus of HK$546,171 (2014: —PY4F @ 623,293 L) BT AE MY
HK$623,293) was credited to other properties BhFEE YO HMBRER  ELEHIER
revaluation reserve, after netting off applicable % 107,925 (= Z — U4 : 123,166
deferred tax expense of HK$107,925 (2014: HIT) °
HK$123,166).
The fair value of the leasehold land and buildings in R-ZZE—RFE=A=1+—"H REBZ
Hong Kong of HK$8,600,000 as at 31 March 2015 ME i REF 2 A FEES,600000
(2014: HK$8,200,000) is a Level 2 recurring fair BT (ZZF — M4 : 8,200,000 7T ) &
value measurement. B2 EIENFEESE -
The carrying amount of leasehold land and building AN B 2 THE 4 0 K 18 TR Ak AR
of the Group would have been HK$688,298 2EBEMENZBEREBEEIER  HE
(2014: HK$712,569) had they been stated at cost M 1B JE 5688,298 8 L (=& — M4 :
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 712,669%87T) ©
impairment losses.
At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group did not RZE—RAFR-_T—NF=A=1+—
pledge any property, plant and equipment. B AEEVEKBEADE  BER
Bt o
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. BEWHE
Group rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —TOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April REA—H 6,199,271 —
Addition during the year F I N — 6,199,271
Change in fair value NFEE 127,279 —
At 31 March R=A=+—H 6,326,550 6,199,271
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 E— [ S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A‘ —E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

’ P T e

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19. REWFE (#)

(@) Investment properties were revalued at 31
March 2015 and 2014 on the open market
value basis by an independent valuer, Daelil
Appraisal Board (2014: Mirae & Saehan
Appraisal Co., Ltd). The valuation was mainly
arrived at by reference to comparable market
data.

(b) At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group did not
pledge any investment property.

() At 31 March 2015, the fair value of
the investment properties in Korea of
approximately HK$6,327,000 (2014:
HK$6,200,000) is level 2 recurring fair value
measurement.

(d) The Group's investment properties are
analysed at their carrying values as follows:

(a)

(c)

BEMER-_T—RAFR =T
FZA=T—HEBRBIGEAM
Daeil Appraisal Board (== —/q
F : Mirae & Saehan Appraisal
Co., Ltd)RARMBEBEERSE
o MEFEZREAELRTHEH
BER o

RZE—RAFA_ZT—NMF=HA
=+—8  AEBEIEEF T
B -

RZZE—RE=A=+—80 R
BREZEREDWEZAFEED
6,327,000 jt(= & — 4 F :

6,200,000 70) BEH 2 EHE R
FEEMNE -

AR RE MR R EE B
m

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZTMF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Investment properties located NRBEEZREWE
in Korea
Freehold KA EHRE 6,326,550 6,199,271
20. PAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD 20. RELEHVFE2BAESE
LAND HELD FOR OWN USE UNDER +
OPERATING LEASES
Group NEEF
HK$
BT
At 1 April 2013 —ZET—=FmMA—H 185,742,412
Charge for the year REELZH (1,205,395)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(d)) HEM B R R (M5 40(d) (184,694,557)
Exchange differences EHER 157,540
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-—MNF=A=+—H —
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21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT

B 3 3R 3% B &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—Z2-RF=A=+—H

21. BERRE

31 March 2015

Group AEHE
Provision of
intellectual
property Property
enforcement sub-leasing
services business Total
B
HBERE MESH
HERERTE E S HE
(note (a)) (note (b))
(K15t (a) (K75t (b))
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Cost A
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FWA—H 79,427,363 18,311,567 97,738,930
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR — (1,719,839) (1,719,839)
At 31 March 2014 and R-Z—NME=F=+—BxK
1 April 2014 and —E-NEMA-AR
31 March 2015 “Z-HF=A=+—H 79,427,363 16,591,728 96,019,091
Impairment WE
At 1 April 2013, R-ZE—=FWA—QH -
31 March 2014 and “E-NF=ZA=+—HBK
1 April 2014 —EF-WFMA—H — — —
Impairment loss HEEE (79,427,363) (16,591,728) (96,019,091)
At 31 March 2015 RZF-AF=A=T-H | (79,427,363)  (16,591,728)  (96,019,091)
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2015 R-E—RF=A=+—H — — —
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—-—NF=A=+—H 79,427,363 16,591,728 96,019,091
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 E-—REFT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT
(Continued)

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”, management of the Group performed
impairment test for goodwill allocated to the
Group’s various cash generating units (“CGUs")
by comparing their recoverable amounts to their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculation.

(@) The recoverable amount of the CGU in
relation to provision of intellectual property
enforcement services was zero and
determined from value-in-use calculation
based on cash flow projections covering from
2015 to 2022, which is the period whereby
an exclusive right has been granted to the
Group by the China Audio-Video Copyright
Association to provide intellectual property
enforcement services. Discount rate of
15.5% (2014: 17%) per annum is used in the
calculation which was provided by APAC.
The key assumption have been determined
by the Group’s management based on
past performance and its expectations
for the industry development. During the
year ended 31 March 2015, the goodwill
of HK$79,427,363 was fully impaired and
impairment loss on intangible assets of
HK$68,494,242 were provided (note 22(b)). It
was because the revenue generated from the
CGU has dropped. The Directors considered
that the customer, the karaoke venue
operators, were affected by the reduction in
expenditures in entertainment and recreation
activities in PRC and the industry would
experience no growth in future.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, no
impairment was provided on goodwill from the
provision of intellectual property enforcement
services as the recoverable amount exceeded
the carrying amount of the CGU.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT

—ET-hRAF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

1. BEREE®E)

(Continued)

(b) On 8 July 2011, the Group acquired the b) MZZE——FEANH  KEEK
entire issued share capital of BoRen Cultural 8% BoRen Cultural Development
Development Limited (“BoRen”) which is Limited @ — Xt #E R B R A 7
engaged in sub-leasing of properties and (B2 3ETRA
facilities in Nanjing, PRC. The estimated BCRPEBEBRREEMELRK
recoverable amount was 103,015,144 and Mo Mo HE R ME S R 755
determined from value-in-use calculation. 103,015,144 - Ihzﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁu g
These calculations use pre-tax cash flow FEE  ZETERAREER
projections based on financial budgets EHERERFHEACWBESR
approved by management covering a five- EHZRA A REMEA - AF
year period. Cash flows beyond the five- HRB2RERENRAETF5%
year period are extrapolated using a 5% :T PUE : 5%) 7 WFER
(2014: 5%) revenue growth rate per annum. HorERATAZ2ZMRER
Discount rate of 10% (2014: 11%) per BIBRETF10% (ZZE—U4F
annum was used in the calculation which M%) 2 BRE - FERBIIAR
was provided by APAC with reference to EEEEEREATRANESETT
similar companies. The key assumptions X¥ER2TEHMEET - BE_Z
have been determined by the Group’s —hRF=ZA=+—BIEFE &
management based on past performance and 216,601,728 B LB 2 EURE(Z
its expectations for the industry development. T—E - E) W HEZHERAF
During the year ended 31 March 2015, B T E R TR R TR 48 IR
the goodwill of HK$16,591,728 was fully 5 UEREEYESEEREXR
impaired (2014: nil), it was mainly due to keen A NG AR RIERFTEL -
competition in property market and adverse
economic environment in PRC, and significant
investments in renovation of leasehold
improvements for sustaining the growth in
future.

All the discount rates used above are pre-tax DALT&T%FHZAﬁBHEEETi’W%ﬁETJ 52

and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant MBS E 2 S BER

segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

G

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22. BLEE
Group rEH
Provision of
copyright ~ Provision of
licence fees intellectual Customer
settlement property relationship
and collection  enforcement Golf club  and customer Films
services services  memberships contracts in progress Total
Rl Rt BRAR
BHBLER HaER fay EFBER
HERH ERRE a5 EFEH BemEY g
[note (a]) (note (b)) [note (c)) [note (d) (note (g))
i) Hitt) (W) (i) (i)
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A A AT AT AT AT
Cost s
At 1 April 2013 NE-ZEmR-A 2371104 116,848,511 2311075 38,410,000 15,588.339 175,529,029
Additions 1 - - - - 10,370,981 10,370,981
Disposal ik - - - - 3,873,499 3,873,499
Exchange differences ErzE 123,015 2137886 14839 - 344,669 2,620,409
At 31 March 2014 and W-5-REZA=1-BR
1 April 2014 ZE-MERA-A 2494119 118,986,397 2305914 38,410,000 22,430,490 184,646,920
Disposel of subsidiaries note 40e) ETEAT Hit40a) (2,458,585 - (624,583 - — (3283168
Disposal il - - - - (D4a0n) 448074
Exchange differences EiZE (35,534) 145,712 (1,331) - 13584 122431
At 31 March 2015 NE-1F=A=1-H - 119,132,109 1,500,000 38,410,000 - 159,042,109
Accumulated amortisation ZRBERAE
and impairment
At 1 April 2013 WZ3-FME-H 102,629 26,297 507 243 506 12,189,515 - 38,833,157
Amortisation for the year RERRY 78503 11,790,850 116,883 3,178240 — 156449
Exchange differences ERZE 6,252 588,935 - - - 595,167
At 31 March 2014 and H-F-RE=R=1-AR
1 April 2014 “5-RERA-H 587,404 38,677,292 360,389 15,367,755 - 54,992,840
Amortisation for the year REERY 160719 11,905997 116,883 3,178240 - 153618%
Impairment loss HEEE — 88494012 — 19864005 — 8837
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40z) LERBLR W 40e) (747,185) - - - - (747,185)
Exchange differences EXZE (938) 54578 - - - 53,640
At 31 March 2015 RoE-RE=A=1-A — 119132109 1 38,410,000 — 158019381
Net book value FASE
At 31 March 2015 NE-1F=Az1-H - - 1,022,728 - - 1,022,728
At 31 March 2014 RE-BE=A=1-H 1,906,715 80,309,105 1,965,525 23,042,045 22,430,490 129,654,080
144 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED YA EREE R A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(c)

Provision of copyright licence fees settlement
and collection services represents the
exclusive right in respect of the karaoke
copyright in PRC managed and administered
by the China Audio-Video Copyright
Association for a period of 10 years from 27
December 2007. During the year ended 31
March 2015, intangible asset in relation to
provision of copyright licence fees settlement
and collection services was disposed through
disposal of subsidiaries (see note 40).

The recoverable amount of the CGU of
provision of intellectual property enforcement
services to which the intellectual property
enforcement services right is allocated
has been determined by the value-in-
use calculation, the details of which are
disclosed in note 21(a). As at 31 March 2015,
impairment loss of HK$68,494,242 was
recognised due to the reason as described in
note 21(a). As at 31 March 2014, management
of the Group determined that there was
no impairment as the recoverable amount
exceeded its carrying amount.

For the purpose of impairment testing on
the golf club memberships, the recoverable
amount has been determined based on fair
value less costs to sell. The fair value less
costs to sell is referenced to the second-hand
market price of the golf club memberships
less estimated costs of disposal. During
the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014,
no impairment loss was recognised since
the recoverable amount of the golf club
memberships exceeded its carrying amount.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

—ET-hRAF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

22. BELBE %)

(a)

(c)

BB EEE RIRERBIE
FATEEGREFREREERED
SEERERZFERHN OKHi#E
ZEREN B-ZTTLF+=A
TR ABI0F  HEZ
T-RF=A=+—RALFE B
BB IRER T B A E RIRER
ZERNAESBYENBARILE
(RH$3E40) ©

EDIABE G ERSE IR
HABEREERSECGU ZATIK
EleBEIREABENEELAETE -
HFBRIE21@EE - -RZF
—RAF=ZA=+—H8 ERK=E
21@ Fritt 2 1B i - ERABREE
868,494,242 7L c M ZF — Y
F=ZA=+—H AEEEEER
ARAITKESESNERAE -
A ERE -

shim BRI LB & 58 2 RE R
mE > kOB eRAFEE
MIHERAETE - X FHEBERHFEE
AT EGRRIKELNERE L
—FHERARTHEXRAMSH
BE_ZT-—RFLR-_ZT-—HOF=H
=+—HLEFE  BREERKE
LB BB SESNERR
8 - BAEERREEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(d)

Customer relationship and customer contracts
represent the long established relationship
China Resources Advertising & Exhibition
Company Limited, the Company's subsidiary,
and its subsidiaries (the “"CRA Group"), which
acts as an organiser and contractor for all
kinds of exhibition events and meeting events
mainly in Hong Kong, with the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council (“HKTDC") and
various sub-councils of the China Council for
the Promotion of International Trade in PRC
for large-scale trade fairs, which are mostly
organised by HKTDC. The CRA Group has
been consistently appointed by HKTDC as the
sole agent of China Pavilion for the Hong Kong
Fashion Week.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the
estimated recoverable amounts of the above
CGU were zero and determined based on
the value-in-use approach. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management
covering a six-year period with reference
to the remaining useful life of customer
relationship and customer contracts. Discount
rate of 15% (2014: 16%) is used in the
calculation which was provided by APAC.
The key assumptions have been determined
by the Group’s management based on
past performance and its expectations for
the industry development. During the year
ended 31 March 2015, impairment loss of
HK$19,864,005 (2014: nil) was recognised
in respect of the customer relationship and
customer contracts as the Directors consider
the clients of the CRA Group are primarily PRC
based textile manufacturers which are recently
facing the industry downturn, and in addition,
the drop in the client base of the CRA Group
due to the exhibitions held in PRC attract a
significant number of the existing clients of
the CRA Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, films in
progress were fully disposed.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

BIELEE#)

(d)

Eﬁ@%&%ﬁA7%$ﬁﬂzw

NAEPEELEREARATRE
W% AHPRHEEEE] A%
HATENEBRPCRENSE
BB ZERBIERE)EARRG
REELEBEZIERB(BEER
BHOETRBEBEEZREZESD
22 AP ERANKREY 2B
EFERASHNBEESEZERE - F
BESEE—HEREERREE
AESREAFHBERECBRNA
I8 o

HE-_Z—AF=-H=+—HL
FE - LﬂuwZﬁﬁTW@i
AT RIZFEREBEEEE - 25
u'l' TKFH*E*FEEEFT&/E/@%/\QE
Hf M HRER K2EXFPHEE
REPEXNZA T AFEED
2$ﬁﬁﬂiﬁi/m§%gﬁu nﬁ'%’:ﬁ?ﬁﬁ
15% (ZZF— M4 : 16%) 28R
o AR ARE - TERETIE
REEERERBEBEIRAREY
TEBERZIBHMETE - REEC
E—AF=-A=+—HLEFERX
MEFHARMEFAOERRBAE
1845 19,864,005/8 (= ZF— M
F|)  WIHAREEZRAR - F
BEEEECEPIIEERNUPE
EREM KX RER - EnEmE
HITHEAIR - AN - AR R
WMeRERSIFEHEEEEANER
BRF  WPEHESSEEcEFPE

BB

BE_T-RF=-A=t—HIL*F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

—E-RF¥=A=+—H
31 March 2015

23. B ARz e

Company
AN
2015 2014
i —F-mF
HK$ HK$
Er BT

Unlisted shares, at cost
Less: Impairment loss

FE LR - R
B BB 1A

649,073,327 1,952,885,100
(493,720,980) (1,479,471,922)

155,352,347 473,413,178
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U BT BB R R 3R IE 915,477,401 1,062,679,769
Less: Impairment loss J B EE (438,801,868) (292,593,814)

476,675,533 770,085,955
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHI B A RIFRIE (598,098,816) (732,126,551)

The amounts due from/(to)

subsidiaries are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand,

except for the following:

Amount due from a subsidiary of HK$7,200,000
(2014: HK$7,200,000) which borne interest at 5%

(2014: 5%) per annum.
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries

as at 31 March 2015.

23. B ATz #)
R-E—AE=A=+—0 TEHK

BRBZHNRMT ©

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name business structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
B ERRRRS  ERAIRE TEERREEHE BRARA/BREMES FaRARERAM
directly indirectly
ER %
Golden Island (Management) Limited Limited liability ~Hong Kong Provision of management 10,000 ordinary shares of 100.0 -
company services to group HK$10,000
companies in Hong Kong
2B(ER)RRAT EREfMAR  BR RERRUERRET 10,0008 10,000 7 2 £
£ELR
Welly Champ International Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 236.13 ordinary shares of %8 -
("Welly Champ”) company in Hong Kong US$1 each
(BEERERAD)(EE)) EREMAR  EBRRES REEREER 236.13RBRARIET
LERR
Win Success Enterprises Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 1000 -
company in Hong Kong US$1 each
JE0EERAR EREFLE  EERNES RERRERR 105EERAE 1 E LBk
Wide Stand Holdings Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 1000 -
company in Hong Kong USST each
EUERARAT EREFRT  HERAES RERRERR 100R5RAE 1 £ ERR
Baron Productions and Artiste Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Music production and 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 - 510
Management Company Limited company artist management
in Hong Kong
[EBEREERARLA BRERRE  B# PEBUSELLEREAER 100R100BT 2 LBk
Golden Capital Entertainment Company ~ Limited liabiity ~ BVI Investment holding 10 ordinary shares of - 1000
Limited company in Hong Kong US$1 each
SHRERBRRLT BRERRE  RERXHS NEBRALR 0RERARE1£T EER
Golden Capital Entertainment Limited Limited liability  Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of HKS1 - 100.0
company in Hong Kong
SHRLERAT BRRAL B RERRERR 1R ERR
Golden Island Bird's Nest Chiu Chau Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Property holding 12,000 ordinary shares of - 100.0
Restaurant (Causeway Bay) Limited company in Hong Kong HK$1,200,000
SREBANEE(REL)ERAT EREfAA  B# REERRNR 12,000 1,200,000 372
Solid Sound Productions Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Music production and artist 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 - 51.0
company management in Hong Kong
THREEREERAA BREADA  ER RERUSTEREREATE 100R100ET ERk
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED IR EBRAD R



. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

B 5 3R & MY &=
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE-RF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

23. B AT 2R E)

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name business structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
8 ERRRRS  ERAIRE TEERREEHE BEARA/BRIMES FaRARERAI
directly  indirectly
ER %
Media Sound Technology Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of HK$2 100.0 -
("Media Sound") company in Hong Kong
HEERERAA(REE]) ERERAR  BA REERERR k2T ERR
IR REREEERNERAT Limited liabiity ~ PRC Intellectual property Renminbi (“RMB") - 100.0
([RERE]) company enforcement activities 56,250,000
in PRC
FRREREERRNERAT BREfLR  %E MEREREEREERE  ARBARE)
([XERZ]) 56,250,000
Well Allied Investments Limited Limited liability —~ BVI Investment holding 159,57 ordinary shares of - 68.8
("Well Allied"} (note 41(a)) company in Hong Kong US$1 each
SEREERAT(%E]) EREFRE  EBRNEE NERRERR 15957 RERAE 1 T2
(lita16) £ER
nEER(F)ERLF Foreign PRC Karaoke license fee RMB15,489,940 - 688
enterprise collection business in PRC
nEER(RI)ERAT NERE e RAERERE 0K ARE15489900
RIEERUEER
Witty Idea Finance Company Limited Limited liability  Hong Kong Money leading business 1 ordinary share of HK$ - 100.0
("Witty Idea”) (note41(a) company in Hong Kong
RULEHBERAA(RUEE]) ERERLA  EE NEBEMHERR 1R B2 ERR
(Wi 4i)
Elite-China Cultural Development Limited ~ Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of - 60.0
("Elite-China") company in PRC HK$10,000
FEEAVIERARDA(REEL)) AREEDT  FR MERERR 10,0008 10,0008 2 £85%
BRalE R\ RHRRRREAT Foreign equity ~ PRC Property sub-lsasing RMB14,000,000 - 60.0
joint venture business in PRC
HREER\BHRARREAT MERERE  9E I ETEEESS AR 140000007
EREREELERLT Limited liabllity ~ PRC Property sub-leasing RIMB10,000,000 - 60.0
company business in PRC
BRRNREERARAT EREART 4 ETE DS ARH10,000,0007
BoRen Cultural Development Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 1000 -
company in PRC
B ERERAT BREFRE  EERLES RAEREBR 1\ REE1ZT ERR
China Resources Advertising & Exhibition  Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Exhibition-related services 100,000 ordinary shares of 100.0 -
Company Limited company in Hong Kong HK$100,000
PERSRERRLT RRRERR  BE RERRUREAERY 100,000 100,000 7.2
EER

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

23. B ATz #)

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name business structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
8 ERRRRS  ERAIRE TERBREENE BEARA/BRIMES FaRERERAM
directly indirectly
BE [
New Asia Media Development Limited ~ Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100.0 -
("New Asia") company
FolRBERERAAIHEN]) EREMAT  EBRRES RERR \RERI XTI ERR
Kai Han Asia-Pacific (Holdings) Limited ~ Limited Liability BV Property holding 100 ordinary shares of 100.0 —
company in Korea US$1 each
BRDA(BRIERAT EREFAT  EBRNES REERANE 100 RERAE 1 22 ERR
Kai Han Travel Co., Limited Limited Liability ~ Korea Travel and travel related 50,000 ordinary shares of - 1000
company busingss KRW10,000 each
EREALT  %E B REEERER 50,000 REREE 10,000 %E

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the

Company which, in the opinion of the Directors,

principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assets of

the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT

LIMITED
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

B 5 3R & MY &=

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

24, BMENT) 2R

Group rEEH
2015 2014
—E-HF —TOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Share of net assets of associates DEEE A E B EFE — 31,236,379
Goodwill EES — 52,529,798
Impairment loss recognised BERAEEE —  (27,140,474)
— 56,625,703

On 15 April 2014, China Star Cultural Media Group
Limited ("CSCM") (formerly known as China Media
and Films Holdings Limited) issued 100,000,000
new ordinary shares pursuant to a private
placement which caused a dilution on the Group’s
shareholding interest in CSCM from 45.95% to
38.37% (after taking into account of the interest
in convertible loan note, the Group’s shareholding
interest in CSCM decreased from 48.47% to
40.47%). As a result, the Group recorded a loss on
deemed disposal of an associate of HK$861,314.
The directors of the Company considered that the
Group had retained significant influence over CSCM

as at 15 April 2014.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

R—ZZF—MWMFEWM A+ A H  China
Star Cultural Media Group Limited
FEENEESEEBERAF*([H
E X {t 1)(B7 #China Media and
Films Holdings Limited B {& & &
RIZERABR AR *)RERARS T
100,000,000/ ¥ E @R - SH A&
B 50 B2 S (b 2 AR 7 B3 45.95% 58
£3837% (K kR BRBEREER
2R AEBPRFBEE Xtz ERE
F48.47% 8 2 £40.47%) ° bt
AEEHGRELEBRE AR ZEE
861,3148BTIL - A RNBIEERE &%
ER_Z—MOFEATRBRBEHPEH
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 24, BENT 2R (#)

152

On 17 June 2014, CSCM further issued 300,000,000
new ordinary shares pursuant to another private
placement which caused a further dilution on the
Group shareholding interest in CSCM from 38.37%
to 25.66% (after taking into account of the interest
in convertible loan note, the Group’s shareholding
interest in CSCM decreased from 40.47% to
27.06%). As a result, the Group recorded a gain on
deemed disposal of an associate of HK$2,023,555.
The Group still had retained significant influence
over CSCM as at 17 June 2014.

On 29 September 2014, the Group disposed
229,326,016 ordinary shares in CSCM. As a result,
the Group no longer holds any ordinary shares in
CSCM and CSCM ceased to be an associate of the
Group. The Group recorded a loss on disposal of
associates of HK$2,912,809.

The carrying amount of interests in associates
represented the Group's 45.95% equity interest in
the issued shares of CSCM as at 31 March 2014.
The details were as follows:

Particulars of

RZE—WMFRNA+EH FEHEX
ERES —HLARSE — FHT
300,000,000 fE¥T L @A - BHAEE
AR B2 XX b 2 IR 38.37% # —
HEE25.66% (Kt RN ATHRBKRER
ERoEE  AEBRPEEXZR
BERA40.47% B> E27.06%) o Eitt -
AEBHSRELERE AR 2 KE
2,023,555 8L c REBR =T —HF
NATEBNRBEAEEXLEKRF
27 -

MR-Z—MEALA-+HIE  NEEH
229,326,016 & B 2 3 & @ IR Ak
meEBlt XEBTEFETLMATEHE
XAt LR MPBEEXETBAELSE
BrHERNT  AEEHSLEBRER
A2 [E518 2,912,809 7T °

RZZE—ME=A=1+—H BHLQF
ZHRZEAEEASERNFEEXE
BITID 2 45.95% A HE - FBWT -

Equity interest
Equity interest attributable to

Name of issued Place of Place of Principal held by the the owners
associate shares held incorporation operation activities Group  of the Company
FRBEC R ADRHEEA
BENRER ROZFE AR KEBH TEEK rEBFEERE i iR
2014 2014
—E-mE —E-mE
CSCM 505,649,726 Bermuda Hong Kong  Artist management 45.95% 45.95%
ordinary shares and film
of HK$0.01 each distribution and
production
FEEN(L 505,649,726 BRE BE BAEBRY BT
SREHE0.01ET REHE
EFil

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The above associate is accounted for using equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

CSCM is a listed corporate entity whose quoted
market price is available. The fair value of
investment as at 31 March 2014 is HK$67,386,145.

Summarised financial information of CSCM, the
material associate, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed below:

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

24, BHE QT 2R ()

EtBg & R B TR B IERNER A B
EE YN

S

FREXtAE—BETEREZ LHd
¥ER R_ZT—NWF=A=+—8"
1S E N FEBEE67,386,145 8T ©

PE R (BEABE AR ZHBA
FEERREHBR TRERIEY
B UREAMERRZEEEYE
REWT

%

2014

—FE—-mEF

HK$

BT

Current assets MENEE 51,431,775
Non-current assets IEREBEE 30,096,256
Current liabilities ViEIR=RE (15,543,286)
Equity M 65,984,745
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

24, BHENT 2R ()

Period from

1 April
2014
to 29
September
2015
(date of
disposal) 2014
i
—E-mEF
mA—A%
—E-REF
A
=t+nH
(HEBH)
i) — U
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue WA 3,401,830 9,342,259
Loss from continuing operations FEICE TS 2 B8
and total comprehensive expenses PN R 1,180,784 14,164,706
2015 2014
—B-HfF _—T-NMOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Reconciled to the Group's interest in HAEENFEE b2
CSCM T 2 AR
Goodwill Bk — 26,305,711
Gross amounts of CSCM's net assets FEEX (L EEFEERE — 65,984,745
Group's effective interest REBEERER - 45.95%
Group’s share of CSCM’s net assets REEDEHEE X
BEFHE — 30,319,992
Carrying amount in the consolidated RErE B ISR 2 BREE
financial statements — 56,625,703
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED T HEREERA A
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

25. AIHHERE

Group rEEH

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
—B-HfF —ZT-mOF
BT BT

Listed securities in Hong Kong, at fair BEZLEMES  BRF
value (note (a)) BE(KE () 21,268,209 101,333,932

Contingent consideration in related to BREAWKEBEWB AR Z kA
acquisition of subsidiaries (note (b)) RE(H 5 (b)) — 103,398,272
21,268,209 204,732,204

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 March 2015, the listed securities in Hong
Kong represented mainly the equity interests in
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, fair value
losses on the available-for-sale investments of the
Group amounted to HK$79,066,044 (2014: gain on
fair value HK$28,219,295) was recognised in other
comprehensive income and HK$49,216,428 (2014:
HK$449,120) was reclassified to profit or loss as
the Directors considered the decline in fair value
constituted objective evidence of impairment.

The fair values of listed equity investments are
based on quoted market prices.

The contingent consideration in relation to
acquisition of subsidiaries was secured by 40%
equity interests of Elite-China Cultural Development
Limited which was held by FeiFan Cultural
Development Limited, a non-controlling interest of
the Group's subsidiaries.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

e

(b)

R=B-RF=[A=+—H BB
EHBHEBARBEA L2 S
S A R A 2 R A -

REBEE-_T—AF=-A=+—HLF
EAR- AEBZAHEEREZAT
{EEE5183% 79,066,044 L (—Z—
F o AFEERZ 28,219,295 8L E
MNEAM 2B #R - 49,216,428
BIT(ZZF—UF : 449,120 L) BEE
FolEERR RERESERART
BEZBRDERREZEEBE -

EHRAKEZ ATEEDRETS
WESH -

BRWENE AR 2 ARE UK
S B E A F 2 FEERE R Feifan
Cultural Development Limited 58 2
RESECBERAR DT 40% KIE
{EHE AR -
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‘} NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ —E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

25. JtHERE®)

(b)

(Continued)

The contingent consideration of approximately
RMB82,000,000 (2014: approximately
RMB&82,000,000) (equivalent to HK$103,523,589
as at 31 March 2015 and HK$103,398,272 as at 31
March 2014) related to acquisition of subsidiaries
was valued at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 on
option pricing model basis by APAC, an independent
professional valuer. During the year ended 31
March 2015, the Group recognised impairment
loss on the contingent consideration based on the
accounting policy stated in note 4(k)(ii) amounted to
HK$98,747,593 (2014: nil) in other comprehensive
income and HK$98,747,593 was reclassified to profit
or loss as there are indications that the vendor may
have potential financial difficulty as at 31 March
2015.

26. DEFERRED EXPENDITURE

(b)

(#)

ERREMBRARZHARBHAR
# 82,000,000 (= —P04F : HYAR
# 82,000,000 T)(R=ZFE—HF = A
=+ — HME% 103,523,689/ T °
R-ZB—NE=F=+—HEHESER
103,398,272 L) VR T —RHF =
A=z+—BR=-ZZE—WF=ZA=+—
BBy EEGEMDAZBHET
BERAEZEETHE HEZE_ZT—F
FZAZ+—BLEFEE AREH
SBREHAUER_Z—RFE=A
T+ HEBRBESNBRE  HAE
& B AR I M E 4k (i) BT it 2 & 5t BR 28
RHEME2EB P ERIANRE 2R
{EE518 98,747,693 L ( — T — U4 :
f®) - 98,747,593 B T EFNESE

sk

26. IEIER

Group FEM
HK$
BT
Cost 514
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FmWHA—H 241,057,992
Additions N 3,844,412
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-E—NE=ZA=+—HK
—E—OFMYA—H 244,902,404
Additions 0 6,971,639
At31 March 2016 R=F-AF=A=+-H 251,874,043
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Z&E# 8 RRE
At 1 April 2014 R-Z—NFNA—H 228,041,886
Amortisation for the year ARF G5 12,930,831
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-ZE—NE=Z/A=+—HK
—E-HEMA—H 240,972,717
Amortisation for the year A S 8,632,826
Impairment loss WIEEBE 2,268,500
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RF=A=+—H 251,874,043
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2015 N-ZE—fRE=H=+—8 .
At 31 March 2014 RZZFE—WMFE=A=+—~H 3,929,687
156 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED AL IZ R B B R A A
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26. DEFERRED EXPENDITURE (Continued)

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

26. EEF X (#)

2015 2014
—B-AfF —ZT-NOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Shown in the consolidated statement of  REFAIBARTRIITRE
financial position as:
Deferred expenditure — current portion B — HRENEH
(to be amortised within one year) (R —FREH) - 3,929,687

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014,
the Group entered into cooperation agreements
with various copyright holders for the business of
collecting license fees from karaoke operators in
PRC for their use of licensed audio-visual works on
behalf of the copyright holders.

As a condition of the agreements, the Group
advanced the sum of HK$6,971,639 (2014:
HK$3,844,412) during the year ended 31 March
2015 to the copyright holders as their guaranteed
share of the expected profit on license fees that
will be earned.

The recoverable amount of the deferred expenditure
has been determined by the value-in-use calculation,
which was also used for the impairment testing of
goodwill in connection with the CGU of provision of
intellectual property enforcement services. Details
of the calculation are disclosed in note 21(a).
For the year ended 31 March 2015, the deferred
expenditure of HK$2,268,500 was fully impaired
due to the reason as described in note 21(a).
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REBEE-_ZT-—AFER-_FT-—NF=A
=t HLEFE - AEEESZRERS
BARILAFIHE - R B KRMRE
A ABRTEZ R OKEER & A
BRFEZESIFmAERENEE
P2 55

ERZEHE 2 — BT  AEBERE
E-ZT-FF=-A=+—BLEEAKR
BB AN FIEG,971,6398 (=
T DU ¢ 3,844,412 70)  tEAKS
RIS REBRAZEHEMN 2 RES
B o

BERMT 2 kB £ BEELEREER
HAEBTE  ZitEETAEEBRMEN
HERGERRS ZCGUZEER AR
o FTERFBERWE210)HE - &
E-E—RF=—ZA=+—BItFE"
ERMsE21() il 2 B H - EXERX
2,268,500 8 L 2 EURE °
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—E-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

26. DEFERRED EXPENDITURE (Continued)

The Group has also committed to make further
payments to the copyright holders as their
guaranteed share of the expected profit on license
fees as follows:

26. EEF X (#)

REE TR B AR M RAE R A AE — 51
Fo ERERFEER BB ZR
ETRE BT

2015 2014
—E-HF —FTNOF
HK$ HK$
BT T
Year ended 31 March 2015 Hz—Z2—R%F
—A=1+—HIFE - 6,304,773
27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES 27. AIRBRERE
Group TEH
2015 2014
—F-HfF ZTWF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Convertible loan notes issued by CSCM ~ HIEIE X {b 3172
ABmRERER — 3,569,000

On 22 February 2012, the Group acquired the
convertible loan notes with a principal amount
of HK$6,200,000 issued by CSCM through
unconditional mandatory offer to acquire all of
the outstanding convertible loan notes issued by
CSCM. Since cessation of elimination of convertible
loan notes at consolidation level due to disposal
of CSCM during the year ended 31 March 2012,
the convertible loan notes was initial recognised
as at 3 August 2012 of the consolidated financial
statements.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

RZE-—ZF-_AZ+Z8  FEESE
BRI EGG RS EZENREREE
MBI ZEBRLBITBRERE
B NBEPBEE VBT ASER
6,200,000 L 2 AR E R T - £
REBEE-_ZT——F=-A=+—HBLtEFE
HEREE (LMK IERE O E M
AMREREE  JRREREZRVS
R_ZE——FNA=-BHEFAUBRE
TER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

On 10 September 2013, CSCM and New Asia,
the holder of the convertible loan notes with an
outstanding principal amount of HK$6,200,000
issued by CSCM and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the second deed of
amendments (“Deed of Amendments”) to further
extend the maturity date of the convertible loan
notes for a term of 2 years from 24 September
2013 to 24 September 2015. Subject to the
fulfilment of conditions as set out in the Deed of
Amendments, the proposed amendment would
become effective on 24 September 2013 and New
Asia can exercise the conversion rights attaching
to the convertible loan notes on or before 24
September 2015.

As the proposed amendment was duly approved
by the independent shareholders of CSCM at its
special general meeting on 23 October 2013, all
conditions as set out in the Deed of Amendments
have been fulfilled. Accordingly, the maturity date
of the convertible loan notes with an outstanding
principal amount of HK$6,200,000 as at 23 October
2013 has been extended to 24 September 2015.

Details of the proposed amendment were more
particularly set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 10 September 2013 and 23 October
2013.

As the convertible loan notes are mandatorily
convertible at maturity, it is an equity instrument
which is designated as an available-for-sale financial
asset and measured at fair value. As at 31 March
2014, the convertible loan notes are classified as
non-current assets due to extension of maturity
date.
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—ET-hRAF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

27. TRREREE &)

RZZE—=FNA+H " FEHEXE
MNP REE X EBEITREBRAESHE
#6,200,0008 L2 A MRERER 2
REARKQRRZZ2EMB AR )L
FE_ETREBE(ETRE]D - A&
ARBRERERZBBER =S —=F
NAZTNAE—FPEHRE—FT—HF
NAZ+MA - BEMF - FE5]RIE
FRE < GHERE - BEETHR_Z
—=FNAZTHEBE AR mEEMA]
R-ZB—REAA - +MWAKZHITE
AR E R E BT 2 AR

HRBEZEITRFHEER =T —=
F+AZ+=RAB|TZBRERIRE L
EEB S BREIENAE - BUSETRIEAT
B BBREEEER - Bt =
T-ZF+A-+=ZBARRBALE
46,200,000 8 L2 A MIREREEZ
AR EHE S —RENA =+
E o

BEBEIZHEBIFERNARRTARZ
—=ZFNA+THEERE-_Z—Z=ZF+
—+=ATEZ M-

=
A

A A AT $ i B R SR R 0 B B B 7R 08 I S
B BBEESATHEEMBEE K
ATARBRRAFEEFE -R_FT—N
FZA=1+—H BARFHALZEH &
AMEERZBRC D BRIERDEE -
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

27.

28.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 27. TRREREE®)
During the year ended 31 March 2015, fair value BE-_ZT—RAF-_A=+—HItFE
loss on convertible loan notes of the Group AEBZARBREREEAFEAEES
amounted to HK$170,732 (2014: HK$880,740) was 170,732 (= Z — M4 : 880,740/
recognised in other comprehensive income. J0) ERE A 2 U E R o
Following the completion of CSCM placement on RABEEEEEEE T —MF N
17 June 2014, the conversion price was adjusted A+tB=KE  HIRERSK0.487
from HK$0.487 to HK$0.436 per share. PEILHE R 0.436 8T ©
On 23 September 2014, the Group entered into RZE—NFAA-+=8B x&EH
a convertible loan note placing agreement with a R EREBI YA BREXZRAE
placing agent to dispose the convertible loan notes Wi W BRREREZEERELEEE
issued by CSCM in the aggregate principal amount 3,413,000/ 7T i & A B 2 b &
of HK$6,200,000 at the convertible loan notes 17~ K& 42%86,200,000 78 jT 2 AT %
placing price of HK$3,413,000. The convertible loan ERER - TRREFRERESEN=
note placing was completed on 29 September 2014. T—NEAA-TAHTK °
INVENTORIES 28. &
Group rEE
2015 2014
—E-FEF —ZT—NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Food and beverages BER 24,790,667 21,197,222
Artwork i 6,659,825 12,252,597
31,450,492 33,449,819
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED AL B R B AR A F



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

B 7 3R % B A )
P

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. EWERKREMARE
Group Company
r%EE P NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-HF —T@OF ZE-HEF —T-NOF
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
Trade debtors (note (a)) JEW S TR (M7t (a)) 37,466,143 24,453,758 - —
Deposits, prepayments and Be - BRREREM
other receivables W RRIE 22,277,913 36,695,425 5,201 2,070,239
Loan receivables (note (b)) U EK(H15E (b)) 27,722,772 11,300,000 - —
Deposits for acquisition of WM B AR Z e
subsidiaries (note (c)) (Mfiz(c)) 110,000,000 110,000,000 110,000,000 110,000,000
Deposit pledged for other RERFEMEE 2
borrowing (note 34(b)) TR (K1t 34(b) — 13,870,500 - —

197,466,828 196,319,683 110,005,201 112,070,239

Notes: Wit -
(@) The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on (a) EWEZIRNBRESRBEGRRER
invoice date after impairment loss is as follows: HEY BB
2015 2014
—EZ-hF —E-mE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 90 days 90 B A 18,710,907 23,407,795
91 days to 365 days 91 HZE365H 11,002,411 99,070
More than 365 days #8365 H 7,752,825 946,893
37,466,143 24,453,758
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 T-HFEEE 161
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

y

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. EWERKRHEMARIEZ)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Hiez - (&)
(a)  (Continued) (a) (%)
The below table reconciles the impairment loss of JEUE RN AFE 2 R A B 18 H AR
trade receivables for the year: PR T -
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April RIUA—AH 10,496,203 8,702,352
Impairment loss recognised BERBERSE - 6,831,200
Bad debts written off AR 8 (10,496,203) (5,037,349)
At 31 March R=A=+—H — 10,496,203
The Group recognised impairment loss on individual AN BARAR O 5 4() (i) it 2 SR 5t
assessment based on the group accounting policy B AR R E A -
stated in note 4(l)(ii).
The Group generally grants no credit period to its AEB—RITIERNERFELEE
customers, except for transactions with customers B EERERHERE CBEFETT
in exhibition-related services, in which credit period ZRGAUNEET AN FI0E60HT
ranging from 30 to 60 days is granted. E21EEH -
(b)  Loan receivables presented: (b) FEWEFIE :
2015 2014
—E-REF —E—OF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
— Loan to independent third parties (note (i) — AEYE=FER
(H152 (1)) 27,722,772 —
— advances to Rich Success International — MEREREEERAT
Holdings Limited (“Rich Success”) (IZBH DB - 11,300,000
27,722,772 11,300,000
162 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED Xl ZRERERRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-AF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. BWERKREMFRIE )

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Hiet - (&
(b)  (Continued) (b) (%)

(i) It represented advances to two independent () HIEMMEBBLIE=FK RN
third parties. On 23 March 2015, the Group —E-RAFE=A=-+=0 &&
and the independent third parties entered EREBIE=FTLESRBGE
into the loan agreements in which the Group Bt AEERERSELE =
agreed to advance to the independent third 7R £ %813,861,38678 7T
parties loans in the principal amount of ZER - 25 ERAEEE IR
HK$13,861,386 each. The loans are unsecured BHENRLI% B - WERE
by and bear an effective interest rate of 4% BRA R IEANEE -
per annum and shall be repayable in 3 months
from the date of advance.

(c)  On 14 June 2013, the Company entered into 2 sets c) MRZE—=ZF"A+WBH  AQ7

of memorandum of understanding (“MOU | and
MOU 11") regarding the proposed acquisitions of (i)
the entire issued share capital of a company which
directly or indirectly holds interests in the Yixing
project and Lianyungang project, and (i) the entire
issued share capital of a company which indirectly
holds interests in Xi'an project. Both MOU | and
MOU Il are not legally binding save and except the
provisions in relation to the payment of earnest
moneys in the respective sums of HK$30,000,000
and HK$20,000,000 respectively. Details of MOU
| and MOU Il were more particularly set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 14 June 2013.

On 11 October 2013, Estate Fortune Limited
("EFL"), an independent third party, entered
into a second supplemental memorandum of
understanding with the Company in relation to the
proposed acquisition, pursuant to which both parties
to MOU | agreed that (i) the 60-day validity period of
MOU | be extended for a further period of 60 days,
from 12 October 2013 to 11 December 2013; and
(i) all the other provisions of MOU | shall remain
valid and shall not be affected in any respect. On 27
November 2013, the Company entered into a third
supplemental memorandum of understanding with
EFL in which the validity period of the MOU | be
extended for a further period of 120 days, from 11
December 2013 to 10 April 2014 and all the other
terms of the MOU | shall remain valid and shall
not be affected in any respect. On 10 April 2014,
the Company entered into a fourth supplemental
memorandum of understanding with EFL in which
the validity period of the MOU | be extended for a
period of 270 days from 10 April 2014 to 4 January
2015 and all other terms of the MOU | shall remain
valid and shall not be affected in any respect.
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R SL W1 8 T 8 (148 I 851 2 A8 I 8%
NN ARARZAREN—FRE
HIEE MEEREAEEXMERSA
BH AR ZEEEBITRA - (i)
—HRAREREBESERE AR
ZEHMEBTRA - BEHEIREBR
BINGEERORN  HEEPMLEAE
72 32 € 9 530,000,000 % 7T &
20,000,000 7 7T 2 IR X BRHM o 8% |
MBS ZHBHERAREAR T
—=FRATHB IR A -

RZZE—=F+A+—H BIYFE=
7 Estate Fortune Limited ([EFL])Ed
ARABFTLE_DHAEESLS AR
FHAERREBEE Bt B5tklz
AINEFTRENSHSEIZ60KE
MEBITREREOKR(A_E—=F1A
+ZBAE=F—=F+=-A+—H):
RiVBET 22 BEMEXDER
BEARIFETEXEE - RZT
—=F+—AZ=++tA  AQRREEFL
FVEZMEAETN Bt #x
Iz EHIHESITERI120K(FA =
T—=—F+-_A+—HEZ-ZT—WOF
MA+H): #oitkl 22 E Mgk
DERBEFRAIATSZEFE -
MN_Z—NFEMA+H  RNRAREEFL
FIVENNBERERS Bt B
BRI AR E RITEKR270K(A =
T-NENA+BE-_T—RHF— A
WE) -« MESEk 2 280 H Mg
EREEEANFATEIEFE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

On 31 March 2015, the Company entered into a
termination agreement with EFL (the “Termination
Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties agreed
to terminate the MOU |, supplemental MOU, second
supplemental MOU, third supplemental MOU and
fourth supplemental MOU with immediate effect
from 31 March 2015. Pursuant to the Termination
Agreement, EFL shall refund the earnest money
(the "MOU | Earnest Money"”) in the amount of
HK$30,000,000 to the Company within three (3)
business days after the date of the Termination
Agreement.

The MOU | Earnest Money was fully refunded after
the year ended 31 March 2015.

On 1 August 2013, Bliss Zone Limited (“BZL"), an
independent third party, and the Company entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
(the "Acquisition Agreement) as contemplated
under MOU I, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Longisland Tourism Investment &
Development Limited (REKR#EREZRBER R A)
for a consideration of HK$400,000,000, of which
HK$150,000,000 shall be settled by cash and the
remaining balance shall be settled by the issue of
convertible bonds. The total payment amounting
to HK$80,000,000 (including the payment of
HK$20,000,000 mentioned above) (the "MOU I
Earnest Money”) was paid. The transaction was
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 7
November 2013.

Details of the transactions were more particularly
set out in the Company’'s announcements dated
14 June 2013, 1 August 2013, 11 October 2013, 7
November 2013, 27 November 2013 and 10 April
2014 and circular dated 23 October 2013.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

29. FEUR

Hfat

(c)

EXRREMRIE )
(#&
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R-ZZE-—RF=ZA=+—0 ARQF
BEFLAT &R bR IERE]D) -
Bt sTOARERIEESE - &
RETE - FoMEAERE =
MHAFHEBSERFE LD HTE =
M-E-—AF=-A=+—BEMEL
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A=+—ALFER2EBRE -

RZZE—=FNA—H8 BIYFE=H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

On 30 July 2014, the Company and BZL entered
into a supplemental agreement. Pursuant to the
supplemental agreement, the Company and BZL
agreed to extend the long stop date for 3 months
up to and including 31 October 2014. Details of the
supplemental agreement were more particularly set
out in the Company's announcement dated 30 July
2014.

On 28 October 2014, the Company and BZL entered
into a second supplemental agreement. Pursuant to
the second supplemental agreement, the Company
and BZL agreed to extend the long stop date for
a further 6 months from 31 October 2014 up to
and including 30 April 2015. Details of the second
supplemental agreement were more particularly
set out in the Company's announcement dated 28
October 2014.

On 30 April 2015, as the conditions precedent to
the Acquisition Agreement have not been fulfilled
and/or waived (as the case maybe) by the long
stop date and no extension of the time was agreed
by the parties to the Acquisition Agreement, the
Acquisition Agreement has lapsed and ceased to
have any effect and neither party thereto shall
have any rights or obligations towards each other
thereunder, save for liabilities for any antecedent
breaches thereof and the BZL is required to rebate
the MOU Il Earnest Money to the Company within
three (3) days from the long stop date.

The MOU Il Earnest Money was fully refunded after
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Details of lapse of the Acquisition Agreement
were more particularly set out in the Company's
announcement dated 30 April 2015.
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(c)

—ET-hRAF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

EXRREMRIE )

Biet (&

(#)

RZZ-—MFLA=+H AAFHE
BZLAT I # ik - BIBH T W
ARRREBZLE BB &EE LA HT
RIEAE-Z-—WF+A=+—H
(BHEZB) - WRABHEZFBFERN
ARREZZ-NOEELA=+H T
AN

R-ZZ2-—MF+A=-+N\B  KARA
HBZLEI N E M R - BRI
E_OExEWME ARFEBILA
ERREBLAAH -_E-—ME+A
=t-HE—#ER6EAZE=-Z -1
FUA=TH(BEZRA) - £F_0O#
AHBBEZFBEERARAE-_ZE N
FHAZTNBREZAM -

RZZ-—RFMHA=1+H BRKE
1h a2 S8 R {5 A Y A 1R AL AR B R AT
MRERE, REHRRRTHERN
FE) T YR R 2 BT 4970 3 B 1 E
BH - HURBHBED SRBRTHEA
BEAMN  WEHZEZ T 077 E R
Bl E M0 B EMENEE
%o EERNEERKEBHEZEE
Broh - MBZLABETHRIMES A
REBILAMBH=Q) ARRERAR
al e

BRI BELERNBE_S—hF=
A=+—HALFERZ2ERE -

WHEmER B ZHERANAR RS
“E-RFMA=+HZ AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS,
RELATED PARTIES AND AN
ASSOCIATE

Group

At 31 March 2015, all amounts due from/to non-
controlling shareholders, related parties and an
associate were unsecured, interest-free and payable
on demand, except for the followings:

— Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of HK$1,330,000 which borne interest at 5%
per annum was repaid during the year ended
31 March 2015;

— Upon acquisition of Elite China and its
subsidiaries (the "Elite Group"”) in 2011,
the amount due from related parties and
the amounts due to related parties were
HK$8,544,402 and HK$42,226,418 respectively
which represented advances to/from the Elite
Group from/to Yang Lei (including his spouse
and certain related companies controlled by
Yang Lei), a Director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. A confirmation from Yang
Lei and his associates to offset the current
accounts with those related parties was
received by the Group. During the year, certain
settlements with Yang Lei and his associates
were made through current accounts and
as at 31 March 2015, the net amounts due
from such related parties was nil (2014:
HK$1,483,356).

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

30. Bl FEMNIFIERRR - BAE
AT REHE QR

rEE

RZE-—RF=A=+—H BTIX
TSN BB R TEAN SEFERR AR - B
BALTRBERRZ ARG REER
B NERERER

—  RFEFEL5%FHE 2 EN IR
FRFRIE 1,330,000 TEREZE =
T-RE=—A=+—BILEEH

yam

=

— RZIE——FHBREFTAR
EffEAra(ER&ER ))&
FEUEEANTHIBREMNEZEA
T 3R IE 5 Bl 58,544,402 7T &
42,226,418 7L+ AR A/ T
MEBARcESHE(BEERB
RIGEEG 2B TREAT)RME
FREEREB IR - AEE
BSENMEBE A THERIKEEZ
EHEATZARE-FA - B2F
BERKRAGEREBEALTE
HEFTBEE MR-ZZ—HF=
A=+—R BERZEHEEALT
RIERBEATAEL( T —NEF
1,483,356 /8 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

31. RERWITHER

Group Company
TEE ¥ N/NE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-n% —T-0F =%F-HF C—T-MOF
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIRE%@EEE 100,314,658 118,241,763 47,775,906 8,631,546
Pledged bank deposits (note (a)) T EFIRITIFR
(W13t (a) 9,243,655 — 2,300,000 —
Restricted cash at banks held BRI 2 2R H
by subsidiaries (note (b)) RITR L (H5E (b)) — 55,578,359 - —
109,558,313 173,820,122 50,075,906 8,631,546

Notes: Biat -

(a)  Pledged bank deposits of HK$6,943,655 represent (a) DBIEIMIRITF6,943,655/8 LIEAE
deposits pledged to bank to secure certain bills BETRENEEGEI2) mMER TR
payables (note 32). The remaining balance of 11271358 » 850 2,300,000 B LI A%
HK$2,300,000 represented a security for the BEERIRITRE 2ET - SR
Group's credit and banking facilities. The pledged THEFIEEFH0.01%£2.80% 2 F
bank deposits carry interest from 0.01% to 2.80% KB o (ZT—UF - ]&) o
per annum (2014: nil).

(b) Restricted cash at banks held by subsidiaries (b) RZZTE—WOF=A=+—H WEAQ
represented cash at banks held by the Group's AR ZZRERITHESEREER
subsidiaries for license fees collection services P X B B R AT B R R PR TS TS
withdrawal of which is subject to joint approval by ZRITE e FRASBERIVARE
the China Audio-Video Copyright Association and X TEEGEERESEEERS XHua
AX L EB AR AT ("TianHe"), a non-wholly owned Rong Sheng Shi Holding Limited
subsidiary of Hua Rong Sheng Shi Holding Limited ([Hua Rongl) 23k AMBARIRE
(“Hua Rong") as at 31 March 2014. XEEBARAB(RE ] 2 HEH

HE o
(c) At 31 March 2015, cash and bank balances of () RZE—RHF=ZRA=1+—H &%

the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$30,145,486 (2014: HK$141,292,814). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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‘ —E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

32. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. ENHER EERHEMFE

Group Company
rEH ¥ NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-1Rf —T-MF =F-HF —T0OF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T BT BT
Trade creditors JERTE R 15,380,803 10,053,565 - —
Bills payables R 12,624,828 — - —
Other payables and E b e 38 K e
accruals FE-di! 46,638,581 56,327,811 2,330,808 1,584,801
Other deposits received BB Wizse 17,609,126 14,137,587 - —
92,253,338 80,518,963 2,330,808 1,584,301
Included in trade, bills and other payables are trade ERNER RERHEMOREBERENE
creditors with the following ageing analysis as of o HRREBRRZERRAINOT -

the end of reporting period:

Group Company
TEE ARQTF
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MOF ZB-HFE —T—AOF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT Er BT

Current or within 30 days  ElEsiA30H R 15,037,117 7,408,448 — —

31 to 60 days 31260H 1,783,923 175,530 - —
61 to 90 days 61Z90H 935,796 177,193 - —
Over 90 days 90 HEA E 10,248,795 2,292,394 — —

28,005,631 10,053,565 - —

Trade, bills and other payables are expected to be FEREHR - RERAMKRIBRAR —F
settled within one year. MEE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. RITEE
Group Company
REH ¥ NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-1Rf —T-MF =F-HF —T0OF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT
Secured: BEA
Bank borrowings (note) RITEE (M) 60,308,803 29,569,384 - —
Note: Haz -
At the end of reporting period, the bank borrowings were RIREHIR  $RTEEBESHT -
repayable as follows:
Group Company
rEH AATH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MNF ZZB-HFE ZT—NOF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT
Borrowings repayable: ERAT BEIERE -
Within one year —FER 33,922,913 29,569,384 — —
More than one year, but not iR —F - BT
exceeding two years BRF 6,312,414 — - —
More than two years, but HIBMF - BT
not exceeding five years BRF 20,073,476 — - —
60,308,803 29,569,384 - —
Less: Amount due within one & : R—FERER
year included in current 2R FA
liabilities mBAaE (33,922,913) (29,569,384) - —
Amount due after one year N—ERERN 7 8 26,385,890 — - —

Personal and corporate guarantees were given to banks
for certain bank loans by Yang Lei, a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, and a related company,
which is beneficially owned by Yang Lei and his spouse.
Further, personal assets of Yang Lei have been pledged to
secure the bank loans. The interest rate is 7.20%-17.64%
(2014: 6.00%-17.64%) per annum.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015
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34. OTHER BORROWINGS 34. Httfg &
Group Company
TEE VNN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-HF —T-WUF =FT-HF —T0OF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B o
Promissory notes, AR R R
unsecured (note (a)) (K1t (a) — 26,640,500 — 26,640,500
Other loan, secured EmAEBER
(note (b)) (Ki&E (b)) 13,000,000 - —
39,640,500 — 26,640,500
(a) In 2013 the Company issued promissory (a) MNIZZTE-—Z=ZFEARAETASHE

notes with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$37,190,500 and fair value of
HK$33,510,000 as part of the consideration
for the acquisition of Media Sound. The
promissory notes were unsecured, non-
interest bearing and due on 29 January 2014.

On 14 February 2014, the Company entered
into an variation agreement (“Variation
Agreement”) with Miss Lau Wang Tai, Wendy,
a vendor of the acquisition of Media Sound
("Miss Lau"), pursuant to which the Company,
upon signing of Variation Agreement, repaid
the sum of HK$10,550,000 to Miss Lau under
a promissory note in the principal amount of
HK$16,742,300 (“"Promissory Note A") and
issued to Miss Lau a new promissory note
(“Promissory Note C"”) for the outstanding
sum of HK$6,192,300 under Promissory Note
A with 30 June 2014 as the last date for
payment under Promissory Note C.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

¥37,190,500% 7t &~ F B (A
33,510,000 7T 2 # H Fi& - 1E
R EBHER 2 REz—&H - %
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I ARARREEET R HBERIR
B R4 %816,742,30078 7T 2 H A,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(Continued)

On the same date, the Company entered into
a payment extension agreement (“Payment
Extension Agreement”) with Mr. Tsang Yat
Lai, another vendor of the acquisition of Media
Sound (“Mr. Tsang”),

Company and Mr.

pursuant to which the
Tsang agreed to extend
the last date of payment of a promissory note
in the principal amount of HK$20,448,200
("Promissory Note B") to 30 June 2014. Save
for the extension, the terms and conditions
of Promissory Note B remain intact and
unchanged.

Other details of the Variation Agreement and
Payment Extension Agreement were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 14
February 2014.

The promissory notes were repaid in full
during the year ended 31 March 2015. Details
of the repayment of promissory notes were
more particularly set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 26 August 2014.

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

34. HitvfE &)
(a) (4

A ARRBEWNBEBEER S
—EFGRKREE(TEXRE]D
BT L BAE ER 155 5 ([ 1 3T 23 #
#) Bt ARRBREELERE
15 7K 4 58 20,448,200 7% JT 2 # X,
ZR(EAEEB]) z&ENZKE

/quﬁxﬁﬁi—g_mg/\ﬂi—'—a °
BRIERASN - A RIR B 2 R R

HoFAERRTE -

B it K A SR R ek 2 ELAdRE
BRARBE-_T-—OF-—A+MH
B3 2 R AREE -

AEAERBEERBE_T—AF=HA
T HEFEABHEE - B8
ERBBEZHBIARARBE-F
—HENAZFRBTZEZ M -

i

Movement of promissory notes is as follows: AHERE ST
2015 2014
—E-HF —4E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April REA— 26,640,500 34,125,098
Imputed interest expenses BETEMBHRE - 3,065,402
Redemption fED (26,640,500) (10,550,000)
At 31 March R=A=+—~” — 26,640,500
T-AEFY

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

34. OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(b)  On 26 March 2014, the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party to
borrow a loan of HK$13,000,000. The loan was
matured on 26 September 2014. The effective
interest rate is 8% per annum.

The loan was secured by a deposit of
RMB11,000,000 (equivalent to HK$13,870,500)
(note 29).

The loan was fully set-off by the pledged
deposit of RMB11,000,000 on 27 September
2014.

35. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE

PAYMENTS

Group

The Group has recorded provision for long service
payment obligations for employees. Under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances to certain
employees who have completed at least five years
of service with the Group. The amount payable
is dependent on the employees’ final salary and
year of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group's retirement plans that
are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund
any remaining obligations.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

34. HthfEE#)

b) M-ZT—MEZA -+ K&
EE— 2B B = AR R 0 B
f& A 13,000,000 T 2 B ° 7%
BERERZZE—WmFNAZ+AH
FE - BERFHNEAE8% o

ZE R ATF AR 11,000,000
JC (M % 713,870,500 7t ) E1E
1R (HFzE29) °

ZEFR-_Z—NEAA-++H
LAE T3 A R ¥ 11,000,000
TOAEEUR G o

35. REIRBHE

rEE

AEBERRBIRHEMRE S 2 EE
REMG - BEREB(EREL) MF
AEEEETHEATRILERERAEE
REEIAFZETERE  AANEE
FRZEAREZNREE - BN
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35. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE

PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

35. REIRBERE#)

Movement in provision for long service payments is

as follows:

RHRBEREZZSOT

Group

AEE
2015 2014
—F-HfF —TWF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April and 31 March REA—BER=A=+—H 42,373 42,373

36. DEFERRED TAXATION 36. ELEBIIE
Group rEH

The movements on the net deferred tax (assets)/

liabilities during the year are as follows:

EEBIB(EE) BEFERNFAZE
EL

Group
rEE
2015 2014
—F-RF% —T@0OF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April RIA—H 12,561,503 52,232,416
Tax credited to profit or loss (note 14) FrABm BB (M 14) (21,227,387) (1,632,765)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT
(note 41(a), (c), (d)) (Bfiz41(a) - (c)~ () 6,917,619 (38,161,314)

Tax charged to other comprehensive

e HE 2R E 2 HIR

income (note 18) (K1at18) 107,925 123,166
At 31 March N=A=+—H (1,640,340) 12,561,503
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 T—F 4GS

173



174

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 March 2015, no
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unused tax losses (2014: HK$30,884,396)
due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
Tax losses of HK$85,029,605 (2014: nil) can be
carried forward indefinitely and the tax losses of
HK$49,938,043 (2014: HK$30,884,396) will be
expired in five years.

In addition to the amount charged/credited to the
profit or loss, deferred tax relating to the revaluation
and disposal of the Group's certain leasehold land
and buildings during the year has been recognised
in other comprehensive income.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same
taxable entity) during the year are as follows:

36. ELEBIE (&)

REE(E)

BEEFMEMEEDREE 2 BIEEIE
R WABAEBESBBEERZERD
BAHEEBEARBENZAR RZ2F
—HEF=ZA=+—HB ARHEUER
FRBFZARE WMEARADAHK
HEBERRAEEHREEAE(ZZT —
F :30,884,3967% L ) B B E 18
85,029,605 8 0( — T — M4 « ) Al &
PR EA%EEE - MR TEE 18 49,938,043 % T
(—Z /44 : 30,884,396 8 7T) R A
FAEM

BREEMR G AZ B BER
EfMRHEAEEETHELHWRET
BRI CRIERIAD R E A2 W am A g

.
=7
Ao ©

EREBREENBRERN -ERHE
B2 AR N FERZZEBT

Group
A58
(Decelerated)/accelerated
Deferred tax [assets]/liabilities EEHE(&%)/8E  Property revaluation  accounting depreciation Tax losses Intangible assets Total
NEEf (HE)/ NEEHTE HakR EyER b
215 2014 215 2014 2015 014 2015 014 2015 014
“%-1f 30 CB-Rf IO Z%-Bf S-MF C%-1fF C3-0F CB-RE CEIE

HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

A AT A AT A A -3 A & A1

[Restated)

(#31)

At 1 Aprll imA-1 1,659,778 1536612 (4113,155) 34364651 (7,721,099) (9842,906] 22735979 26,174,059 12561503 52,232,416

Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - (38161314 7,328,668 - (411,049) 6,917,619 (38,161,314)
Creditedlcharged) to profit ~ 3+A/(H18) &

or loss - — 705112 (316492 392431 2121807 (22,324930) (3,438,080 (21,227,387) (1,632,768)
Charged to other RSl e

comprehensive income 107925 123166 - - - - - — 10795 123766

At 31 March it s 1,767,703 1659778 (3,408,043 (4,113,155 - (7721099 - 2273979 (1,640,340) 12,561,503

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED T EREER AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to
income tax levied by same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position:

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

36. ELEBIE (&)

REE(E)

BEERBREENBBEERTHEEER
ROIMBRBERIEAR R MITENE
MR BRI 1S TR B[R — I A RE [
Fl— RV ERBBWZMIEHARRE -
HAIEREHE  UTRAKEZ&A M
BARRKAREEELREHEREE
TR

Group
AEME
2015 2014
—B-HfF _—ZT—NOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deferred tax assets R IBE E (1,640,340) —
Deferred tax liabilities BLERIBEE — 12,561,503

(1,640,340) 12,561,503

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised is
HK$748,622 (2014: HK$15,052,929). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the
timing of reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

Company

At 31 March 2015, the Company had estimated
unutilised tax losses of HK$28,940,196 (2014:
HK$43,627,057). No deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. B&
(a) Authorised and issued share capital (a) ZEEREDRITERAE
Group and Company KEF KT
2015 2014
“E-1% —E-mE
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
Rt 8A B Ri#A AT
Authorised: BE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each  SREE0.05/E 7T
Lak
At 1 April and 31 March REA-BR
ZA=1-H 20,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 20,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each ~ &EEE0.05/87T2
LRk
At 1 April RmA-A 598,767,047 29,938,352 598,767,047 29,938,352
Placing of new shares (note (i) BRENRR
(hz) 119,752,000 5,987,600 — —
At 31 March R=R=T—H 718,519,047 35,925,952 598,767,047 29,938,352

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Authorised and
(Continued)

issued share capital

Note:

(i) On 28 November 2014, the Company entered
into a placing agreement with a placing agent
for the placing of an aggregate 119,752,000
new ordinary shares of the Company at a
placing price of HK$0.5 per placing share.
Accordingly, the Company issued 119,752,000
new ordinary shares at HK$0.5 per share
on 10 December 2014. As a result, there
was an increase in share capital and share
premium of approximately HK$5,987,600
and HK$53,888,400 respectively. Details of
the placing are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 28 November 2014 and
10 December 2014.

Capital management policy

The Group's objectives of managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell

assets to reduce debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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37. BA &)
(a) ZEERCBITRA(E)

wat -

(i) RZE—WOF+—A=+NB"
PN BNk R A S VA R =
o EREEERIEERKDOS
7 7T B 119,752,000 i A 2
RAIFEEAR - AL ARFAR
—T-ME+ - A+ BREE
BTRESERMHSB LET
119,752,000 & #7 & i@ ik o A
N R iR 10 5 B B w9 Bl 3 A0 A
5,987,600/%8 7t } 53,888,400 /&
TL e MEZFBRHNARFRZ
T—mNF+—A=ZF+NBHEZ=Z
—OFE+—RA+RFIBE QM -

(b) BEXREEEE

AEEEREAZ ARAREBASE
BFELE RN ARKRERE
R [= e e A Eo A B 25 458 A 5 SR A
& URERREEARERE - UK
EEARKA

REFHRHEERARE  FAEEH
SREBEABRRIKMT ZBRELE [
BREBEER  BITHRILEER
ENREET -
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ANEEED (BRERARER)

)
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

38. RESERVES 38. f#fE
Company bN/NG|
Employee
share-based
Share  Contributed compensation  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
PV UETPA
R EE BARS  EEHMEE 258 an
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Er AT AT A1 A
At 1 April 2013 RZF-ZFHA-H 2,024,217,103 28,784,000 5,698,000 (1,399,237,184) 659,461,919
Loss for the year KEEBR - - —  (94927897)  (94,927,897)
Equity-settled share-based transactions ~ IREEEEMRG LA 2
(note 39) RH(HE39) - - 9,376,692 - 9,376,692
Share options forfeited R R 59)
(note 39) - - 5,698,000) 5,698,000 -
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZE-EF=A=1+-AR
“E-RERA-A 2,024,217,103 28,784,000 9,376,692  (1,488,467,081) 573,910,714
Loss for the year KEEBR - - —  (470,191527)  (470,191,527)
Issuance of ordinary shares ErEER 53,888,400 - - - 53,888,400
Share issue expenses EIRHER (1,854,176) - - - (1,854,176
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RE=A=1-H 2,076,251,327 28,784,000 9,376,692  (1,958,658,608) 155,753,411

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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38. RESERVES (continued)

The following describes the nature and purpose of

B 5 3R & MY &=
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31 March 2015

38. f#E®)
AT AERR B EER

each reserve within owners’ equity: ER:ORE

Reserve Description and purpose

A R B

Company

bINNE|

Share premium Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.
1D s B RERAERAMECSHE -

Contributed surplus

The difference between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the
subsidiaries at the date when they were acquired by the Company
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation prior to the listing
of the Company's shares in 1991. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is available for
distribution to the shareholders provided that the Company is able to
meet its obligations after distribution and the net realisable value of
the Company’s assets would not be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities, issued share capital and share premium accounts.
MBAREARFRIKENBARI BB ZRERRESERATRMG RN
—NMN—FEMRETSEEARRKEME T 2ARAGRNEELE
BeRBBE-NN—FAREQRRDEA(KIER) BEHBAKAIHIIKRTRE
BUERRRAINDIRKEERNBITEEE  MARGEEZAIERFET
ZENEGE DBTRARRMDGER &FHER

Employee share-based Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share options to
compensation reserve

VAR D 32 54 2 18 B $r B e 18

the employees over the vesting period.
REBERRMEER TRRERER 2 2RI E -
Accumulated losses Cumulative net losses recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

RIEEE KRB 2ERERER L REEBEFE -
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38. RESERVES (continued)

Reserve

]
Group

A EH

Other reserve

Hibf#

Other properties revaluation
reserve

Hip R ER R

Foreign exchange reserve
SN & 1

Investment revaluation

38. @®E®)

Description and purpose

R B #

The difference between the consideration and the carrying amount of
the net assets attributable to the additional and reduction of interests
in subsidiaries being acquired from and disposed to non-controlling
equity holders respectively.

REEMFEZFREEFBEABBERHE TIERERFEAZMBE QR #E
RGNS D RIEE 2 FEERAE S 5

Gains/losses arising on the revaluation of the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings (other than investment property) (see note 18). The
balance on this reserve is wholly undistributable.
EMAKEHET M REFREMERIN (R 18)EEzKE B
B LREEZEBERE B TADIK o

Gains/losses arising on retranslating the net assets of foreign
operations into Hong Kong dollars.

EMESINEBEEFEEBIMEE 2 KE B -

Gains/losses arising on recognising financial assets classified as

reserve available for sale at fair value.
KEEHFE BERLEAE A TEBENHEEMBEEMEE 2 W FHiE -
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED L IERBEER DR
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39. SHARE OPTIONS

On 30 August 2002, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Old Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting and retaining quality
personnel and other persons who may contribute
to the business and operation of the Group.
Options may be granted without any initial payment
to persons including Directors, employees or
consultants of the Group.

On 30 August 2012, the Company adopted a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved in the Company's
annual general meeting on 29 August 2012.
The New Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of 10 years from 30 August
2012. A summary of the rules of the New Share
Option Scheme is set out in the appendix to the
Company’s circular dated 20 July 2012.

On 23 December 2013, options were granted to
Directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries under the New Share Options Scheme
to subscribe for up to 32,333,421 ordinary shares
of the Company (“2013 Share Options”). The
estimated fair value of the options granted on that
date was approximately HK$9,376,692 and the
amount was recognised as staff cost expense for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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IR

RERSIWEBFTEBFIAS REMAIEEH
AEEEBRELBERZALT K
REIRZEZEZFN\NA=THEM—IF
R EI([ ERRERTE]) - REERE
A HBASZ MEMYZFHIBmME T RER
EECEE EESEMRERAZAL -

R-ZZT——FN\A=+H KQAEMH
—IEF R AERT B ([ 3R ERT &) -
HEERZZE—ZF N \AZT+NBEXR
AIREBF RS HE o FTRRAE BN
REZZE——F/\A=THEF10FH
MR AN - FTRRETERA 2 HE
HNARBRPAE-_T——FE+A -+
A 2 i 2 B8R o

R-_ZE—=F+-"A-+=H AAQ7A
RIBFRREFTE M AR RENE A
A EEREERLRRE  URER
%3233 21 ARAIERAKR(I=ZZ
—=FRBE]  RZBEBH 2RKRE
2 hET A {EEH /9,376,692 7T -
ZEeHEEREBEE T NF=A=+—
HIEFEBERABEIRARY -
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39. SHARE OPTIONS (cContinued) 39. RRE )

182

The fair value of the 2010 Share Options and 2013
Share Options was calculated using Binominal
Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model are
as follows:

Grant date BB E

Grant date share price R BB IRE
Exercise price 1B
Expected life TEERE R
Expected volatility TEHAR i@

Expected dividend yield FEHARR B =

Risk-free interest rate B3 b A X
Expected volatility is determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company's share price
over the previous one year. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’'s best estimate, for the effects
of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

No option was granted, exercised and lapsed during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Group recognised an expense of HK$9,376,692
in respect of the options granted which was included
in staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, options for
1,750,000 shares had been forfeited. The value of
the lapsed options of HK$5,698,000 was released
directly to accumulated losses.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

HK$0.55 per share

HK$0.57 per share

T -TERBRR T =FRNE
2 DT EET AR B A
# - MEERAHAZ SR -

2013 2010

—2-=% e

Share Options Share Options
RIRE RIAE

23 December 2013 29 July 2010
—EB-=fF —E-TF
+=B=+=H +A-t+AhE

HK$4.98 per share
Fhg4.98%7T
HK$5.24 per share

SR 0.55 % T

HR057ET FhR5.24 T
10 years 10 years
105 104

80% 83%

Nil Nil

i i

2.26% 2.32%

BHREIMERAR BN IBE—FRE
ZELKEMERE - EAPERZEH
FHEREEBZREMITES
& RATERTRAREZZEELT

K o

1=

BE - Z—AF=—A=1+—HItFE -
BERREERDL - TERBEKRK -

AEBRAREBDREERFAX
9,376,692 L EEBEFFAEHZE -
—ME=A=+—BIEFEZEIK
Z’So

HE-_Z-NE=ZA=+—BILtEE "
7 11,750,000 & i 15 2 SR AR #E B 8
Yo B R RMHE 2 (B 1E 5,698,000
TEEEBAREE -



39. SHARE OPTIONS (cContinued)

The following table discloses the movements of

options during the year:

B 5 3R & MY &=
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

39. ARE#)

TEREERBRERFAZES

Year 2015 —E—-REF
Number of
exercisable
Number of shares in respect of options granted options
BREDRBMIR ZRAHE THEIREYA
Evercise  Outstandingat  Granted during  Lapsed during  Outstanding at As at
Date of grant Exercisable period Vesting period price 1 April 2014 the year the year 31 March 2015 31 March 2015
W-E-mg W-%-1%
mA-B ZRET-B HC3-EE
il fik4 BEY kR AR ERERY ERBAN WATE  ZB=t-A
HKS
AT
Executive directors
Y1rgs
Cheng Yang
5
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 0.57 5,987,670 - - 5,987,670 5,987,670
22 December 2023 date of grant
5cF S e vt I 4 =F i
ZAZ1zH BIECCHETOACTCE
Lei Lei
g5
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 0.57 5,388,903 - - 5,388,903 5,388,903
22 December 2023 date of grant
5% ECETCACTSR S NRHEHREEE
TZAZtZR EIRIETIAZTIR
Li Weipeng
X
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 057 2,993,835 - - 2,993,835 2,993,835
22 December 2023 date of grant
“E-cf IEEIRCTER ARLAHRYEE
TZAZTZE EIRCCETIACTCR
14,370,408 - - 14,370,408 14,370,408
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —HEFY
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39. SHARE OPTIONS (cContinued)

Year 2015 (Continued)

39.

IR )
—B-HEH)

Number of
exercisable
Number of shares in respect of options granted options
BREZRERS Rz RAEE piiEtiviE
Exercise  Outstandingat  Granted during  Lapsed during  Outstanding at As at
Date of grant Exercisable period Vesting period price 1 April 2014 the year theyear 31 March 2015 31 March 2015
H-g-mE H-%-1%
BA-A ZA=1-A W-E-1f
il fikH BEY kR HATE ERERY ERBAY WATE  ZBEt-H
HK$
biia
Independent non-executive directors
BUsaGES
Tong Jingguo
h5E
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 0.57 299,384 - - 299,384 299,384
22 December 2023 date of grant
3k E-IETCACEER NRHAEREEE
toBot2E ETECCETIAZTIR
Yang Rusheng
i
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 0.57 299,384 - - 299,384 299,384
22 December 2023 date of grant
5F S U s N 0 fil=F 3
+ZRZ1=H FIRCZETCACTIR
So Tat Keung
gk
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 057 299,384 - - 299,384 299,384
22 December 2023 date of grant
“E-ck TE-IRDRCTEA RREBHRERE
tZR-t=H FIRCZETZRITIR
898,152 - - 898,152 898,152
Employees
8
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 057 17,064,861 - - 17,064,861 17,064,861
22 December 2023 date of grant
%= TE-TETIAITER RRNPEREEE
toBoTzR EIECCETIAZTCR
32,3421 - - 3 32,3341
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED X ZREER AT
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39. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 39. ARER)
Year 2014 —E—gF
Number of
exercisable
Number of shares in respect of options granted options
EREIRERS Rz RAHE PhiEtiviE
Evercise  Outstandingat  Granted during  Lapsed during  Outstanding at As at
Date of grant Exercisable period Vesting period price 1 April 2013 the year theyear 31 March 2014 31 March 2014
R-g-zf H-g-m%
BA-A ZRZr-B WoE-BE
il fikH BES kR AR ERERY ERBAN WATE  ZA=T-R
HKS
AT
Executive directors
y1rgs
Cheng Yang
5
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 0.57 - 5,987,670 - 5,987,670 5,987,670
22 December 2023 date of grant
-5z S e vt I 4 =F -
t2pz1=R FoFCCETCRCTCR
Lei Lei
BE
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 0.57 - 5,388,903 - 5,388,903 5,388,903
22 December 2023 date of grant
3Tk SESETCACTER RAHEHRYEE
TZAZtzR EIECCETIAZTIR
Li Weipeng
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 057 - 2,993,835 - 2,993,835 2,993,835
22 December 2023 date of grant
“E-cE Z3-TEZACEER RALAN2EERE
+-A-12R EIRCCErIACTCE
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 T — A FF
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39. SHARE OPTIONS (cContinued)

Year 2014 (Continued)

39.

AREE)

Number of
exercisable
Number of shares in respect of options granted options
BREDRBASR ZRAHE TARAREHE
Evercise  Outstandingat  Granted during  Lapsed during  Outstanding at As at
Date of grant Exercisable period Vesting period price 1 April 2013 the year theyear 31 March 2014 31 March 2014
H-g-z% H-g-n%
mA-B ZRZT-B 0 HI3-BE
il fikH BEY fikE AR ERERH ERE&H HAGE  ZA=t-R
HKS
AT
Zheng Yuchun
ga%
29 July 2010 10 October 2010 - Vesting from 5.24 600,000 - (600,000} - -
28 July 2020 29 July 2010 to
1 Qctober 2010
53 5-RETATE EI5-%%
tAZthR EIRCEFLACTAR tAZTAR
75-5%
+H-RER
29 July 2010 Ty 2011 - Vesting from Lyl 600,000 - (600,000) - -
28 July 2020 29 July 201010
T July 2011
5-%F e FIE-%%
tA=t0R ETECRELECTNR tBCtAR
35-F
th-A5E
29 July 2010 1July 2012 - Vesting from Ly 550,000 - (550,000) - -
28 July 2020 29 July 2010 to
1July 2012
“E-3E E2-ErR-8 ECE-2%
tA-thA ERCRELACTNR AR
FE-Cf
tA-REE
1,750,000 14,370,408 (1,750,000 14,370408 14,370,408
186 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED AR EBR AR



B 5 3R & MY &=

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZE-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

39. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 39. RRER)
Year 2014 (Continued) —E-EE)
Number of
exercisable
Number of shares in respect of options granted options
BRLARERS R RAHE piietiviE
Evercise  Outstandingat  Granted during  Lapsed during  Outstanding at As at
Date of grant Exercisable period Vesting period price 1 April 2013 the year theyear 31 March 2014 31 March 2014
H-g-f H=%-RE
mA-B ZRZT-B HI3-BE
il fikH §ES fikE WAGE ERERY ERE&H WATE  ZAZT-R
HKS
AT
Independent non-executive directors
Bujungs
Tong Jingguo
kel
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 0.57 - 299,384 - 299,384 299,384
22 December 2023 date of grant
“5-: Sl e vt I 4 =F -
TZRZt=H BIECCHETOACTCE
Yang Rusheng
i
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 0.67 - 299,384 - 299,384 299,384
22 December 2023 date of grant
o8-k CE-IFDACTER RRHRHREEE
TZAZtZR EIRITETIACTCR
So Tat Keung
&
23 Decemoer 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 057 - 299,384 - 299,384 299,384
22 December 2023 date of grant
“EcE IEEPIRCTER ARLAHRYEE
TZA=tzH FIRCZETIAITCR
- 898,152 - 898,152 898,152
Employees
fE8
23 December 2013 23 December 2013 - Fully vested on 0.57 - 17,064,861 - 17,064,861 17,064,861
22 December 2023 date of grant
5% TE-CETCACTEA ARNPEREEE
tZAtzAR EIEITEIACTIR
1,750,000 32,333,421 (1,750,000 32,333,421 32,333,421
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 T-REFY
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@ On 3 July 2014, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Great Future
Investment Limited, an independent third party
to dispose the entire issued share capital of
and shareholders’ loan due from Hua Rong
at the consideration of HK$30,000,001. The
transaction was completed on 8 August 2014.

Hua Rong holds 70% equity interests in
TianHe which is principally engaged in licence
fee collection and provision of intellectual
property enforcement services business in

40. HEMB AT

(a) MZZT—MFELA=H AR AEH
BUYE=AERKREGRAAE
EE e - LAHE Hua Rong 2 &
e TRA R EK Hua Rong 2
BEEHR - K& /30,000,001
e RGERZE—NFENANER
FEAK o

Hua RongHBXRE L 70% IR #E -
EFEEHERERTEERAK
ERRHABEREERGERS

PRC.
HK$
BT
Net liabilities disposed of: &z aEF8E
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE L& 1,762,526
Intangible assets mLERE 2,535,983
Deferred tax assets BLETIBEE 7,328,668
Cash and cash equivalents RehReFEEAEB 61,378,913
Restricted cash at banks ZRHIRITRE 32,705,110
Other receivables H b e U FR0E 6,281,817
Amount due from non-controlling shareholder JE U SE 28 I A% 3R 518 554,152
Trade and other payables FERTE SR R EMRIE (18,116,744)
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder JE - SEVE AR AR 51 3R IR (37,080,887)
Shareholder’s loan R E R (106,170,028)
Deferred tax liabilities ERETIBEEE (411,049)
Tax payables FERHLIR (176,160)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR (10,260,417)
(59,668,116)
Shareholder's loan receivable disposed of Frif & < R AR R B 5 106,170,028
Reclassification of cumulative exchange differences ZI&ME }{ Z 58 M IMNEFEEHEH
from foreign exchange reserve to profit or loss NEEER (471,831)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZEE (16,030,080)
Total consideration satisfied by: LATF AR B EBRE -
Cash Be 30,000,001
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HESEMELEZRER
SFEE
Cash received B 30,000,001

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

T ERe MBS EEEE (61,378,913)

(31,378,912)

188 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

40. HEMWB AR (&)

(b) On 14 February 2014, the Group entered b) RZZE—NWF_-_A+WMH K&
into a sale and purchase agreement for the BV EBEWE LRAKRIEL
disposal of 60% of the issued share capital of E(RRABTEERQR(RAE
Chance Music Limited (“CML") to Mr. Chan B ZHETEBRRERES) HER
Siu Kei, a non-controlling shareholder and a AEFEDETRAZ60% @ R
director of CML, for a total consideration of {€/49,500,000/87C - HEFHEA
HK$9,500,000. The disposal was a related MEALTRS  LER_ZT—NF
party transaction and was completed on 14 Z“A+EATEK -

February 2014.
HK$
BT
Net assets disposed of: FrinE&ESE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE kEFE 2,214
Trade and other receivables FEUE B H A 5B 18,250
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMBLEFBEAE 996,780
Trade and other payables FERTE R KR H A FIA (518,407)
Non-controlling interests AR R (199,534)
299,303
Gain on disposal & 2 e 9,200,697
Total consideration HRE 9,500,000
Total consideration satisfied by: LATHN A EERRE -
Cash received BUIRE 8,545,517
Set off with trade and other payables HIE R B R R E A 5RIE 954,483
9,500,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HESEMELEZRERAFE -
Cash received BlUlRE 8,645,517
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of It EReRIAEFEEE (996,780)
7,548,737
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 ToAEFE 189



190

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40. HEMWB AR (&)

() On 22 October 2013, Nanjing Yinkun ) RZT—=F+HA=+=ZH AR
Investment Corporation* (B R 1IE 1% & & % Rl EEIETENE R G HE R IR
AT (“Nanjing Yinkun”), an indirect non- REBEXEBRAF([EEREH])
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, BBV E = FERILEERERE
entered into a sale and purchase agreement BFERARAAUTERILE&L]ET
with Nanjing Shanhaijing Agricultural VEEWE B mRBEHEE
Technology Development Company Limited* HERERLSERZWEAR A
(BRWEBERERBEREMRAF)("Nanjing ZEEIIEREWB AR B AIRBE
Shanhaljmg ), an independent third party, ELERKEEEARAA(ER
pursuant to which Nanjing Yinkun agreed to RIEBELESEEE ) Z2ES
dispose of, and Nanjing Shanhaijing agreed EARARES5,100,000 T([HEE
to acquire, RMB5,100,000 of the contributed x]) RE/ARYS5,500,0007T
capital (the “Sale Capital”) of Nanjing Yinkun (#76,935,250/87C) * WE AR ®
Asset Management Company Limited* (5 B - HEEATERBHBES
RIRMBAEEELEEE AR A AF)("Nanjing EZ«<%§E¥Z%@‘§Q§K§$51%
Yinkun Asset Management”), an indirect non- REVR-_E—=F+_-_HA=+WMAH
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for a SERK ©
consideration of RMB5,500,000 (approximately
HK$6,935,250) which was satisfied by cash.

The Sale Capital represents 51% of total
contributed capital of Nanjing Yinkun Asset
Management. The transaction was completed
on 24 December 2013.
HK$
/%73
Net assets disposed of: P& B EFE :
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 96,336,487
Goodwill Bl 1,719,839
Trade and other receivables JE W Sk I Ao 5RIE 20,362,792
Amount due from immediate holding JE U B VAR A B R
company 1,846,749
Amounts due from related parties e Y s A £ 3RIB 9,078,873
Cash and cash equivalents Re RBELEEIAE 32,975,742
Trade and other payables FERTE R K H AL FUIR (7,833,246)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries EANEES G NGRS (1,702,289)
Amount due to a non-controlling equity I SEIER R A AR
holder (13,933,548)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (96,248,661)
Current tax liabilities RIIMIBEE (3,455,069)
Deferred tax liabilities REMIBEE (6,737,285)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR (13,426,838)
18,983,546
Loss on disposal & 2 EiE (12,048,296)
Total consideration satisfied by: AT F =B EERE
Cash received BUR® 6,935,250
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HESEMELEZRESRTFE -
Cash received BUR & 6,935,250
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of Fﬁtﬂ’%ziﬁi&fﬁ £EIBE (32,975,742)
(26,040,492)
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED L IER AR A
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(d)

On 19 April 2013, the Company entered into
a provisional sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose the
entire issued share capital of and shareholders’
loan due from Wellrich Investments
Limited (“Wellrich”) at the consideration of
RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$187,915,000), subject to adjustments.

The disposal of Wellrich was approved by the
Company's shareholders at the special general
meeting dated 25 June 2013.

The adjusted consideration was RMB137,623,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$172,410,000),
which was arrived at by deducting the estimated
redundancy payment of RMB7,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,769,000) and
the estimated exceed of current liabilities over
current assets amounting to RMB5,377,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,736,000) from
the consideration.

Wellrich holds 94% equity interests in
Zhaoqging Star-Lake Club (“Star-Lake Club"),
which is principally engaged in hotel operation
in PRC. Upon the disposal of Star-Lake
Club, the cumulative amount of exchange
differences amounting to approximately
HK$59,156,000 previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
foreign exchange reserve was reclassified
from foreign exchange reserve to profit or loss
when the gain on disposal was recognised.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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40. HEMWB AR (&)

(d)

RZZE—=FWMA+NE  XQF
H—Z2BUF A UREEER
= - DAHE Wellrich Investments
Limited ([Wellrich |) = & & & %
1T IR B FE W Wellrich 2 IR R &
= REAARE 150,000,000 7T
(HBZ14187,915,00087T) » A
TR -

& Wellrich E& KRR BIIER B
HAE—ZE—=F"A-1+HBAZK
REFRIRE EHE -

n

LHRERE AR AR 137,623,000
T % B #172,410,0007%
L) DRERGTEHREBARKE
7,000,000 7T (1B % 7 498,769,000
B REFTRBEBEBRATEE
EZ =% AR5,377,000 T (
£ 496,736,000 70)1%

Fal

WellrichBBEEEMELI([2
WEZEE ) 2 94% IR E - MiEHE
FTEAFBEREREERE - HEL
WMREEEE - AT EAM 2 E WS
BRI INE B RTE 2 RETIER
ZE#%)59,156,0008 T E R HE
W ERRRE S FEETSE

Nz
ENiEn
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40. HEMWB AR (&)

(d) (Continued) (d (&
HK$
BT
Net liabilities disposed of: FrtEz B EFE
Property, plant and equipment L ER Y 655,869
Payments for leasehold land held for REgERANFE 2 BAEE
own use under operating leases TR 184,694,557
Inventories FE 3,202,237
Trade and other receivables FEUE R b FR 1,241,602
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEMEIAR 1,553,399
Trade and other payables FERTE R R A M FRIE (10,834,446)
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUL R X B B A B3R IE 15,576,600
Amount due to non-controlling
shareholder FEAT I AR AR BR R IE (11,643,311)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE (31,424,029)
Non-controlling interests EIS g (902,535)
Shareholder’s loan BRER (261,574,814)
(109,454,871)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange BRtEH EE R INEREEN
differences from foreign exchange NEEER
reserve to profit or loss (59,156,406)
Repayment of shareholder’s loan EEREER 261,574,814
Gain on disposal HEz IE 79,446,079
Total consideration satisfied by: LATH A EERRE -
Cash received BURE 172,409,616
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HESEMELEZRERAFE -
Cash received BUIRE 172,409,616
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FIREReRIReEHEEE (1,553,399)
170,856,217
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED AL 12 18 & B R A 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 17 October 2013, Witty Idea and Rich
Success, a non-controlling shareholder of
Well Allied entered into a loan agreement in
which Witty Idea agreed to advance to Rich
Success a loan in the total principal amount
of HK$11,300,000. The loan was secured by
7.978 ordinary shares of Well Allied, owned
by Rich Success and loan receivables of
HK$10,600,039 due from Well Allied. The
loan bears an effective interest rate of 10%
per annum and shall be repayable on the
last working date of thirteen month from 17
October 2013.

On 17 November 2014, Rich Success gave
a written notice to the Group that Rich
Success had no ability to repay the aforesaid
loan and corresponding interest in total of
HK$12,416,246 and agreed to transfer the
7.978 ordinary shares of Well Allied and the
loan receivables of HK$10,600,039 to the
Group to settle the outstanding loan and
interest.

Following the transfer of the 7.978 ordinary
shares of Well Allied, the Group holds an
aggregate of 114.585 shares in Well Allied,
representing approximately 71.81% of the
total issued share capital of Well Allied.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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41. WIEHEB AR 2 FEIMER

(a)

RZZE—=F+A++tH - @vH
BEZIEERBRREALER
Wk Eit - BYRERAE BN
K& #F 511,300,000t 28
R ZEREAMEE 27978 K%
SR EE AR N SR B A R 2 FEWE IR
10,600,039 JTLEH i - 2 E X
NEBEEMEI10%TE - TAR
ZE—=F+tATtARBH T =@
AZ&ETIEREE -

mNEE FMEREAEFES K
12,416,246 0 WA E A A L%
E 8 7.978 A% 56 B T3 IR R B R
B 710,600,039 T A /B (B K &
EERRFE -

REHE7 978 IR B RRE - K
SEFHE A H£114.585 0% B B AR
- R 2HEHTRAY
71.81% °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

41. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(a)  (Continued)

Details of the acquisition of additional interests
in Well Allied during the year ended 31 March
2015 are summarised as follows:

41. WM B AR 2 M MER (2)

(a)

(%

REE2-_ZE—RF=-A=+—H1t
FREWERE 2 BEIMER 2 F 1B
Fu (N

HK$
BT
Total aggregate consideration HRE 12,416,246
Shareholders’ loan EN=EN (10,600,039)
1,816,207
5% equity interests in Well Allied REEREE 2 5% IxfE 1,963,149
Excess of recorded in equity FARRTREEAELERZ
attributable to owners of the e
Company 3,779,356
Satisfied by: LTSI EN
Set off with loan receivables R UG B SR 8 12,416,246

(b)  On 28 June 2013, the Group and Long Sincere
International Limited (“Long Sincere”) entered
into a loan agreement in which the Group
agreed to advance to Long Sincere loans in
principal amount of HK$3,073,800. The loan
was secured by 10 ordinary shares of Welly
Champ, a subsidiary of the Company, owned
by Long Sincere. The loan bears an effective
interest rate of 10% and shall be repayable in
14 days from the date of advance.

On 12 July 2013, the Long Sincere gave
a written notice to the Group that Long
Sincere had no ability to repay the aforesaid
loans and corresponding interest in total of
HK$3,085,590 and agreed to transfer the
10 ordinary shares of Welly Champ owned
by Long Sincere to the Group to settle the
outstanding loans and interest.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

(b)

RZZE—=FA=+1\RH &%
BEHERHEIZERG® - Bl K
SERERNERHEEERAR (K
) B AR £ 53,073,800/ 2
EX-ZEFXRDBAR#BER 210
BARRNBIMEBRARESE 2 E@mIRE
B ZERZEBEFNER10% -
W/BREAT B EIfET 14 HEE -

RZE—=FtA+=H  E#H
MASBEZHLEDAMN  BERH
EOEELFLAERREENES
3,085,690/ ' WHE M AL
EEEREFAEBZIOREE LR
B - UBEREEERRFIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL 41.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

Following the completion the above
acquisition, the Company holds an aggregate
of 226.13 shares in Welly Champ, representing
approximately 95.77% of the total issued
share capital of Welly Champ.

Details of the acquisition of additional interests
in Welly Champ during the year ended 31

B 7 3R % B A )
)

—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

WIEH B QR 2 BEIMER ()

(b) (%)

REMKEEETHKE  KANQF
BHA L2613 EE KRG -
HERBEEEBRITRABLELY
95.77% ©

BE_ZT-—MNF=A=+—HILF
B - WBEEE 2 EIMES 2 IR

March 2014 are summarised as follows: A
HK$
BT
Total aggregate consideration BB 8,085,590
Shareholders’ loan REER (3,292,333)
4,793,257
6.59% equity interests in Welly Champ REE 2 6.59% ik 2,595,392
Excess of recorded in equity AL TEEAELERZ
attributable to owners of the BB
Company 7,388,649
Satisfied by: RT3 5 EM
Set off with loan receivables R i UG B SR 8 3,085,590
Cash B 5,000,000
8,085,590

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEALIRS
Save as those disclosed elsewhere in the financial BETESRERMIH BERBEEN &
statements, significant related party transactions NETZEREEALZZON
during the year are as follows:
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —me
Notes HK$ HK$
HtaF BT &
Facility sharing income from an REHE DR 2R
associate HEIWA (a) — 4,440,206
Interest expense to non-controlling MIEERRAR R 12
shareholders BRI (b) - 778,171
(a) Facility sharing income was received from (a) =i %H&)\EXQH SN2
an associate based on the facility sharing RIS HEF R ZHES

agreement signed between parties.

(b) Loan interest expenses paid to non-controlling
shareholders based on the agreement signed

by both parties.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other

At
H o
Ean

(b) AFFERBRR AN 2 ERHMEFX

TIRIBRT T 38 5T 2 h

(c) EZEBAEFHM

BEE -

FR - BEREMTIBEEARY

196

members of key management personnel BeunT -
during the year were as follows:
Group
TEE
2015 2014
—F-1RF% —T@OF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Short-term benefits 5 EAF = 13,090,584 18,250,169
Post-employment benefits BEB & 1B A 78,468 129,500
13,169,052 18,379,669
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED AR EBR AR
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31 March 2015

)

43. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

43. EBHERERMHE

Reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash used AEEEBEUEALEEBMACESFE
in operations is as follows: HERWOT -

2015 2014

—E-1f T

HK$ HK$

B BT

(Loss)/profit before income tax credit/(expense)

BATEEIESR,/ (Fs)R (BR), /87

— Continuing operations — BEGEER (471,977,280)  (127,399,498)
— Discontinued operation — BRIEER - 68,390,638
Interest income FMEKA (1,272,737 (2,251,425)
Interest expenses F B 4,313,268 13,275,762
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BEREREZTE 13,298,088 19,210,566
Amortisation of payments for leasehold land held RE&ERAZEEzBRHEET

for own use under operating leases Ea: §:c! - 1,205,395
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEEHHE 15,361,839 15,564,496
Amortisation of deferred expenditure BIER Y < #H 8,632,826 12,930,831
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWME - BEREE WS

equipment (74,083) (157,207)
Reversal of impairment loss on other receivables Eh fEUFIE v Fi{E B & E (1,212,716) —
Gain on deemed disposal of interests in BIELERBE RA =L

associates, net W 588 (1,162,241) —
Loss on disposal of associates HERE N2 BHE 2,912,809 —
Loss in disposal of convertible loan notes HEMTRREREE 2 BE 1,051,473 —
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - BEREERESE

equipment - 8,840,980
Impairment loss on goodwill BB REEE 96,019,091 —
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHNERECRERE

investments 147,964,021 449120
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables — JEWE R R EMZIE 7 REEE 1,736,337 6,831,200
Impairment loss on intangible assets BVEERESE 88,358,247 —
Impairment loss on deferred expenditure BRSO REEE 2,268,500 —
Realised loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for- — HERHHERE 2 B EE

sale investments BB/ (k) 1,630,320 (2,378,140)
Fair value gain on investment properties BREMEZ NFEE W (127,279) —
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries, net HERBRARZER,/ (W) -

e 16,030,080  (76,598,480)
Waiver of amount due to a related party HEERNEEALTRE - (2,836,401)
Facility sharing income from an associate REBERAZREEZ A - (4,440,2086)
Share of (profits)/losses of associates AMEBEAFCRF), BB (616,346) 6,508,682
Equity-settled share-based payment expense BEEF AR 2 HX - 9,376,692
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 T REEY 197
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—Z2-RF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

43. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

43. MEBHERERMTE &)

(Continued)
2015 2014
“E-1f —E-mF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Operating loss before working capital changes BEESEER LB (76,865,783)  (53,476,995)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERD /() 1,999,327 (4,526,680)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other JEM S R EMIEEM) SR
receivables (9,182,590) 36,695,860
Increase in trade, bills and other payables ERNEN EEREMHE
byl 29,851,119 1,099,179
Increase in deferred income I AE - 4,731,516
Net cash used in operations REEBRAR ST (54,197,927)  (15,477,120)
Xl BEAFRA T

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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—E-AF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

44. LEASES 44. K
Operating leases — lessee REREH — FHBEA
The Group leases certain properties under operating AEERBELEHYVHESETYE - %
leases. The leases for properties usually run for EYERO 2B HEBRE S 2+
an initial period of one to sixteen years (2014: F(ZE—WNF: —F+F) He
one to sixteen years). Lease payments are usually ETRTRMTERAS - HMEHNBRE
negotiated to reflect market rentals. None of the RS o
leases includes contingent rentals.
The lease payments recognised as an expense are ERRAZHZESNT
as follows:
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—B-HfF —ZT-NOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Minimum lease payments HEEE 45,917,744 52,455,152
The total future minimum lease payments are due H#ESEHESEEN 525 Ef -
as follows:
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-HE —TWOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Not later than one year TER—F 32,974,979 39,908,872
Later than one year and not later than HE—FENERNAF
five years 79,646,216 95,159,660
More than five years ey C kS 80,713,419 96,840,967
193,334,614 231,909,499
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 T-REET
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

44. LEASES (Continued)

Operating Leases — Lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties and

sub-leases of properties in PRC under operating

leases. No leases were signed for investment

properties for the year (2014: nil) and sub-leases

of properties in PRC usually run for one to five

years (2014: one to five years). Lease payments are

usually negotiated to reflect market rentals. None

of the lease includes contingent rentals.

The minimum lease receivables under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

44, B #)

gAY — HAA

AEBERBEERANHEEREMEY
DHEERFBEZYE - RFEERERF]
REMEZHEHN(ZT—WNF: /)M
RAEESENEHOBRER—20F
—E-FE:—ERF) HEZHETE
BAERRTERS HMEROBERA
B o

BRI RS SR Y BIEEKE S
mF

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mOF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than

five years
More than five years

38,666,307 28,114,554

20,152,087 39,371,555
2,885,329 8,233,614

61,703,723 75,719,723

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45. BEAREIE
(a) (a)
Group Company
rEH FINNE|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—RE —T—OF Z—EB-RE —T—NOF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET T BT BT
Commitments for the W B T B f 58
acquisition of plant ZHEE
and equipment:
Contracted for but not 2 RT4B KRB
provided 22,643,377 7,668,139 — —
(b) On 8 July 2011, the Group completed an b) RZZE——FEANH TEEZ

agreement dated 27 May 2011 with HaoRan
Cultural Development Limited (“BoRen
Vendor"),
acquire the entire issued share capital of

an independent third party, to

BoRen from BoRen Vendor for a consideration
of RMB90 million, RMB25 million (equivalent
to HK$29,897,153) of which was paid in cash
and the balance of RMB65 million by the
issue of 420,176,215 ordinary shares of the
The
quoted closing price per share of the Company

Company (the “BoRen Agreement”).

quoted on the Stock Exchange on that date
was HK$0.191.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

REBIE=FEAXEEER
AR(MELCER DI EH A
T——FRA-t++RAZHE N
AECE HWBIEC 2 2BEHT
A KB A AR 90,000,000
7T Eih AR ¥ 25,000,000 7T (48
£7229,897,153 B L) U R & X
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FR%0.191 87T °
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31 March 2015

45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTM

(Continued)

The BoRen Agreement contained a profit
guarantee from BoRen Vendor whereby BoRen
Vendor guaranteed that the total audited
combined net profits after taxation and non-
controlling interest of Elite-China and its
subsidiaries (the "Elite Group”) for the three
financial years ending 31 December 2013 (the
“Guaranteed Period”) shall be not less than
RMB75 million (the

Meanwhile, the Group is obligated to advance

“Guaranteed Profit"”).

loans (“Advanced Loans”) in the total principal
amount in Hong Kong dollars of not less than
a sum equivalent to RMB50 million each
financial year during the Guaranteed Period
to the Elite Group for the development of the
business of BoRen and its subsidiaries (the
“BoRen Group”). In case of the Elite Group
failed to meet the Guaranteed Profit, the
maximum amount to be received by the Group
from BoRen Vendor shall not exceed RMB90
million.

On 20 December 2011, The Group and BoRen
Vendor entered into a supplemental agreement
to defer the Guaranteed Period from the three
financial years ending 31 December 2013 to
the three financial years ending 31 December
2014 and the related Advanced Loans would
be deferred accordingly whilst the rest of the
terms and conditions of the BoRen Agreement
remain unchanged. On 31 December 2012,
the Group and BoRen Vendor further entered
into a supplemental agreement to defer the
Guarantee Period from the three financial
years ending 31 December 2014 to the three
financial years ending 31 December 2015 and
the related Advanced Loans would be further
deferred accordingly whilst the rest of the
terms and conditions of the BoRen Agreement
remain unchanged.

AENT LIMITED

45. BARERE %)

(b)

(%)
BCmHEEECE N RME 25N
RiE Bt BLCETREBRE
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— A BFEE(RE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

On 30 September 2013, the Group and
BoRen Vendor further entered into another
supplemental agreement to defer the
Guarantee Period from the three financial
years ending 31 December 2015 to the three
financial years ending 31 December 2016 and
the related Advanced Loans would be further
deferred accordingly whilst the rest of the
terms and conditions of the BoRen Agreement
remain unchanged.

On 30 September 2014, the Group and
BoRen Vendor further entered into a fourth
supplemental agreement to defer the
Guarantee Period from the three financial
years ending 31 December 2016 to the three
financial years ending 31 December 2017 and
the related Advanced Loans would be further
deferred accordingly whilst the rest of the
terms and conditions of the BoRen Agreement
remain unchanged.

Details of other commitments are set out in
note 26 to the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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45. BARERE %)

(b)
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B 7 L P B

204

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group's business. The Group is also exposed to
equity price risk arising from its equity investment
in other entities.

Policy for managing these risks is set by the Board
following recommendations from the Chief Financial
Officer. Certain risks are managed centrally, while
others are managed locally following guidelines
communicated from the management. The policy
for each of the above risks is described in more
detail below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparties
will default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group exposes to credit risk from loans and
receivables. The Group has adopted a credit
policy to monitor and mitigate credit risk
arising from trade debtors. Credit limit is
regularly reviewed and approved by head of
credit control. The Group assesses credit risk
based on customers’ past due records, trading
history, financial conditions or credit ratings.
The Group and the Company is not exposed
to concentration of credit risk. Please refer
to note 29 for further analysis of credit risk
associated with trade and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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31 March 2015

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT BERREREZ)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELEAR

The Group’'s objective is to ensure there
are adequate funds to meet commitments
associated with its financial liabilities. Cash
flows of the Group are closely monitored by
senior management on an ongoing basis.

AEBEZBBRRERERAESIE
EREERETYERAEE R

MEEMEAES AR

==
ﬁ/}lui °

The contractual maturities of financial liabilities HaE a0 BEETAT
are shown as below:
The Group AEE
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount  cash flows  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
af it A
AERRS -FRg —-FF MEER
HEfE bt 5 EZ% SHWE PREE BBLE
HK§ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK§ HK$
V-7 V-7 Ar Ar Ar Ar
2015 §-if
Non-derivatives: HATE
Trade, bills and ERER - FER
other payables At 70,681,180 70,681,180 70,681,180 - - -
Amounts due to non- ERERRRRE A
controlling shareholders 53,594,160 53,594,160 53,594,160 - - -
Amounts due to related EREEATHE
parties 43,894,302 430894302 43,894,302 - - -
Bank borrowings RIS 60,308,803 65808901 36,459,907 7,890,448 21458546 -
208,478,445 233978543 204,629,549 7,890,448 21,458,546 -
2014 _T-mE
Non-derivatives: SFiTE -
Trade and other payables ERESREMIE 61853781 61863781 61,853,781 - - -
Amounts due to non- ERSERRIRRTA
controlling shareholders 97,794,653 97,794,653 97,794,653 - - -
Amounts due to related ERBEALTE
parties 35,023,051 35,023,051 35,023,051 - - -
Bank horrowings HiTiEE 29569384 31961213 31961,213 - - -
Other borrowings fieE 39640500 40,680,500 40,680,500 — — —
263,881,369 267,313,198 267,313,198 — — -
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31 March 2015

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. B EBRERE &)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) HRBELRAKE)
The Company VNN
Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flows  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
& ikl ikl
AEBRS —-ERg -£{F MEETF
HEfE bt 2 [¥:31 SHWE DREE BRLE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT AT AT AT AT
2015 ZE-3F
Non-derivatives: Hfig
Trade and other payables ERNEFRAMTE 2330808 2,330,808 2,330,808 - - -
Amounts due to NS
subsidiaries 598,098,816 598,098,816 598,098,816 - - -
600,429,624 600,429,624 600,429,624 - - -
2014 “Z-mE
Non-derivatives: SEITE -
Trade and other payables EREFREMTE 1,584,801 1,584,801 1,584,801 - - -
Amounts due to ERHBAAE
subsidiaries 732,126,561 732,126,551 732,126,551 — - -
Other borrowings EhiEE 26640500 27,680,500 27,680,500 — - -
760,351,852 761,391,852 761,391,852 — — —
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED XA MEREBRA A
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances and
variable-rate bank loans.

The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk which relates primarily to
its fixed-rate loan receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank borrowings, other borrowings
and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders. The Group currently does not
use any derivative contracts to hedge the
interest rate risk. However, management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate profile

The following table details interest rates
analysis that management of the Company
evaluates the interest rate risk.

—ET-hRAF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

BERREREZ)

(c)

FRER

MBS T B RTE R B
ATBNEED  AEEARRS
REFREMS -

REEMAEIZEETSELKE
oo BEFIRITER - BOEE
Hinf& B REMNIFEERRRRIES
B AFEENERR - NEBE
AT 17 £ AERI T4 T B A L% h A
KR o AT BEEEES B
EEEREAFERER

FIFEEE

TREFIARAEREIHHFIER
2 RIE S -

Group Company
31 AR
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-1f “3-pf CE-1f “5-pE

Effective Effective Effective Effective

interest nterest interest nterest

rate (%) HKS rate (%) HKS rate (%) HKS rate (%) HKS

ERfIEY) AT EEREN AT ERFEY AT EREY AT

Financial assets HREE
Fired-ate financidl assets;  EEATHAR
— Loan receivables - BYER 010% 217227

— Pledged benk deposits - AR 280% 6,943,655
Floating-ate financial assets: 234

—Cash and bank balences - B RF(784 052% 102,614,658

— Pledged bank deposits - AR 0.01% 2,300,000

Financial liabilities HHaE
Fixed-ate financial iabiles; ~ E S8R

— Amounts due to - EAERR

non-controling bV

sharholders - -
— Bank borrowings - kS TI% 9594869
— Other borrowings - EhEE - _

Floatingrate financial failties: %8B -
— Bank borrowings - BRE 368% 50,713,934
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3.55%

083%

250%
1250%
961%

273%

11,300,000

173,820,122

1,330,000
3218482
39,640,500

26,290,902

009% 50,075,306 022% 8,631,546
001% 2,300,000 - -

- - 11.00% 26,640,500
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the results after tax in response to
reasonably possible changes in interest rate
to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of reporting period. In determining
the effect on results after tax on the next
accounting period until next end of reporting
period, management of the Company assumes
that the change in interest rate had occurred
at the end of reporting period and all other
variables remain constant. There is no change
in the methods and assumptions used in 2015
and 2014.

BERREREZ)

(c)

FRmb(E)
MBET T

TRETNBEARGRHRERY
AEBEASZEARBRZNRZAE
AREEFMAEL 2 HNEE - NE
EHBRBRREEN T — @S HRE
BEET—EHRERRIFER - K
RAEEERRNERHRERRD
HRBRAEEMESERFTE -
R-E-—RFR_ZT—NEMER
ZIERBRLBEE -

Group Company
rEH ¥ NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —TOF ZEB-HF —T—NNUF
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT JBEIT BT BT
Increase by 100 basis EHN100 EE 2,
points 542,007 1,475,292 523,759 86,315
Decrease by 100 basis & 4> 100 {BZ 24
points (26,687) (1,182,093) (45,298) (18,637)
Currency risk (d) E¥E

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
PRC with most of the transactions settled in
their respective functional currencies in which
the group entities operate. Therefore the
Group does not have significant exposure to
risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.

LIMITED

AEBMEERBBMNTEEE K
MPRXFHNEEERE LN
ZEBMEEREE - Ak - A%
B EASNEERBH M AT E KR
[\ -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale equity securities. They are
listed on the Stock Exchange and have been
chosen based on their longer term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on equity price risk
includes the Group’s financial instruments,
which fair value or future cash flows will
fluctuate because of changes in their
corresponding or underlying asset’s equity
price. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 50% (2014: 50%)
higher/lower, the other component of equity
would increase/decrease by HK$10,634,105
(2014: HK$52,448,966).

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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R RERE )
(e) MAEHRER

AEEEH D BRI MR ERAE
HZBRATEMEL 2 BANERE
B o ZERAT AR LT
HERBRREZERENER K
REBHTEERXZIEE -

BBRETHT

BRAEBRERR 2 GURESTEER
SEzemITE BRI A
ZATFEBEIARRSREESEAHN
BB - TR E SRR EE
ZRAR B ENFTE o (WA A
TEZE®EEHA THEL0%(ZF
— U :50%) + B E Ath IR AR FR
3% hn, 554> 10,634,105 8 7T (—
T —JU4F : 52,448,966 T) °
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47. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

47. RERE D 2B EER MK

AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY EEHNE
CATEGORY
The following table shows the carrying amount TRERMTAKFTIRAECHBREER
and fair value of financial assets and liabilities as BEZEEERAFEE
defined in note 4(k):
The Group AEE
2015 2014
—E-1F —T—-mF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
IREE NEEE FHEE NEEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT
Financial assets BEEE
Loans and receivables S krEWEE 302,608,013 302,608,013 380,151,041 380,151,041
Available-for-sale financial assets At HEMBKEE 21,268,209 21,268,209 208,301,204 208,301,204
Financial liabilities BaE
Financial liabilities measured REHERAGTEZ
at amortised cost B akE 228,478,445 228,478,445 263,881,369 263,881,369
The Company AT
2015 2014
—Z-EHF —T—-mF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
REE AYEE REE NEEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets BREE
Loans and receivables ERRERHIE 636,751,440 636,751,440 888,783,730 888,783,730
Financial liabilities BEaE
Financial liabilities measured REHEKRAGTEZ
at amortised cost HBEE 600,429,624 600,429,624 760,351,852 760,351,852
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED L iER A B R A T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

(a) The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° The fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference
to quoted market prices.

o The fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions
and dealer quotes for similar instruments.

(b) The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments carried at fair value by
level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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47. RERE D 2B EER MK
BEHSE®)

(a) MBEERMBRABEZ A FEEDD
BTIIREERE -

o  ABBREGERRMGHFLRE
BARBUETSEE ZME
BEMMBEREZAFER
T2ETSREETE -

s HMMBEERMBAEGZ
NFEEIREARZTE
B AABEUTAZA
BRATHESEXZERLE
RBEFERBRSREDN
MmEE °

(b) TREIIRAFEEINRZERT
BERAVEEBRRBZON :

B AREERAERE
BTS2 BECTT B

)

Bf2: EBRMBIEEXER
Bz B (BIER )X
EETEBER)A
BRH ABEN(RER
5N 5 R
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31 March 2015

47. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

47. BERE D 2B EER MK

AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY BEME®)
CATEGORY (Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that B3 : WIENABEMSEE

are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

BEREZAEREHEE
ANERCRTBEREA
B -

Group
N |
2015
—2-1F
Available-for-sale financial TEHEHKEE
assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B&1 E#&2 E#&3 wmE
Listed securities in Hong ~ &/& FWZES A
Kong, at fair value FEE 21,268,209 - — 21,268,209
Group
REE
2014
—E-mEF
Available-for-sale financial A#tHEHNBEE
assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B4 1 B4 2 B3 k]
Listed securities in Hong ~ &/& FWZES A
Kong, at fair value FEE 101,333,932 — — 101,333,932
Convertible loan notes HRREFREE — 3,569,000 — 3,669,000
Contingent consideration in AEMNENEB AR 2
relation to acquisition of FARE
subsidiaries — — 103,398,272 103,398,272
101,333,932 3,569,000 103,398,272 208,301,204

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

N ZREFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

(b) (Continued)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried
at fair value based on significant unobservable

—ET-hRAF=A=+—H
31 March 2015

47. RERE D 2B EER MK
BEHSE®)

(b) (#&)
BREANAERGAER(ERI)
BHzEAFEEIEZE/RTA

inputs (Level 3) is as follows: HERMT ¢
Group
AEE
Equity Securities
[N
2015 2014
—E-HE —T—OF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April R A—H 103,398,272 101,539,185
Exchange differences PE X Z%E 125,317 1,859,087
Release of foreign exchange R SR &R EREE
reserve upon impairment loss on ROl N 1
available-for-sales investment (4,775,996) —
Impairment loss RIEBE (98,747,593) —
At 31 March W=A=+—H — 103,398,272

(c) Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period.
Fair value of the convertible loan notes are
based on the closing price of the shares of
underlying stock price as at the end of the
reporting period. The fair value of convertible
loan notes is considered to be divided into
two components, namely 1) share value; 2)
early redemption option of the Company and
has been determined by a firm of professional
valuer, APAC, using valuation technique.

The share value is equal to underlying stock
price multiplied by the convertible number of
shares. Binomial option pricing model is used
for valuation of the early redemption option.
Significant input into the model was underlying
stock price, expected volatility, risk-free rate,
life of the options and expected ordinary
dividend vyield.
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(c) ER2AFEESNBEAZMGEER
oKt A&

RRESEE

AMEERERIRRERRLZA
FEEFE - ABRBRERREZA
FEEDRNHEHARERKEZ
BT ERE - ATRRERER
Z R HEERR RS BMIEERD
BIARRRZ VR EE: k2R
RIEEEERE  EhFEXMERTT
DAREBHERMEE -

Bt BERSNEREAERA R &
BB tn 8RB - 152 A B R 12
EITHERRA ZAARREER
N o FEAZERBAEN RBIER
BfB - FEERIE - EER AR - 5
BEHLREREBERER -
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—E-RAF=A=1+—H
31 March 2015

47. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

(d)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 3 fair value measurements

Contingent consideration related to
acquisition of subsidiaries

Binomial option pricing model is used for
valuation of the contingent consideration in
related to acquisition of subsidiaries. Significant
input into the model was as follows:

Expected 2015 net profits after taxation
and non-controlling interests

Expected 2016 net profits after taxation
and non-controlling interests

Expected 2017 net profits after taxation
and non-controlling interests

Annual risk-free rate

Expected volatility

The fair value of contingent consideration
related to acquisition of subsidiaries is
determined using binomial option pricing
model and the significant unobservable
input used in the fair value measurement
is expected 2015 - 2017 net profits after
taxation and non-controlling interests. The fair
value measurement is negatively correlated
to the expected 2015 — 2017 net profits after
taxation and non-controlling interests. As at 31
March 2014, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease
in expected 2015 — 2017 net profits after
taxation and non-controlling interests by 20%,
which is a reasonable magnitude determined
by management, would have no effect on the
Group's other comprehensive income.

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

47. RERE D 2B EER MK
BEHSE®)

(d)

B T -AFRBIEAN R
IRIE R

B - T NERBRAN R
EEdiver

B - T FRBRAEN R
FRIE R

4 i 4 LR 6

TEHAR 18

BRIAFEEAREAZMGER
g R g A B
BEWIER B AR Z A E

HAEBUBEHNEB AR ZAREE
THERRB -EANETER
Ao RERAZERBAEHDT -

RMB2,865,000
AR 2,865,000 7T

RMB6,596,000
AR ¥ 6,596,000 7T

RMB9,847,000
AR #9,847,000 7T

2.8-3.1%

40%

ERWEBMB AR ZHAREZR
FEENEA ZEAEEEERN
EE MAFEEFEERZEX
TABRBABHREN _—T—5
FE_TLFRBBAN R IHE
Pt - AFEEFERBEHR T
—hEE-T—EFHRBRRAT K
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EEEE)BTEEAREZ i
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48.

49.

50.

*

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 8 June 2015, Shenzhen Wendi Multimedia
Technology Company Limited* CFIITH S0 % IF fE 4%
MIBRAT) (“Shenzhen Wendi”), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Guangwei Technology
Group Limited* (EMEHZSEEH A 7)) ("Guangwei”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen Wendi conditionally
agreed to purchase and Guangwei conditionally agreed
to sell the 9.5% of the subscribed capital contribution
of Chongging Lianshun Hegi Venture Investment
Fund Partnership* (EEBIES AR ERESAIND
% )at a consideration equivalent to HK$32,000,000 in
Renminbi.

Guangwei is a company established in PRC and
wholly-owned by Ms. Wang Ming and Ms. Wenying
Cheng* (88 X % )in equal shares. As Ms. Wang
Ming is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
holding approximately 12.25% of the issued share
capital of the Company. This transaction is a
connected transaction for the Company under the
Listing Rules.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform with the current year presentation.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
June 2015.

For identification only
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Bt RIS B RERERE R
BHMEGEEHWRELEEERIES RA
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MEEHE o

B A —BRPBEKILZ AR AEE
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REEBEZTAERRGETEREFEER
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REWE-—EBER
‘h SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Description Type Lease Term
it kR HE
980, Gamsan-ri, Andeok-myeun, Seogwipo-si, Jeju-do, Korea Residential Freehold
w2 BN AT Bl B8 B PR Bl T 2 R E A 1L 2 980 5% F= KA KRE

216 CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED XL EREERAR



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	五年財務摘要
	管理層討論及分析
	董事會報告書
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	投資物業一覽表

